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The challenges facing sustainable urban develop-
ment are enormous. More than half of the world’s 
population already lives in cities, and that trend is 
continuing. Around the world, roughly 75 percent of 
the energy consumed, 60 percent of the water con-
sumption, and 80 percent of greenhouse gases can 
be attributed to cities. Urbanization, climate change 
and demographic change are forcing cities to make 
their infrastructures more efficient. With innovative 
technologies, cities can become more environmen-
tally friendly, increase the quality of life for their 

residents, and cut costs – all at the same time.

With its environmental portfolio, Siemens is an 
international leader in sustainable city develop-
ment. Our longstanding expertise and studies 
conducted regularly with renowned partners have 
resulted in innovative infrastructure concepts with 
sustainable solutions for buildings, water supply, 
waste management, energy efficiency, transport 
management, and healthcare.

Facing urban challenges effectively

What makes a 
city sustainable?



Vision

To remain market leader 
and technology pace 
setter in the engineering 
and electronics industry 
by utilizing the high-tech 
engineering expertise of the 
Siemens Group worldwide. 
To maintain our strong and 
prominent local presence.



Mission
To realize our vision by:

>  Providing quality to our customers at competitive 
prices, to their complete satisfaction

>  Generating earnings sufficient to ensure a secure 
future for the company and to protect and increase 
our shareholders / stakeholders’ investment

> Enhancing creativity and job satisfaction of our 
employees by providing opportunities for personal 
development, limited only by their own ability and 
drive

>  Contributing to the national economy, whilst realizing 
strong sense of responsibility to society and the 
environment 

> Enhancing the investment of our customers through 
human excellence, our technology, our processes, 
our high standards of quality and financial strength

> Supporting and striving for technology transfer to 
Pakistan through our global resources and local 
presence
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Human  
excellence  
as corporate 
strategy

Our focus is on train-
ing and develop-
ment of employees to 
enhance their techni-
cal and managerial 
expertise, making the 
company an employer 
of choice, monitoring 
employee satisfac-
tion and implement-
ing measures for its 
continuous enhance-
ment, continually 
taking cognizance of 
managerial practices 
detrimental to high 
performance culture.
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Overall Corporate Strategies 
People excellence, portfolio expansion, operational excellence and corporate  
responsibility are the foundations of our corporate strategy to achieve our vision 
and mission. These include:

>  Ensuring management commitment to quality
>  Embedding high level of quality in all spheres of our operations through professional tools 

and methodologies, ensuring that employees at all levels master these tools in carrying out 
their missions within the company, while observing all safety regimens, environmental 
preservations and applicable statutory and regulatory compliance 

>  Measuring and monitoring customer satisfaction, competitiveness and customer focus and 
benefit, implementing corrective measures where required and ensuring continual improve-
ment

>  Focused training and development of the employees to enhance their technical and mana-
gerial expertise, making the company an employer of choice, monitoring employee satisfac-
tion and implementing measures for its continuous enhancement, continually taking cogni-
zance of managerial practices detrimental to high performance culture

>  Competence and knowledge management to focus on enhancing human excellence using 
professional methodologies with strategic planning and competence management as con-
current processes

>  Monitoring performances of processes and taking timely action for their standardization 
and optimization



We Stand  
for Our Values

Responsible: 

Committed to ethical and  
responsible actions

Excellent: 

Achieving high performance and 
excellent results

Innovative: 

Being innovative to create sus-
tainable value
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Highest performance with the highest ethics

Responsible
Our principles:
> We obey the law
> We respect the dignity of all people
> We foster health and safety
> We conduct business in a truthful and transpar-

ent manner
> We are fair in our relationship with competitors 

and stakeholders
> We honor commitments
> We respect property
> We strive for the protection of the environment
> We are committed to good corporate citizenship
> We are fully engaged and empowered to achieve 

the best results

Excellent 
Our principles:
> We set best-in-class goals and achieve them
> We are passionate

> We are willing to go the extra mile
> We are disciplined and act fast and decisively
> We always strive for improvements and perfect 

quality
> We deeply understand our customers’ needs and 

challenges
> We systematically develop our personal skills and 

leverage our full potential 
> We interact in an efficient and pragmatic way
> We embrace change to ensure we are competi-

tive in the future

Innovative
Our principles:
> We create innovations that give our customers a 

unique competitive edge
> We act as entrepreneurs
> We are creative and open to new ideas
> We are ingenious and visionary
> We are trendsetters
> We constantly challenge the status quo
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1. Basic Behavioral Requirements

1.1 Behavior which complies with Law
 Observance of law and the legal system is a fundamental 

principle for our Company. Every employee / director shall 
obey the laws and regulations of the legal systems within 
which he / she is acting. Violations of the law must be 
avoided under all circumstances. 

 Regardless of the sanction foreseen by the law, any 
director / employee guilty of a violation will be liable to 
disciplinary consequences because of the violation and 
dereliction of his / her duties.

1.2  Mutual respect, honesty and integrity
 We respect the personal dignity, privacy, and personal 

rights of every individual. We work together with individ-
uals of various ethnic backgrounds, cultures, religions, 
ages, disabilities, races, sexual identity, world view and 
gender. We are open, honest and stand by our responsi-
bilities. 

 We are reliable partners and make no promises we cannot 
keep.

1.3  Responsibility for the Reputation of Siemens
 To a substantial degree, the reputation of Siemens is 

determined by our actions and by the way each and every 
one of us presents and conducts himself/herself. Illegal 
or inappropriate behavior on the part of even a single 
employee / director can cause the Company considerable 
damage.

 Every director / employee should be concerned with 
maintaining and promoting the good reputation of the 
Company.

1.4  Management, Responsibility and Supervision
 The culture of integrity and compliance in an organi-

zation starts at the top. All managers must fulfill their 
duties of organization and supervision. All managers 
bear responsibility for all employees entrusted to them. 
All managers must earn respect by exemplary personal 
behavior, performance, openness, and social compe-
tence.

 Each manager must also set clear, ambitious and realistic 
goals and lead by example.

 Managers should permit their employees as much indi-
vidual responsibility and lee-way as possible, while 
making it clear that compliance is required under all 
circumstances, at all times. All managers shall also be 
accessible in case employees wish to raise compliance 
concerns, ask questions or discuss a professional or per-
sonal problem. These responsibilities of managers do not 
relieve employees of their own responsibilities. It is the 
responsibility of all managers to see to it that there are no 
violations of laws within their area of responsibility that 
proper supervision could have prevented.

 In particular, the following duties apply to manag-
ers:
1. The manager must carefully select employees based 

on their personal and professional qualifications and 

Condensed Business 
Conduct Guidelines

“Integrity guides our conduct to-
wards our business partners, col-
leagues, shareholders and the 
general public.” This basic state-
ment of our corporate principles 
constitutes the foundation of our 
code of conduct and ethics as fol-
lows:
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suitability. The duty of due care increases with the sig-
nificance of the task the employee must perform (duty 
of selection).

2. The manager must give precise, complete and binding 
instructions to employees, especially with regard to 
compliance with the law (duty to give instructions).

3. The manager must ensure that compliance with the 
law is continuously monitored (duty of monitoring).

4. The manager must clearly communicate to employees 
the importance of integrity and compliance in every-
day business. He/she must also communicate that 
violations of the law are unacceptable and will have 
employment consequences (duty of communication).

2.  Treatment of Business Partners and 
Third Parties

2.1  Fair Competition and Anti-Trust Laws
 Every employee is obliged to abide by the rules of fair 

competition. Employees may not:
>  talk to competitors about prices, output, capacities, 

sales, bids, profits, profit margins, costs, methods of 
distribution or any other parameter that determines or 
influences the Company‘s competitive behavior with 
the aim to solicit parallel behavior from the competitor,

>  enter into an agreement with a competitor not to com-
pete, to restrict dealings with suppliers, to submit 
bogus offers for bidding or to divide up customers, 
markets, territories or production programs,

>  have any influence on the resale prices charged by 
our purchasers, or attempt to make them restrict the 
export or import of goods supplied by Siemens.

2.2 Anti-Corruption: Offering and Granting Advantag-
es

 We compete fairly for orders with the quality and the price 
of our innovative products and services, not by offering 
improper benefits to others. As a result, no employee may 
directly or indirectly offer, promise, grant or authorize 
the giving of money or anything else of value to a gov-
ernment official to influence official action or obtain an 
improper advantage

2.3 Anti-Corruption: Demanding and Accepting 
Advantages

        Employees are not permitted to use their jobs to solicit, to 
demand, accept, obtain or be promised advantages.

2.4 Political Contributions, Charitable Donations and 

Sponsoring
     Siemens does not make political contributions (donations 

to politicians, political parties or political organizations). 
As a responsible member of society, Siemens makes mon-
etary or product donations for education and science, art 
and culture, and social and humanitarian projects.

2.5  Government Procurement
 In all of Siemens‘ dealings and interactions with govern-

ments, we act in a manner that is transparent, honest and 
accurate.

2.6  Anti-money Laundering
 It is Siemens‘ objective to conduct business with repu-

table customers, consultants and business partners who 
are involved in lawful business activities and whose 
funds are derived from legitimate sources. We do not 
facilitate money laundering.

2.7  Trade Controls
 Siemens complies with applicable export controls and 

customs laws and regulations in the countries where it 
does business.

2.8  Working with Suppliers
 Siemens as a company expects its suppliers to share Sie-

mens‘ values and comply with all applicable laws.

3.  Avoiding Conflicts Of Interest 

 It is the duty of Siemens employees to make business 
decisions in the best interest of Siemens, not based on 
their own personal interests. Conflicts of interest arise 
when employees engage in activities or advance personal 
interests at the expense of Siemens‘ interests.

3.1  Competing with Siemens
 An employee may not operate or assist a company that 

competes with Siemens or engage in any competing 
activities.

3.2  Sideline Work
 Employees may not engage in sideline work that com-

petes with Siemens. 

3.3  Interests in Third Companies
 Employees who directly or indirectly hold or acquire a 

stake in a competitor company, must disclose this fact 

15
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to their personnel department if this stake gives them 
the opportunity to exert influence on the management 
of that company.

4.  Handling Of Company Property

 There are many devices and pieces of equipment in       
Siemens offices and workshops. These are used for com-
pany business only and not for personal gains.

5.  Handling Of Information

5.1. Records and Financial Integrity
 Open and effective communication requires accurate and 

truthful reporting. Siemens is also required to maintain 
sound processes and controls so that transactions are 
executed according to management‘s authorization.

5.2. Confidentiality
 Confidentiality is maintained with regard to Siemens‘ 

internal confidential or proprietary information that has 
not been made known to the public.

5.3. Data Protection and Data  Security
 Access to the Intranet and Internet, worldwide electronic 

information exchange and dialogue, and electronic busi-
ness dealings are all crucial to the effectiveness of each 
and every one of us, and for the success of the business 
as a whole. However, the advantages of electronic com-
munication are tied to risks in terms of personal privacy 
protection and data security. 

 Personal data may only be collected processed, or used 
insofar as it is necessary for predetermined, clear, and 
legitimate purposes.

5.4. Insider Trading Rules
 People who have inside information with regard to         

Siemens or another company, such as a customer, sup-
plier or joint venture partner whose securities are admit-
ted to trading on a stock exchange or an organized 
securities market, are not allowed to trade in these com-
panies‘ securities or in financial instruments the prices of 
which depend directly or indirectly on these companies‘ 
securities. 

 Inside information is any specific information which is 
not public knowledge relating to Siemens or such other 
issuer of insider securities, which, if it became publicly 

known, would likely have a significant effect on the price 
of the insider security.

6.  Environment, Safety And Health

6.1  Environment and Technical Safety
 Protecting the environment and conserving natural 

resources are high priorities for our Company. Through 
management leadership and employee commitment,   
Siemens strives to conduct its operations in a manner 
that is safe for the environment and continually improves 
environmental performance.

6.2  Work Safety
 Protecting the health and safety of employees in the 

workplace is a high priority for Siemens. It is the respon-
sibility of everyone to foster Siemens‘ efforts to conduct 
its operations in a safe manner.

7.  Complaints And Comments

 All employees may lodge a complaint with their supervi-
sor, their compliance officer, personnel manager or some 
other personal unit designated for this purpose.

 There is a special process for handling complaints related 
to accounting practices.

 All complaints can be submitted both confidentially and 
anonymously, and all complaints will be investigated. 
Corrective measures will be implemented, if necessary.

8.  Compliance Implementation And 
Monitoring

 The management of Siemens throughout the world shall 
actively foster the distribution of the Business Conduct 
Guidelines.

 Compliance with the law and observance of the Busi-
ness Conduct Guidelines is monitored worldwide in all            
Siemens companies on a regular basis. This is done in 
accordance with applicable national procedures and legal 
provisions.

 An extensive compliance organization is in place in the 
company to ensure that the Siemens compliance pro-
gram is enforced.
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Billions of liters of groundwater is contaminated each day due 
to pollution. Hundreds of people die each hour due to thirst or 
bacteria in drinking water. However, industrial filtration plants, 
intelligent disinfection solutions, and water desalination sys-
tems can contribute to solving these problems, as can small 
and cost-effective  regional solutions.

Technologies in Siemens Pakistan for waste and water 
management

 >  Reverse Osmosis and Ultra Filtration Plants
 > Water Telemetry and SCADA
 > Waste Water Treatment
 > Water Purification Plants
 > Water Reuse and Membrane Solutions
 > Water Desalination
 > Water Pumping Distribution and Controls
 > Sludge Thickening, Dewatering, Drying
 > Chemical Disinfection and UV Solutions
 > Package and Mobile Water Treatment Plants

Water  
Treatment 
and Waste 
Management

Water is one of mankind’s most 
essential resources. Yet the global 
supply of this raw material will 
represent one of the world’s 
greatest challenges in the com-
ing decades. 
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Key Operating and Financial data

Six Years Summary 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
 Rupees in ‘000 

Trading Results
New orders 13,334,059 21,013,900 16,000,855 52,236,070 32,039,600 25,337,253 
Net turnover 15,059,556 26,248,842 36,149,390 26,880,742 21,901,752 20,795,847 
Export of goods and services  510,864  487,959 439,809 1,462,098 215,882  195,623 
Contracts executed outside Pakistan 3,774,444 10,674,064 21,507,206 12,374,212  5,610,671 4,657,654 
Gross profit 2,116,470  3,880,997  3,984,416 4,030,159 3,218,529  2,451,757 
Operating profit  342,841 1,989,954  2,327,146  2,599,965  2,022,635 1,675,351 
Profit before tax including profit on sale
of discontinued operations 158,178 1,590,067  2,144,439  2,564,203 1,964,574  1,508,320 
Profit after tax from discontinued operations -  - -  -  2,646,486 - 
Profit after tax from continuing operations 67,408 1,011,279 1,365,169 1,679,068  680,286 724,536 
Profit after tax from discontinued operations -  - -  -  1,801,036 - 
Earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortisation 460,323 1,909,968 2,440,439 2,796,014  2,359,850 1,797,018 
Interim dividend -  247,411 247,411  247,411  233,088 279,706 
Final dividend 82,470  494,822 494,822  494,822  494,822 233,088 

Financial Position
Share capital 82,470  82,470 82,470  82,470  82,470 77,696 
Reserves and Retained Earnings 6,526,236 6,951,161 6,828,723  6,205,787  5,268,952 2,644,116 
Property, plant and equipment  1,631,041 1,678,522  1,662,500 1,589,664 1,532,620  1,477,252 
Net current assets 2,740,825 3,342,129 3,230,868  2,767,305  2,368,659 565,110 
Long-term / deferred liabilities 82,343  171,675  197,857  106,091  113,680  124,290 

Investors Information 
Gross profit ratio (%) 14.05 14.79 11.02 14.99 14.70 11.79
EBITDA Margin to sales (%) 3.06 7.28 6.75 10.40 10.77 8.64
Return on equity / capital employed (%) 1.02 14.38 19.75 26.70 46.37 * 26.62
Inventory turnover ratio(in times)  3.67 5.52 7.18 5.89 6.65  7.66 
Inventory turnover ratio ( no. of days )  100 66 51 62 55  48 
Debtor turnover ratio( in times) 1.57 2.20  2.93 3.03 3.66  5.86 
Debtor turnover ratio ( no. of days) 233 166  125  121 100  62 
Creditor turnover ratio ( in times) 1.64  2.19  2.53  2.17 2.54  2.89 
Creditor turnover ratio ( no. of days) 222 167  145 168 144  126 
Operating cycle (no. of days) 333  232  176 183 155 125 
Total assets turnover ratio ( in times )  0.66  1.07 1.47  1.27  1.44  2.00 
Fixed assets turnover ratio ( in times ) 9.10 15.71  22.23  17.22  14.55 19.99 
Current ratio  1.19 1.19  1.19 1.15 1.20 1.06 
Quick / acid test ratio  0.96 0.98  0.93 0.90 0.93 0.81 
Price earning ratio 130.91 9.46  8.55 5.94  5.61 * 10.47 
Cash dividend per share (Rs) 10 90  90 90 90  66 
Dividend yield ratio  0.009 0.08  0.06 0.07 0.05  0.07 
Dividend pay out ratio (%) 122.34 73 54 44 29 70
Dividend cover ratio 0.82  1.36 1.84 2.26 3.34 1.42 
Interest cover ratio 3.16  18.69  28.29 23.94  12.55 * 14.74 
Breakup value per share(Rs)  801.35  852.87 838.03  762.49  648.89 350.30 
Market value per share (Rs) 1070.0 1160.0 1414.50 1,210  1,689 980 
Share price during the year 
 High(Rs) 1,250  1,500 1,414.50 2,054  1,869 1,365 
 Low(Rs) 810 973 685.3  1,209  975 650 
Earnings per share (Rs) 8.17 122.62  165.54  203.60 300.87 *  93.57 
Profit before tax to sales (%) 1.05 6.06 5.93 9.54 8.97 * 7.25
Profit after tax in percent of sales (%) 0.45 3.85 3.78 6.25 11.33 * 3.48
* Includes profit on sale of discontinued operations

Cash Flows
Net cash flow from operating activities 239,820  (1,689,177) (1,871,088)  2,727,427 (2,247,614) 726,384 
Net cash flow from investing activities (73,292) (197,953)  (157,611) (109,946) 2,351,293  (709,136)
Net cash flow from financing activities (494,822)  (742,233) (742,233) (1,072,879) (134,462) (464,982)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (328,294)  (2,629,363) (2,770,932) 1,544,602  (30,783) (447,734)
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2011 2010

Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

Wealth Generated

Net sales 15,059,556 99.10 26,248,842 99.19

Commission and allowances earned 76,095 0.50 67,729 0.26

Other operating income 60,002 0.40 146,425 0.55

15,195,653 100.00 26,462,996 100.00

Distribution of Wealth

Cost of sales (excluding employees’ remuneration and other duties) 10,162,902 66.88 19,506,740 73.71

Marketing, selling and general administration expenses 1,227,440 8.08 1,151,798 4.35

Employees’ remuneration 2,468,030 16.24 2,816,271 10.64

Net finance costs 184,663 1.22 399,887 1.51

Government taxes (includes income tax, WPPF, WWF, other duties) 1,085,210 7.14 1,577,021 5.96

Dividend to shareholders - . - . 742,233 2.80

Retained for future growth 67,408 0.44 269,046 1.03

15,195,653 100.00 26,462,996 100.00

Statement of Value Additions
For the year ended September 30, 2011
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Vertical Analysis of Financial Statements

2011 2010
Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

Balance Sheet

Total equity and minority interest 6,608,706 30.97 7,033,631 28.58

Total non-current liabilities 82,343 0.39 171,675 0.70
Total current liabilities 14,647,903 68.64 17,404,634 70.72

Total equity and liabilities 21,338,952 100.00 24,609,940 100.00

Total non - current assets 3,950,224 18.51 3,863,177 15.70
Total current assets 17,388,728 81.49 20,746,763 84.30

Total assets 21,338,952 100.00 24,609,940 100.00

Profit and Loss Account

Net sales and services 15,059,556 100.00 26,248,842 100.00

Cost of sales (12,943,086) (85.95) (22,367,845) (85.21)
Gross profit 2,116,470 14.05 3,880,997 14.79
Commission and allowances earned 76,095 0.51 67,729 0.26

2,192,565 14.56 3,948,726 15.04

Marketing and selling expenses (1,328,827) (8.82) (1,480,011) (5.64)
General administration expenses (580,899) (3.86) (625,186) (2.38)
Other operating income 60,002 0.40 146,425 0.56

(1,849,724) (12.28) (1,958,772) (7.46)
Operating Profit 342,841 2.28 1,989,954 7.58

Financial income 54,708 0.36 30,575 0.12
Financial expenses (239,371) (1.59) (430,462) (1.64)
Net finance costs (184,663) (1.23) (399,887) (1.52)

Profit before tax and sale of discontinued operations 158,178 1.05 1,590,067 6.06
Income tax expense (90,770) (0.60) (578,788) (2.21)
Profit before sale of discontinued operations 67,408 0.45 1,011,279 3.85
Profit on sale of discontinued operations – net of income tax - . - . - . - .
Profit for the year 67,408 0.45 1,011,279 3.85
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2009 2008 2007 2006
Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

6,911,193 28.49 6,288,257 25.38 5,351,422 30.44 3,069,316 23.82

197,857 0.82 106,091 0.43 113,680 0.65 124,290 0.96
17,149,395 70.69 18,381,034 74.19 12,115,914 68.91 9,693,190 75.22

24,258,445 100.00 24,775,382 100.00 17,581,016 100.00 12,886,796 100.00

3,878,182 15.99 3,627,043 14.64 3,096,443 17.61 2,628,496 20.40
20,380,263 84.01 21,148,339 85.36 14,484,573 82.39 10,258,300 79.60

24,258,445 100.00 24,775,382 100.00 17,581,016 100.00 12,886,796 100.00

36,149,390 100.00 26,880,742 100.00 21,901,752 100.00 20,795,847 100.00

(32,164,974) (88.98) (22,850,583) (85.01) (18,683,223) (85.30) (18,344,090) (88.21)
3,984,416 11.02 4,030,159 14.99 3,218,529 14.70 2,451,757 11.79
186,822 0.52 161,395 0.60 248,133 1.13 615,347 2.96

4,171,238 11.54 4,191,554 15.59 3,466,662 15.83 3,067,104 14.75

(1,308,787) (3.62) (1,132,642) (4.21) (986,460) (4.50) (1,003,475) (4.83)
(542,949) (1.50) (535,643) (1.99) (570,943) (2.61) (440,988) (2.12)

7,644 0.02 76,696 0.29 113,376 0.52 52,710 0.25
(1,844,092) (5.10) (1,591,589) (5.92) (1,444,027) (6.59) (1,391,753) (6.69)
2,327,146 6.44 2,599,965 9.67 2,022,635 9.24 1,675,351 8.06

153,937 0.43 218,030 0.81 258,878 1.18 82,222 0.40
(336,644) (0.93) (253,792) (0.94) (316,939) (1.45) (249,253) (1.20)
(182,707) (0.51) (35,762) (0.13) (58,061) (0.27) (167,031) (0.80)

2,144,439 5.93 2,564,203 9.54 1,964,574 8.97 1,508,320 7.25
(779,270) (2.16) (885,135) (3.29) (980,880) (4.48) (783,784) (3.77)
1,365,169 3.78 1,679,068 6.25 983,694 4.49 724,536 3.48

- . - . - . - . 1,497,628 6.84 - . - .
1,365,169 3.78 1,679,068 6.25 2,481,322 11.33 724,536 3.48
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2011 2010 2009 2008

Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000

Balance Sheet

Total equity and minority interest 6,608,706 7,033,631 6,911,193 6,288,257

Total non-currrent liabilities 82,343 171,675 197,857 106,091

Total currrent liabilities 14,647,903 17,404,634 17,149,395 18,381,034

Total equity and liabilities 21,338,952 24,609,940 24,258,445 24,775,382

Total non-current assets 3,950,224 3,863,177 3,878,182 3,627,043

Total current assets 17,388,728 20,746,763 20,380,263 21,148,339

Total assets 21,338,952 24,609,940 24,258,445 24,775,382

Profit and Loss Account

Net sales and services 15,059,556 26,248,842 36,149,390 26,880,742

Cost of sales (12,943,086) (22,367,845) (32,164,974) (22,850,583)

Gross profit 2,116,470 3,880,997 3,984,416 4,030,159

Commission and allowances earned 76,095 67,729 186,822 161,395

2,192,565 3,948,726 4,171,238 4,191,554

Marketing and selling expenses (1,328,827) (1,480,011) (1,308,787) (1,132,642)

General administration expenses (580,899) (625,186) (542,949) (535,643)

Other operating income 60,002 146,425 7,644 76,696

(1,849,724) (1,958,772) (1,844,092) (1,591,589)

Operating Profit 342,841 1,989,954 2,327,146 2,599,965

Financial income 54,708 30,575 153,937 218,030

Financial expenses (239,371) (430,462) (336,644) (253,792)

Net finance costs (184,663) (399,887) (182,707) (35,762)

Profit before tax and sale of discontinued operations 158,178 1,590,067 2,144,439 2,564,203

Income tax expense (90,770) (578,788) (779,270) (885,135)

Profit before sale of discontinued operations 67,408 1,011,279 1,365,169 1,679,068

Profit on sale of discontinued operations – net

of income tax - . - . - . - .

Profit for the year 67,408 1,011,279 1,365,169 1,679,068

Horizontal Analysis of Financial Statements
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2007 2006 % increase / (decrease) over preceeding year

Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

5,351,422 3,069,316 (6.04) 1.77 9.91 17.51 74.35 24.72

113,680 124,290 (52.04) (13.23) 86.50 (6.68) (8.54) 172.95

12,115,914 9,693,190 (15.84) 1.49 (6.70) 51.71 24.99 80.10

17,581,016 12,886,796 (13.29) 1.45 (2.09) 40.92 36.43 63.36

3,096,443 2,628,496 2.25 (0.39) 6.92 17.14 17.80 124.04

14,484,573 10,258,300 (16.19) 1.80 (3.63) 46.01 41.20 52.76

17,581,016 12,886,796 (13.29) 1.45 (2.09) 40.92 36.43 63.36

21,901,752 20,795,847 (42.63) (27.39) 34.48 22.73 5.32 58.35

(18,683,223) (18,344,090) (42.14) (30.46) 40.76 22.31 1.85 61.36

3,218,529 2,451,757 (45.47) (2.60) (1.14) 25.22 31.27 38.94

248,133 615,347 12.35 (63.75) 15.75 (34.96) (59.68) 6.12

3,466,662 3,067,104 (44.47) (5.33) (0.48) 20.91 13.03 30.82

(986,460) (1,003,475) (10.22) 13.08 15.55 14.82 (1.70) 34.86

(570,943) (440,988) (7.08) 15.15 1.36 (6.18) 29.47 50.53

113,376 52,710 (59.02) 1,815.55 (90.03) (32.35) 115.09 162.15

(1,444,027) (1,391,753) (5.57) 6.22 15.86 10.22 3.76 36.86

2,022,635 1,675,351 (82.77) (14.49) (10.49) 28.54 20.73 26.20

258,878 82,222 78.93 (80.14) (29.40) (15.78) 214.85 173.24

(316,939) (249,253) (44.39) 27.87 32.65 (19.92) 27.16 99.89

(58,061) (167,031) (53.82) 118.87 410.90 (38.41) (65.24) 76.57

1,964,574 1,508,320 (90.05) (25.85) (16.37) 30.52 30.25 22.34

(980,880) (783,784) (84.32) (25.73) (11.96) (9.76) 25.15 72.62

983,694 724,536 (93.33) (25.92) (18.69) 70.69 35.77 (6.97)

1,497,628 - . - . - . - . (100.00) - . - .

2,481,322 724,536 (93.33) (25.92) (18.69) (32.33) 242.47 (6.97)
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Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Barclays Bank PLC
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Deutsche Bank AG
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Auditors 
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Term of office: 
Dec. 16, 1991 
Re-elected on Nov. 26, 2009

Skills and experience
As an entrepreneur and industrialist, Syed 
Babar Ali envisioned and set up Packages 
Limited (Pakistan’s largest paper and 
board mill), Milk Pak Limited – now Nestle 
Pakistan Limited – (the largest food pro-
cessing company in Pakistan), Tetra Pak 
Pakistan Limited, IGI Insurance Company 
Limited, Tri-Pack Films Limited, and IGI 
Investment Bank. 

As an educationist, he led the establish-
ment of the Lahore University of Manage-
ment Sciences (LUMS) in 1985 of which 
he is the first Pro-Chancellor. In 1992, he 
founded Ali Institute of Education for training of primary 
and secondary school teachers. He is a member of the 
Board of Aitchison College, Kinnaird College and Lahore 
School of Economics. He is also a founding member of the 
South Asia Initiative of Harvard University and the Co-Chair 
of South Asia Centre for Policy Studies currently based in 
Nepal. He served as Pakistan’s Minister of Finance, Eco-
nomic Affairs in 1993. 

He promoted the cause of the World Wide Fund for Nature 
(earlier World Wildlife Fund) where he served in various 
capacities, both in Pakistan and internationally, from 1972 
to 1996. He was International President of WWF from 1996 
to 1999 succeeding HRH Prince Philip, the Duke of Edin-
burgh. He is now Vice President Emeritus, WWF Interna-
tional, and President Emeritus WWF-Pakistan. 

He set up Babar Ali Foundation in 1985. The Foundation 
gives about a million dollars a year primarily for educa-
tion and health in Pakistan. He is also a member of Layton 
Rehmatullah Benevolent Trust Karachi and Shalamar Hos-
pital Lahore.

Honours and Awards
He received honours and awards from the Government of 
Sweden, the Netherlands, an OBE from Britain (1997), and 
was awarded an Honorary Doctorate Degree of Laws from 
McGill University, Montreal, Canada (1997). 

Other directorships and offices

Chairman
> Ali Institute of Education
> Acumen Fund
> Babar Ali Foundation
> Coca Cola Beverages Pakistan Ltd
> Gurmani Foundation
> IGI Insurance Ltd
> IGI Investment Bank Ltd
> National Management Foundation
> Industrial Technical and Educational Institute
> Tetra Pak Pakistan Ltd
> Tri-Pack Films Ltd
> Sanofi - Aventis Pakistan Ltd
> Syed Maratib Ali Religious and Charitable Trust Society

Director 
> Nestle Pakistan Ltd
> Bayer Cropscience Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd 

Pro-Chancellor
> Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS)

Syed Babar Ali
Chairman
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Term of office: 
Sep. 22, 2011

Skills and experience
Mr. Hamdani, who started his carrier in 
Siemens Pakistan in early nineties, has 
more than twenty years of solid and 
diverse experience in Siemens, which 
includes responsibilities in Siemens 
AG, Siemens Saudia and UAE with last 
assignment as Director of strategy and 
engineering at Siemens AG Oil and Gas 
headquarters at Abu Dhabi. His experi-
ence includes sales, operations, execu-
tion, integration, business development, 
account management and general man-
agement.

He holds a Bachelors Degree in Electrical 
Sciences from University of Engineering 
and Technology, Lahore Pakistan. His 
major achievements include establish-
ment, development and  operating a 
successful set up with the world’s larg-
est National Oil Company, Saudi Aramco, 
consolidation and turnaround of the divi-
sion for Industrial Solutions (IIS) within 
Siemens Saudi Arabia, with key focus on 
the  petrochemical , metals , power and 
water sectors. He was also responsible 
for Integrating and building a strong 
competence for Siemens Water Technol-
ogy as well as successfully integrating 
all major Siemens acquisitions which he 
transformed into profitable operational 
businesses in Saudi Arabia.

Ali Hamdani
Chief Executive Officer
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Bahauddin Khan
Director

Term of office:
Jul. 6, 2010 

Skills and experience
Senior executive with 30 years of acumen in banking sector 
which include Operations, Compliance, Information Technol-
ogy, Trade Finance and Treasury, along with broad spectrum 
expertise in Human Resources Management and General 
Administration. His wide and varied leadership experience 
comes from working for some of the leading multi-national 
and local big banks like Standard Chartered Bank, Deutsche 
Bank A.G., United Bank Ltd. and Union Bank Ltd.  Result ori-
ented individual with analytical and structured approach to 
business problems. 

He holds a degree in Master of Business Administration from 
Quaid-e-Azam University, Islamabad, Pakistan.

Other directorships and offices

Chairman
> National Institutional Facilitation Technologies Limited  
 (NIFT)
> Horsham Rural City Council (HRCC)

Director
> National Investment Trust Limited (NITL)
> National Refinery Limited (NRL)

Group Executive / SEVP
> United Bank Limited
     Global Operations and IT

Board Committee Membership
> Audit Committee

Christian Knie
Director

Term of office: 
Jul. 30, 2009 
Re-elected on Nov. 26, 2009

Skills and experience
Mr. Knie, an Austrian national, has a diversified portfolio of 
experience of almost thirty years around the globe. He holds a 
Masters Degree in Business Administration from Heriott Watt 
University and Knightsbridge University, Denmark and a PhD 
from Western Pacific University, USA.

He started his career from Siemens AG Austria – SAGO in 1981. 
He was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of Paper and Steel 
Industry, Vienna in 1990. Since, then he has been managing 
the financial affairs of various subsidiary companies and divi-
sions of Siemens AG as CFO. These assignments were including 
various CFO-functions as CFO of Siemens Ltd in Seoul as well 
as in the Division of Mobility (Transportation Systems) with 
assignments in Vienna and in the Headquarter in Erlangen. 
Further, this era (starting 2000) comprised the CFO-function 
with responsibility for the global manufacturing and sales of 
Metro Vehicles with key operations in Europe, North America 
and China. This stage was followed by his assignment to the 
Middle East (2003), namely as CFO for the RC in Egypt while he 
took over the post of CFO for all operations of Siemens in the 
Middle East starting as of mid of 2008.

Other directorships and offices

Director
> Siemens Slovenia
> Siemens S.A.E Egypt
> Siemens Iran SSK

Chief Financial Officer
> Middle East Cluster

Board Committee Membership
> Audit Committee
> Compliance Committee
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Dr. Udo Niehage
Director

Term of office: 
Apr. 10, 2008 
Re-elected on Nov. 26, 2009

Skills and experience
Dr. Niehage is Chief Executive Officer of the Power Transmis-
sion Division, Energy Sector in Siemens AG, Germany, a posi-
tion he holds since January 2008.

He started his career at Siemens in 1988 as Head of Sales and 
Project Manager. In 1992, he moved to ABB in Mannheim, Ger-
many, where he worked as Head of Engineering and Technol-
ogy Department.

After various management positions at ABB in Germany and 
Switzerland, he joined as Head of Sales and Energy Trading 
at BEWAG AG in Berlin. In the year 2000, Dr. Niehage returned 
back to Siemens as Head of Medium Voltage Switchgear Sub-
division. One year later, he became responsible for the whole 
Medium Voltage Division.

From October 2003 until December 2007 Dr. Niehage was Presi-
dent of the Siemens AG Power Transmission and Distribution 
Group.

After studying electrical engineering (power systems) and 
general business administration at Technical University TU 
Munich, Germany and at Technical University, RWTH Aachen, 
Germany, he received a doctor’s degree in engineering.

Other directorships and offices

Chief Executive Officer
> Power Transmission Division, Siemens AG, Germany

Director
> Siemens Energy, Inc., USA

Board Committee Membership
> Compliance Committee

Dietmar Siersdorfer
Director

Term of office: 
Jul. 6, 2010

Skills and experience
Mr. Siersdorfer took over the present responsibility for the Sie-
mens Energy Business in the Cluster Middle East in June 2007. 
This encounters the whole set of divisions from Oil & Gas, Fos-
sil Power Generation, Power  Transmission, Power Distribution, 
Renewable Power and related Service. 

Prior to this assignment he was the President of the global, 
Fossil Energy Solutions business within the Siemens Power 
Generation, with a total business volume of €4 billion with 
4000 employees.

From May 2004 to October 2006, Mr. Siersdorfer was Executive 
Senior Vice President for Fossil Power Generation for Europe, 
Africa, Middle East and India, and was responsible for sales 
and marketing in those regions. Before coming to the power 
generation business, Mr. Siersdorfer was employed at Siemens 
Industry Solutions and Services, being the head of the subdi-
vision for Manufacturing Execution Systems. Mr. Siersdorfer 
spanned more than 2 years at Siemens Malaysia.

In 1987 Mr. Siersdorfer joined Siemens in Mannheim/Germany, 
where he was responsible as project manager and later as 
Department manager.

Other directorships and offices

Director
> Siemens Iran SSK, Iran
> Siemens Electrical and Electronic Services K.S.C.C. Kuwait 
> Iscosa Industries & Maintenance Co. Saudi Arabia

Sector Cluster Lead 
> Energy Sector - Middle East

Board Committee Membership
> Audit Committee

32
 24 Our Company

 24 Company Information
 27 Management Board
 29 Directors’ Profile
 34 Directors‘ Report
 54 Board Committees
 56 Awards and Accolades



 68 Our Technology  101 Financial Data  150 Shareholders’ Information

Helmut Steidle
Director

Joerg Steinhaeuser
Director

Term of office: 
Oct. 23, 2010.

Skills and experience
Mr. Helmut Steidle is Vice President of Corporate Develop-
ment Strategy for Middle East and Africa, located at Siemens 
AG Headquarters Munich, Germany, a position he holds since 
2001.

During 1993-1998 he worked as a Deputy Commercial Direc-
tor in Johannesburg, South Africa, followed by Chief Financial 
Officer and Member of the Board Siemens Nixdorf Information 
System Pty. Ltd. for Australia and New Zealand, located in Syd-
ney Australia.

From April 1998 until January 2001 Mr. Steidle was Vice presi-
dent and CFO for Siemens ICP Computer Systems Americas and 
Asia/Pacific located in Silicon Valley / San Jose.

He worked during 1984 -1987 as a Commercial Manager for 
Sales for South / West Europe within Siemens AG Data / Infor-
mation System.  

He started his career at Siemens in 1972 and represented vari-
ous national and international management positions for Sie-
mens AG.

Other directorships and offices

Director
> Siemens SSK, Tehran, Iran 
> Siemens S.A.E. Egypt

Vice President
> Vice President Corporate Strategies Siemens AG, Germany

Term of office: 
Jul. 30, 2009 
Re-elected on Nov. 26, 2009

Skills and experience
Mr. Steinhaeuser posses wide experiences in the field of 
finance in various capacities around the world including Chief 
Financial Officer Position, Vice President Business Adminis-
tration Business Segment Siemens AG, Head of Accounting 
Siemens N.V. Netherlands and Authorized Representative of 
Siemens International Holding N.V. Netherlands. 

Other directorships and offices

Director
> Siemens Limited Egypt
> Siemens Limited Middle East FZ-LLC, Dubai

Vice President 
> Corporate Shareholding Controlling department of 
 Siemens AG

Board Committee Membership
> Audit Committee
> Compliance Committee
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Dear Fellow Shareholders
The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report and the audited financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended on September 30, 2011 together with auditors’ 
report thereon.

The year 2011 has been the most challenging and difficult 
year for the Company since the last decade. Apart from re-
gional economic slow down particularly in UAE, the local eco-
nomical, political and law and order situation, combined with 
stiff competition from local as well as Chinese Companies, 
further dampened the business opportunities in each busi-
ness segment resulting in lower Order intake, turnover and 
profitability for the Company.

As anticipated, the decision to cease further bidding in Dubai 
due to economic slow down, has drastically reduced the turn-
over and profitability in current financial year. The business 
input from Dubai in financial year 2010 was about 37% of total 
turnover and 22% of total profit which was nominal for the 
current year. 

 With our product portfolio, expertise, local presence 
and global support, the company has tremendous po-
tential to grow
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Despite these challenges and low profitability of the 
Company during the year, the Board is pleased to 
announce a final cash dividend of Rs. 10 per Ordi-
nary share of Rs. 10 each (100%). Although it is 
the Board’s vision to maintain consistency in dec-
laration of dividend, and at the same time to meet 
the expectation of the shareholders, however, tak-
ing into consideration the operational profitability 
of the Company during the year and to meet the 
future financial requirements, the Board considers 
the above declaration as appropriate. 

The Board and management of the Company 
believes that the current situation is only a tempo-
rary phase, and projects enormous potential for 
the Company to grow in the short as well as in the 
mid and long term, taking into consideration our 
portfolio, expertise, local presence and global sup-
port. 

The Board considers sustainability as the key to 
success in the present competitive environment and 
is very much focused to enforce appropriate actions 
to maintain future business volume and profitabil-
ity at the levels of past years. For this purpose, the 
Board decided to get the benefit of Siemens global 
resources and asked the in house management 
consultants to study the current situation and pro-
pose corrective actions, where necessary, in rela-
tion to present portfolio, markets, organization and 
costs etc. The preliminary proposals have already 
been reviewed by the Board and necessary actions 
and adjustments including reorganization and 

restructuring, where applicable, shall be made 
after final results of the study. All this is being done 
to set up strategic directions to recover and increase 
shareholders value. 

The Board of directors remained vigilant throughout 
the year and kept a close eye on the situation, which 
is evident from the fact that seven Board meetings 
and seven Audit Committee meetings were held 
during the year, with the aim to achieve the ulti-
mate goal of maximization of shareholders wealth, 
safeguarding of their interest and promotion of mar-
ket confidence.

Compliance with internal and external rules and 
regulations and business conduct guidelines, as 
usual remained top priority of the Board with zero 
tolerance for non compliant behavior and clear tone 
from the top that only clean business is Siemens 
business.

Changes in the Executive Office

Mr. Ali Hamdani took over as Director and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company effective Septem-
ber 22, 2011. Mr. Hamdani, who started his career in 
Siemens Pakistan in early nineties, has more than 
twenty years of solid and diverse experience in Sie-
mens, which includes responsibilities in Siemens 
AG, Siemens Saudia and UAE with last assignment 
as Director of strategy and engineering at Siemens 
AG Oil and Gas headquarters at Abu Dhabi. The 
Board has full confidence that under his leader-
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ship the Company will grow further and would suc-
cessfully be out of the current situation in the near 
future. 

Mr. Sohail Wajahat H. Siddiqui resigned as CEO and 
Director with effect from September 12, 2011. The 
Board expresses its appreciation for the services 
rendered by Mr. Siddiqui during his association with 
the Company. 

Business and Performance Review

Being part of the local industry and like other Com-
panies, Siemens Pakistan was also hit hard by the 
factors elaborated above, and thus could not meet 
the targets set for the year. A Company level over-
view of performance during the year has been sum-
marized as follows:

New Orders

During the year, new orders of Rs. 13.3 billion 
(2010: Rs. 21 billion) have been received showing a 
decrease of 37% over the corresponding period. Rea-

sons for decline includes cessation of further bid-
ding in Dubai due to slow down in economic activity, 
which contributed new orders of Rs. 4 billion in the 
financial year 2010, delay in finalization of orders by 
public utility companies in the backdrop of design 
change in Transformers and loss of some orders due 
to competition with Chinese companies and delay 
in finalization of certain infrastructure projects in 
public sector. The new orders mainly include orders 
in Energy Sector.

Sales 

The Company was able to achieve the sales volume 
of Rs. 15.1 billion (2010: Rs 26.248 billion) showing 
a decrease of 43% over previous year. One reason 
for the sharp decline in turnover is cessation of fur-
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ther bidding in Dubai which contributed turnover 
worth Rs.9.7 billion in the year 2010 as compared 
to Rs. 2.5 billion in current year. Further, turnover 
for the year has also been affected by drastic reduc-
tion in new orders intake during the year. Moreover, 
as mentioned earlier, delay in finalization of orders 
from public utility companies also had an impact on 
turnover of Transformers. Some of the orders could 
not be executed due to shortage of funds in the Gov-
ernment and public sector. 

Profit

The profits of the Company reduced significantly as 
compared to the corresponding year and stand at Rs. 
158 million before tax, mainly due to sharp reduc-
tion in sales volume and related margins. Further, in 
view of severe liquidity problems with some of the 
customers, including some public sector organiza-
tions, provisions have been made against doubtful 

receivables. Costs related to consultancy project, ini-
tiated by the Board of Directors also have an impact 
on the current profitability of the Company. Further, 
healthcare segment incurred a loss of Rs. 124 mil-
lion during the year due to less business opportuni-
ties and non absorption of their overheads. 

Earnings per share

The earnings per share (EPS) after taxation was Rs 
8.17 (2010: Rs. 122.62). As there is no movement in 
the number of shares, the only contributor to this 
decline in EPS is the low profitability. 
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Performance of Business Segments

Energy Sector

This segment offers a wide spectrum of products, 
services and solutions for the generation, transmis-
sion and distribution of power, and the extraction, 
conversion and transport of oil and gas, It primarily 
addresses the needs of energy providers, but also 

serves industrial companies, particularly in oil and 
gas sector. The sector is made up of six divisions, 
Fossil Power Generation, Renewable Energy (con-
sisting of Wind and Solar Energy), Oil and Gas, En-
ergy Service, Power Transmission and Power Distri-
bution.

Segment Performance

During the year, new orders of Rs. 8.6 billion (2010: 
Rs. 13.9 billion) have been received showing a 
decrease of 38% over the corresponding period. One 
reason for decline in new orders pertains to cessa-
tion of energy transmission projects in Dubai. This 
business segment of Energy Sector was also hit hard 
in the country for various reasons including slow 
decision making in the Public Sector for large proj-
ects, very minimal investment in Private Sector and 
influx of Chinese Companies in Pakistan offering 
the projects and products at very low prices. How-
ever, Energy service progressed well and was able 

Segment Performance 

 Energy Industry Healthcare Total

2011 ------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-------------------------

New Orders  8,555,041  4,521,086  257,932  13,334,059 

Turnover  9,758,129  5,010,710  290,717  15,059,556 

Profit before interest and tax  112,952  199,499 (124,111)  188,340 

     

2010

New Orders  13,896,050  6,836,025  281,825  21,013,900 

Turnover  19,227,202  6,444,430  577,210  26,248,842 

Profit before interest and tax  1,390,821  373,865 12,665  1,777,351 
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to secure a long term maintenance contract from a 
power generation company of approximately Rs. 1.0 
billion.

The sector posted sales volume of Rs. 9.8 billion 
(2010: Rs 19.2 billion) showing a decrease of 49% 
over previous year. The sharp decline in turnover is 
mainly due to cessation of further bidding in Dubai, 
which contributed turnover worth Rs.9.7 billion in 
the year 2010 as compared to Rs. 2.5 billion in cur-
rent year. Further, turnover for the year has also 
been affected by drastic reduction in new orders 
intake in other business units, especially transform-
ers where turnover has declined by Rs. 1.6 billion 
which is mainly on account of the slow decision 
making in the Public Sector in the back drop of the 
new design introduced by WAPDA for the Distribu-
tion Transformers. At the same time the segment 
successfully completed some high voltage substa-
tion projects in Afghanistan.

The profits at sector level have significantly shrunk 
as compared to the corresponding year and stand at 
Rs. 113 million before tax, mainly due to sharp reduc-
tion in sales, one time cost incurred on account of 
the consultancy service and other reasons as already 
discussed earlier. 

The major highlights of the segment during the year 
include:

 >  Award of 220 KV and 132 KV High Voltage Substa-
tion projects from various customers

 > Award of a long term maintenance and service 
contract for a power plant

 >  Supply of newly designed Low Loss and Energy 
Efficient Distribution Transformers to various dis-
tribution companies

 >  Successful completion of 132 KV and 220 KV High 
Voltage Substation for different customers in Pak-
istan

 >  Successful completion of various substations proj-
ects in different cities of Afghanistan

 >  Export of Specialist Outage Services to Baiji Iraq
 >  Export of Automation Testing and Commissioning 
Services to Sri Lanka and Saudi Arabia

 >  Supply of first “Footprint” Steam Turbine of 400KW 
to Army Welfare Sugar Mills

 >  Supply of Augmentation Services using Siemens 
innovative Si3D blades to Kot Addu Power Com-
pany

Future Prospects

With the overall gap between the demand and sup-
ply situation of Energy in Pakistan and the Govern-
ment’s commitment to overcome the shortage in 
the near future, the Energy Sector continue to offer 
remarkable opportunities. Increase in PSDP alloca-
tion from Rs.462 billion in 2010-11 to Rs.730 billion in 
2011-12 resulted in under mentioned developments 
offering several opportunities in the Energy Sector: 

 > Government incentives to set up Wind Power 
Plants have attracted large number of investors 

 > Government is trying to attract investors to exploit 
Thar coal reserves

www.siemens.com/energy

Power Transmission

Energy Sector
Renewable Energy

Oil and Gas

Fossil Power Generation

Energy Service

Power Distribution
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 > Expansion of 500KV and 220KV transmission net-
work by National Transmission and Dispatch Com-
pany. ADB, World Bank and JICA commit major 
financing for these projects

 > Expansion of 132KV network by Distribution com-
panies, financed mostly by ADB and World Bank

 > Karachi Electricity Supply Company to expand the 
transmission network for better utilization of 
power generated by upcoming Bin Qasim Power 
plant – II

The government of Afghanistan continues to 
strengthen the transmission network with the assis-
tance of USAID and World Bank thus providing sev-
eral opportunities for transmission projects,

Industry Sector

This sector offers a complete spectrum of products, 
system, solutions and services for the Industry and 
infrastructure for bringing in efficiency in the pro-

duction and process flows of our clientele, thus con-
tributing to their top line. Its integrated technolo-
gies and holistic solutions address primarily 
industrial customers, such as process and manufac-
turing industries, and infrastructure customers, es-
pecially in areas of transport, building and utilities. 
This sector is made up of five divisions, Industry Au-
tomation, Drive Technologies, Building Technolo-
gies, Industry Solutions and Mobility. 

Segment Performance

New orders worth Rs. 4.5 billion (2010: Rs. 6.8 
billion) were secured during the year showing a 
decrease of 34% over the corresponding period. The 
significant decline in order intake by Rs 2.4 billion 
for infrastructure projects pertains mainly due to 
delay in finalization of projects by our customers. 

The sector posted sales volume of Rs. 5.0 billion 
(2010: Rs 6.4 billion) showing a decrease of 22% over 
previous year. The turnover has declined in line with 
the order intake reduction. Some of the projects in 
hand could not be executed due to lack of funds 
with the customers particularly in the public sector.

The segment profits stood at Rs. 199 million as com-
pared to Rs. 374 million in 2010. Although the seg-
ment gross margin improved from 12.4% to 15.1%, 
the increase in selling expense from 5.6% to 10.1% 
resulted in decline of net profit margin from 5.8% 
in 2010 to 4% in 2011. The main reason for decline 
in profit is delay in execution of projects in hand, 
reduced order intake, provisions for receivables and 
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excess costs against public sector projects and some 
one time costs.

The significant orders contributing to turnover and 
profitability includes the following:

 > Three-years call-out Contract for Mechanical, Elec-
trical, Instrumentation, Civil and Pipeline (MEICP) 
Works of Bhit Gas Field for ENI Pakistan

 > Power and Telecommunication Network for Bena-
zir Bhutto International Airport (BBIA)

 > Yanbu Cement Diesel Power Plant Expansion Proj-
ect, Saudi Arabia

 > Supply and Installation Works including Electrical, 
Mechanical, Fire Security, Fire Alarm and BMS 
works for Tetra Pak Pakistan Lahore Ltd, Lahore

 > External Electrification System, Underground and 
HT/LT overhead for DHA Lahore Rahbar Sector

 > SAP-ERP and IT Solutions for Mayfair Spinning 
Mills; SAP-ERP for National Telecommunication 
Corporation (NTC)

Future Prospects

Under the present infrastructural development 
requirements in Pakistan and Afghanistan the Indus-
try segment is again well poised for securing sizable 
market share in the future as well. Furthermore, 
the increased PSDP allocation for fiscal year 2011-12 
in local market reflects a positive attitude towards 
rehabilitation and growth in Pakistan. Moreover, 
this sector through its strong product portfolios and 
solutions for Vertical Segments e.g. Food and Bever-
ages, Chemical, Cement and Pulp and Paper Water 

Technologies Products and Customer Services has 
an edge over its competitors and thus promises bet-
ter prospects in the forthcoming years also.

Healthcare Sector

This sector is divided into three divisions which of-
fer the customer with modern technological medi-
cal equipment and solutions. These divisions pro-
vide Imaging and Therapy solutions, clinical 
products and solutions, Diagnostic products and 
solutions and services. The Sector is also providing 
local sales and services support for projects directly 
entered by Siemens AG for which it earns commis-
sion income. This is a major portion of the business 
as most of the customers enjoy exemptions and im-
porting equipment directly is cost effective, com-
plete sales support for these projects is provided lo-
cally. 

www.siemens.com/industry

Industry Automation

Industry Sector Building Technologies

Drive Technologies

Industry Solutions

Mobility
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Segment Performance

All the captions in health care segment did not 
meet the budgeted results, where during the year 
a net loss of Rs. 124 million was posted. Apart from 
lower order intake and turnover than the budget, 
the resultant reduced margins were wiped off by the 
overheads including certain one time costs. How-
ever, a strategy backed by a business plan is already 
in place to achieve growth in business volume is 
planned for the next year to maintain its market 
position.

Being a smaller segment in comparison to other sec-
tors, Healthcare segment was able to achieve a sales 
volume of Rs. 290.7 million (2010: Rs. 577 million). 
Major Orders during the year include:

 > Cardiac angiography system for Combined Mili-
tary Hospital, Lahore

 > Universal Angiography machine for Military Hos-
pital Rawalpindi

 > 1.5T MRI Machine for Ziauddin University Hospital, 
Karachi

 > 2 x Permanent Magnet 0.35T MRI systems from 
DGP Army, Rawalpindi

 > 1.5T MRI Machine in Peshawar Institute of Medical 
Sciences, Peshawar

 > CT Scanner for Pakistan Aeronautical Complex 
(PAC)

 > Equipment for Shaukat Khanum Hospital’s new 
project of Diagnostic Imaging Center in Karachi

Future Prospects

The current state of healthcare facilities in the coun-
try, number of hospitals in comparison to the size of 
population, its growth and increased public aware-
ness for better healthcare, offer a lot of opportuni-
ties for this segment of the Company. The budget 
cuts by the public agencies in healthcare devel-
opment programs have created room for private 
investors to offer quality treatment and diagnostic 
facilities to common man. The sector also plans to 
develop new channels for better market coverage. 

www.siemens.com/healthcare

Healthcare Sector

Clinical products 
and solutions

Diagnostic products, 
solutions and services

Imaging and Therapy 
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Overall Future Outlook 

The consultancy study undertaken on the initiative 
of the Board revealed that Pakistani market shows 
real attractiveness based on the following facts:

 > Pakistan on the way to 4th most populous country 
 > Real GDP growth 2010 – 2030 greater then 4%
 > Pakistan has been indicated as “Next – 11” growth 
market by Goldman Sachs

 > Growth and already existing energy shortfall of 
6,000 to 7,000 MW drive demand for energy infra-
structure

 > Strong international funding interests
 > Availability of educated workforce

In the fiscal year 2011-12 real GDP is expected to grow 
by 4.2% against revised estimates of 2.4% whereas 
total outlay for PSDP for 2011-12 is set at Rs. 730 bil-
lion against Rs. 462 billion in 2010-11. All the above 
factors and the allocation of funds under PSDP, the 
state of infrastructure and health facilities, govern-
ment’s plan and interest of private sector to generate 
energy from alternative and renewable sources, the 
Company is well positioned and have attractive 
opportunities and potential to grow and capture 
the future market. The Company’s long existence in 
the country and its roots in every field of the local 
industry provide an upper hand over its competitors.

Moreover, Afghanistan is emerging as a big market 
where USAID has already initiated an Infrastructure 
and Rehabilitation Program (IRP) aiming to spur 

Afghanistan’s economic recovery and political sta-
bility through the reconstruction, rehabilitation 
and development of important physical infrastruc-
ture throughout the country. The energy sector has 
already secured and honored few contracts in last 
years. The Company, with its diversified portfolio 
of solutions, products and services in three differ-
ent sectors, is highly capable to play a vital role in 
the rehabilitation and reconstruction program in 
Afghanistan.

The newly established Infrastructure and Cities 
Sector has helped us to align our services, products 
and solutions for customers from all walks of life. 
The sector covers solutions for large cities, utilities, 
buildings, locomotives and large infrastructure facil-
ities. Our solutions cover low and medium voltage 
solutions to make infrastructure, smart, cost effec-
tive and energy efficient. This sector can provide 
solutions for mega cities like Karachi and has 
enormous potential for upward growth. 

Being part of Siemens regional cluster Middle East 
(ME), the Company has a fair chance of access to 
the markets of eighteen ME countries with the help 
of our local partners in those countries. 

However, the future business outlook for the Com-
pany is prone to various types of risks and to a high 
degree dependent on the development in the eco-
nomic, political and security situation of the country 
as well as in Afghanistan and availability of funds 
with the government for infrastructure projects. 
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Risk Management

No business is with out risks. Risks can be diluted 
and managed to a certain extent. Those who are 
able to foresee these risks and adopt appropriate 
strategies for their mitigation can reduce their im-
pact on business performance. 

Risk management is an ongoing process involving 
assessing and identifying individual risks posed to 
the Company and evaluating the potential impact 
thereof. Risk management at Siemens is based on 
a comprehensive, interactive and management-ori-
ented Risk Management approach that is integrated 
into the organization and that addresses both risks 
and opportunities. 

Major risks identified through this process and their 
response plan are summarized below:

Strategic risks
Unfavorable economic and political policies and 
conditions, security concerns in the country and 
competitor’s behavior creates a risk of reduction in 
market size, loss of business and related margins.

Mitigation

Consistent monitoring of the economic reforms 
portrayed by the government and translating such 
reforms into business opportunities. Strategic reori-
entations and continuous cost rationalization initia-
tives, capacity adjustments through consolidation 
of business activities as well as streamlining prod-
uct portfolios, exploration of new sources of low 
cost products to reduce cost are some of the steps 
to manage the overall strategic risks. Moreover, con-
tinuous liaison with law enforcement agencies and 
communication of security concerns to the employ-
ees in advance to handle the security risks affecting 
our strategic assets.

Operational risks
The operational risks includes risks related to cus-
tomers relationships, project management risks 
such as timely completion and change in estimates, 
environment, health and safety risks, supply chain 
management risks, human resource related risks 
and risks pertaining to information technology.

Mitigation

The Company through its management operating 
style addresses these risks individually in the course 
of its business operations. The management deter-

  No business is without risks
 Risk management at Siemens is based on 
   a comprehensive, interactive and 
  management-oriented approach addressing both risks and opportunities
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mines risk response strategy for such risks which 
includes avoid, transfer, reduce or accept strategy. 
The response plan is devised thereafter for such 
risks and remedial actions are executed thereafter. 

Financial risks
Due to volatility of foreign exchange market, the 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curren-
cies may result in exchange losses beyond anticipa-
tion. The circular debt and shortage of funds and 
liquidity, particularly with public sector organization 
and customers in Dubai, increased the risk of delay 
and defaults on receivable collections. Risk of incur-
ring delay penalties (liquidated damages) exists 
due to delay in completion of projects and supply 
of products. Blockage of company’s funds in receiv-
ables may create liquidity problems.

Mitigation

Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedg-
ing its exposure by obtaining forward cover, wher-
ever possible. In order to limit credit risk, credit 
limits are assigned to customers based on an exten-
sive credit rating scorecard system. Receivables are 
monitored regularly and appropriate provisions are 
created against bad and doubtful debts. Restructur-
ing and/or discounting of receivables is made where 
possible. Regular monitoring of project completion 
schedule is ensured in order to avoid delays. Suf-
ficient credit lines are available with the external 
banks and Siemens Financial Services. Moreover, 
receivables are vigorously followed up and effective 
monitoring or reporting is in place.

Compliance risk
Non compliance of Local or International laws and 
regulation may result in imposition of penalties, 
debarment, black listing, license cancellation etc, 
which may eventually affect the business opera-
tions and brand name of the Company.

Mitigation

A very comprehensive and effective compliance 
program is in place in the Company. The Company’s 
approach to governance is predicated on the belief 
that there is a link between high-quality governance 
and the creation of long-term shareholder value. 
The Business Conduct Guidelines (BCG) clearly 
defines our expectations from all directors, execu-
tives and other employees and those to whom we 
contract business. 

In order to justify the trust placed in Siemens by cus-
tomers, partners, shareholders and employees, the 
integrity and transparency of business processes 
is the top priority. For this, it is considered impera-
tive for Siemens to find out about any compliance 
breaches, in particularly violations of the Siemens 
Business Conduct Guidelines. In turn Siemens also 
expects employees and business partners to report 
compliance violations that they encounter. To facili-
tate the purpose various reporting channels have 
been established assuring that individuals can and 
should report actual or apparent compliance viola-
tions (anonymously if they wish) confident in the 
knowledge that no retaliation or reprisals of any 
kind would be tolerated. 
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The policy is designed to encourage individuals 
to report compliance concerns in confidence and 
ensure them that there will be no adverse conse-
quences or any stigma associated with the report-
ing of compliance concerns. At the same time it also 
highlights that sanctions may be imposed against 
individuals who knowingly misuse the compliance 
processes with the intent to wrongly accuse other 
employees.

To achieve the foregoing objectives of the policy 
Siemens provides channels such as Compliance 
Helpdesk “Tell Us” and Ombudsman, via which com-
pliance issues may be reported. These channels may 
be accessed by anyone around the globe through 
Siemens website.

Appropriations 

Following is the summary of appropriations made 
during the year.

Corporate Governance Practices

At Siemens the corporate governance framework 
includes involvement of the Board in the strategic 
planning process and consideration of all significant 
matters and decisions, establishment of clear Board 
and Management responsibilities and power shar-
ing arrangements, establishment of processes for 
the timely reporting and review of information, and 
most importantly to allow effective and responsive 
actions to be made thereon. This has resulted in im-
proved understanding of the respective roles of the 
Board and Management and the Board is able to in-
troduce appropriate governance processes and pro-
cedures, under which Management is free to man-
age, while the Board is free to monitor, enquire and 
counsel.

 

(Rupees in 

thousands)

Retained earnings - October 01, 2010 2,450,551

Net profit after taxation for the year ended 
September 30, 2011 67,408

Appropriations  

Final dividend @ Rs. 60 per share for the year 
ended September 30, 2010  (494,822) 

Transfer to General Reserve  (500,000) 

Retained earnings – September 30, 2011 1,523,137 

  To justify the trust placed in Siemens
 by all stakeholders, the integrity and transparency 
   of business processes is the top priority

 18 Information for Stakeholders 10 Our Profile  24 Our Company 24 Our Company

 24 Company Information
 27 Management Board
 29 Directors’ Profile
 34 Directors‘ Report
 54 Board Committees
 56 Awards and Accolades



47

Adherence to best practices
The Company strictly adheres to the principles of 
Corporate Governance mandated by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and have 
implemented all the prescribed stipulations. The 
same have been summarized in statement of com-
pliance with best practices of code of corporate 
governance which is also reviewed by the external 
auditors.

Directors Statements
The Directors are pleased to state that: 

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the man-
agement of the company, present fairly its state 
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows 
and changes in equity. 

(b) Proper books of account have been maintained 
by the Company. 

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements, except for change in policy reported 
in note 3.20 of annexed accounts. Further, the 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment. 

(d) International Accounting Standards (IAS) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been fol-
lowed in preparation of financial statements and 
any departure there from has been adequately 

disclosed. The Company has adopted the 
changes made in IAS 19 earlier then required as 
a best practice. The policy change in (c) relates 
to this adoption of IAS. 

(e) The system of internal control is sound in design 
and has been effectively implemented and mon-
itored. 

(f) There are no significant doubts upon the Com-
pany’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

(g) There has been no material departure from 
the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the listing regulations.
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Changes in the Board of Directors 
Following is the status of changes in Board of directors during the year and composition of the Board:

Changes in the Board of Directors 

Balance of Board

Independent - Non Executive Dependent 

Chairman Director Executive Directors
Non - Executive 

Directors

October 1, 2010 1 1 2 4

Date Resignation of:

October 1, 2010 Gerhard Wilcke - - (1) -
September 12, 2011 Sohail Wajahat H. Siddiqui - - (1) -

Appointment of:
October 23, 2010 Helmut Steidle - - - 1
September 22, 2011 Ali Hamdani - - 1 -

September 30, 2011 1 1 1 5
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Meetings and activities during the Year   
During the year, seven meetings of the Board and Audit Committee were held for consideration of periodic 
financial statements as well as for consideration of other significant matters.

* As there was no change in the audit and compliance committee during the year, all the members were required to attend all 

the meetings.

 

Committees 

Board and committee composition and attendance Board Audit Compliance

Meetings held 7 7 4

Required to 
attend

Actual 
attendance

Actual 
attendance

Actual 
attendance

Non – Executive Directors

Syed Babar Ali 7
3 

(Chairman) - -

Christian Knie 7 7 
7 

(Chairman)
3 

(Chairman)

Dr. Udo Niehage 7 4 - 3

Joerg Steinhaeuser 7 7 7 4

Dietmar Siersdorfer 7 6 5 -

Bahauddin Khan 7 4 3 -

Helmut Steidle 7 4 - -

Executive Directors

Ali Hamdani 1 1 - -

Outgoing Directors

Gerhard Wilcke - - - -

Sohail Wajahat. H. Siddiqui 6 6 - 4
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The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer 
There exists a clear division of responsibilities 
between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for the fol-
lowing matters pertaining to the leadership of the 
Board:

 > Ensuring appropriate Board composition
 > Ensuring effective Board processes
 > Setting the Board’s agenda
 >  Ensuring that Directors are properly briefed in 
order to take a full and constructive part in Board 
and Board Committee discussions

 > Ensuring effective communication with share-
holders; and 

 > Ensuring constructive relations between execu-
tive and non-executive directors

The Chief Executive Officer is entrusted with the 
whole powers of management of affairs of the Com-
pany, in accordance with the directions of the Board, 
which among others mainly include the following:

 > Framing strategy proposals for the Board
 >  Formulating annual and periodic plans charting 
how this strategy will be delivered

 > Appraising the Board of all matters which materi-
ally affect the Company and its performance, 
including any significantly underperforming Sec-
tor

 > Leadership of executive management to enable 
the Company’s businesses to deliver the require-
ment of shareholders

 > Ensuring adequate, well-motivated and incentiv-
ized management resources

 > Ensuring succession planning;
 > Ensuring appropriate business processes includ-
ing Internal Control System; and

 > Ensuring effective Risk Management System and 
monitoring

External Auditors 
The present external auditors, Ernst and Young Ford 
Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants shall 
retire at the conclusion of the upcoming Annual 
General Meeting on January 12, 2012 and being eli-
gible; offer themselves for reappointment for the 
year 2011-12.

As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board 
recommends their reappointment for the year end-
ing September 30, 2012 by the Shareholders.

Corporate Status 
Siemens Pakistan is a subsidiary of Siemens Aktieng-
esellschaft, Germany (Siemens AG) which is incor-
porated in Germany and holds 66.10% shares of 
the Company. Siemens AG is one of the largest and 
most diversified companies in the world of electron-
ics and electrical engineering and posses in-house 
knowledge and know-how to find answers to the 
major challenges of today and tomorrow. 
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Contributions 

Towards National Exchequer

The company has contributed Rs. 1,801 million to 
the National Exchequer during the period in the 
form of taxes, duties and other contributions. These 
contributions form 12% of Company’s turnover.  

Towards National Economy

 >  Sales and services executed outside Pakistan of 
Rs.4,256 million (2010: Rs 11,090 million) and a 
sizeable amount of foreign currency attracted into 
Pakistan in terms of profits.

 > The Company has made purchases from local ven-
dors amounting to Rs, 2,909 million (2010: Rs 
4,631 million) thereby taking part in increasing 
the local production.

 > The Company employs a big number of work force 
at all its locations and project sites. The total 
remuneration paid during the period amounts to 
Rs. 2,466 million (2010: Rs 2,828 million) which is 
a significant portion of earning of the Company. 

Pattern Of Shareholding

Shares of the Company are listed on Karachi, Lahore 
and Islamabad stock exchanges. There were 929 
shareholders of the Company as of September 30, 
2011. The detailed pattern and categories of share-
holding of the Company including share held by 
directors and executives, if any, are annexed to this 
annual report on page 152 and 153. 

Investment In Retirement Benefits

The company maintains Provident and Gratuity 
funds for its employees which are regulated through 
a Board of Trustees. The value of investments of 
these funds as per their respective financial state-
ments is as follows:

* Value of investment of Gratuity Fund for the year 2010 is 

based on un-audited financial statements

 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008

(Rupees in million)

Provident Fund 700.264 591.237 677.773

 
September 30, 

2010
September 30, 

2009
September 30, 

2008

(Rupees in million)

Gratuity Fund *371.410 340.083 277.176
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Post Balance Sheet Events 

There have been no material changes or events 
since September 30, 2011 to the date of this report, 
which has an impact on the financial statements, 
except the declaration of final dividend which 
is subject to the approval of the Members at the 
59th Annual General Meeting to be held on Janu-
ary 12, 2012. The effect of such declaration shall be 
reflected in the next year’s financial statements.
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The Board wishes to highlight the confidence, support and co-operation of our ex-
tremely valued shareholders, customers, supplier, contractors and financial institu-
tions which enabled us to battle through the crunch time. Not to disregard, our excel-
lent team of executives, officers and workers manifested sheer commitment to stay 
on course. On behalf of the Board, we would like to sincerely thank all of them for 
their support and commitment.

Furthermore, we also appreciate the valuable contribution and active role of audit 
committee in supporting and guiding the management on matters of great impor-
tance leading to maximization of shareholder wealth and safeguard of their interest.

With the new energetic management we plan to look ahead and do everything in our 
power to make the most of the upswing that will come after the crisis and to secure 
our Company a successful position in new growth markets.

We are also thankful for the excellent support and guidance provided to us by our 
parent company and the trust reposed by the shareholders on the management and 
Board of Directors. This support gives confidence and encouragement in achieving 
the targets and application of strategies. 

On behalf of the Board

 Syed Babar Ali “With the new energetic management 
we plan to look ahead and do everything”

Acknowledgment

Syed Babar Ali
Chairman

Ali Hamdani
Chief Executive Officer

November 24, 2011
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Board Committees

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

Audit Committee The Audit Committee comprises of four non-executive directors. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been de-
termined by the Board in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance. Seven meetings of the Committee were held 
during the year in which the following business was considered:

> Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before their consideration by the Board
> Detailed review of Board and management letters issued by the external auditors and management’s response thereto
> Review of compliance with all relevant laws and regulations and other statutory requirements
> Compliance with the best practices of corporate governance
> Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard Company’s assets
> Review of related party transactions
> Review of status of action items from the previous meetings
> Review of internal audit progress reports and discussion on significant findings
> Review of major receivables of the Company including collection action plan and adequacy of provisioning available there-

against

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

Compliance 
Committee

Siemens has Zero tolerance for non-compliance behavior. Siemens’ Compliance Program anchors ethical and legal behavior 
throughout the Company. It includes clear instructions to all employees to comply with all applicable laws. It also contains ad-
ditional regulations regarding, for example, the processing of payments and proper dealings with business partners and con-
sultants. 

In view of importance of the subject, the Board has constituted this Committee which comprises of two executive and three 
non-executive directors. The Regional Compliance Officer (RCO) and Head of Internal Audit are also the members of the Com-
mittee. RCO is also the secretary of this Committee. Four meetings of the Committee were held, in which the Committee per-
formed following tasks, which were in line with their terms of reference: 

> Review of the Company’s overall compliance program and its Key Performance Indicators to ensure that it is well communi-
cated, supports lawful and ethical business conduct by the employees and reduce risks to the Company for non-compliance 
with laws and regulations relating to the Company’s business

> Review the activities of the Compliance Department for each quarter
> Overseeing Company’s compliance related policies, programs and procedures to ensure adherence with relevant laws, Com-

pany’s code of conduct and other relevant standards
> Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance training initiatives on various topics
> In brief discuss open compliance related cases/issues
> Review of results of any Compliance Investigation and recommending appropriate measures
> Review Compliance risks and progress on their remediation plan
> Review of Compliance department resources and costs
> Special initiatives taken such as Collective action program, etc

The Committee is well satisfied with the implementation status and awareness of the Compliance program.
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Corporate Events

EVENTS DATES

Meeting No. 1/2011 2/2011 3/2011 4/2011 5/2011 6/2011 7/2011

Board of Directors meeting 23.10.2010 23.01.2011 28.04.2011 19.07.2011 28.07.2011 04.08.2011 22.09.2011

Audit committee meeting 23.10.2010 23.01.2011 28.04.2011 20.06.2011 28.07.2011 03.08.2011 22.09.2011

Next date of election of  

directors
December 1, 2012

Date of next Annual General 

Meeting
59th Annual General Meeting to be held on January 12, 2012
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Brands of the 
Year Award

Siemens Pakistan maintained its winning streak in the category of Transformers by once again winning 
Brands of the Year award this year. The award is organized jointly by The Exhibitors, Government of Paki-
stan and several related government agencies.

 Business Unit, Transformers was awarded Brands of 
the Year award for being the best in its league.  
The award was received by Mr. Arif Hassan from 
Prime Minister of Pakistan Syed Yousuf Raza Gilani

SAFA Awards 

The annual report 2010 was adjudged as the Best report of South Asia in the Manufacturing Sector by South 
Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA). The report also got 3rd Position in the category of ‘Corporate Gov-
ernance and Disclosure’.

In year 2009, the annual report 2009 was regarded as the overall Best Report of South Asia together with 
‘Certificate of Merit’, in the award category ‘Corporate Governance Disclosure’.

 Company Secretary Mr. Mohammad Rafi receives the 
SAFA award on behalf of Siemens Pakistan

Awards 
and Accolades
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Prestigious 
Management Award

At the 27th Corporate Excellence Awards ceremony of the Management Association of Pakistan, Siemens 
Pakistan was declared the winner in the Industrial and Business category for the second year in succession. 
The competition was launched in 1982 to recognize and promote corporate excellence. The awards are 
presented to the best managed companies in Pakistan, which operate according to the latest management 
methods. The winners are selected on the basis of a number of categories under the direction of FAMCO 
Associates, a well known management consultant firm. 

 Siemens named as one of the best managed compa-
nies this year, at the 27th Corporate Excellent Award

Environmental 
Excellence Award

Siemens Pakistan won the coveted Environment Excellence Award 8th year in a row. This award was insti-
tuted seven years ago by The National Forum for Environment and Health, which is a non-government and 
non-profit organization established in June 1999 with the aim to facilitate, promote and help create envi-
ronmental, healthcare and educational awareness among the masses in general, youth and children in 
particular. The organization is affiliated with the United Nations Environmental program (UNEP) and sup-
ported by the ministry of environment government of Pakistan. The annual environmental excellence 
awards have now become the benchmark for industry in Pakistan. There is a defined criterion for these 
awards and the jury consists of top professionals in the field, who arrive at their judgment in consultation 
with the Environment protection agency. 

For Siemens Pakistan the awards held a special significance. Following the announcement of the Green 
City Index, a study sponsored by the Economist Intelligence Unit and Siemens, the award helped the com-
pany emerge as a role model in the field of environment capable of addressing the environmental and 
energy shortcomings of the country. 

 8 years of consecutive win in environmental excel-
lence for Siemens Pakistan. The award was received 
by Mr. Ejaz Ahmed
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Best Corporate 
Newsletter

‘Siemens Ki Dunya’ was declared Best Corporate Newsletter in Pakistan fourth year running at the 42nd 
award ceremony of The National Council of Culture and Arts, Pakistan. The jury, that comprised of leading 
artists and academics and designers, was once again impressed with both the design and content of the 
publication, applauded the uniqueness of the newsletter awarded it first place among many contenders 
belonging to renowned companies in the country.

 The Siemens Pakistan employee newsletter wins first 
place in the Best Corporate Newsletter awards

Siemens on top 
once again on KSE

Siemens Pakistan was again placed at the top of the top 25 companies of Karachi Stock Exchange second 
year in a row for its performance in the year 2010. The winners are selected on the basis of a comprehensive 
parameter, which includes dividend payout, return on equity, compliance with listing regulations and 
sound corporate governance practices, including corporate social responsibility. Siemens Pakistan has been 
among the top 25 companies since 2001 and was the top company also in 2004 while it was placed second 
from 2005 to 2007.

The award ceremony was held at an impressive function at the President House in Islamabad where the 
award was given by President of Pakistan Mr. Asif Ali Zardari.

The KSE holds this competition to acknowledge best performer companies listed on the KSE. All companies 
are judged on the basis of a stringent criterion, set to focus on service to the share-holders and maximiza-
tion of shareholders wealth.

 Mr. Nasim Siddiqui receives the award on behalf  
Siemens Pakistan for being #1 in the Top 25  
companies of KSE 
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Consumers Choice Award

The Consumers Association of Pakistan conducted an extensive market based analysis on the choice of 
consumers in various categories. The 6th of its kind, the surveys identified the best products and services 
provided by companies in different areas. Siemens Pakistan stood out as the consumer’s first choice in the 
category of Diesel Generating Sets, keeping the record consistent with previous years. 

 DG Sets from Siemens Pakistan are consumers’ first choice in the category; 
the company was awarded the Consumers Choice award. The award was  
received by Mr. Mohammad Salman from Mr. Amin Fahim, Federal Minister 
for Commerce and Industries

CSR National 
Excellence Award

The 5th CSR National Excellence Award were held inviting an enthused audience of the corporate world of 
Pakistan. Organized by Help International Welfare Trust and the CSR Association of Pakistan, these awards 
aim to encourage and celebrate companies who have worked in the field of corporate social responsibility 
on a sustainable basis and aspire the same for the future. Siemens Pakistan was amongst the top compa-
nies which engage in CSR activities as part of their corporate strategies. 

At the same ceremony, Head of Communications, Mr. Zia-ul-Islam Zuberi was awarded a lifetime achieve-
ment award recognizing his efforts in the field of public relations and media. 

 Head of Communications, Mr. Zia Zuberi receives  
CSR recognition award for Siemens Pakistan from the  
British Deputy High Commissioner Mr. Robert Gibson
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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Sustainability a fundamental concept not only at 
Siemens Pakistan but globally at Siemens. Sustain-
ability is acting responsibly to achieve economic, 
environmental and social progress. As an employer, 
a contractor, an investor and a provider of innovative 
technology solutions and as an integrated technol-
ogy company, we’re seizing unparalleled opportuni-
ties to promote the sustainable development of our 
customers and our own organization. 

At every step of the way, we form compliance as 
the foundation of responsible conduct. We can only 
achieve the full potential of sustainable develop-
ment if everyone involved fully complies with exter-
nal and internal Company rules and regulations. Our 
business decisions and actions must always be in 
line with moral principles and values. This is what 
integrity means to us. We measure ourselves by this 

standard, and we hope that our stakeholders will 
measure us by the same standard. Compliance with 
all external and internal rules is an essential part 
of integrity, and fundamental to our business. Our 
Compliance Program instills this awareness in all of 
our managers and employees.

Sustainable development is achieved and is depen-
dent on the variety of ideas that diversity of our 
human resource can produce; diversity which 
enriches our company in many ways. We are com-
mitted to not only respecting but integrating diver-
sity as a cornerstone of our policies. We work across 
all barriers of race, religion, color and backgrounds 
and our only yardstick is merit based on compe-
tence. This is the only way to create a sound soci-
ety and fulfill our social responsibility. In a society 
where women often face difficulties at the work-
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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place, Siemens offers an exemplary environment 
that is recognized and acknowledged by leading 
women organizations. 

Corporate responsibility is a strategic, manage-
ment-driven task for us that integrates our busi-
ness, environmental and citizenship activities to 
create sustained tangible and intangible value for 
our company and our stakeholders through ethically 
sound means. Despite the financial and economic 
crisis, the company has maintained its high level of 
commitment and involvement for the good of soci-
ety and lived up to all its commitment for projects 
running in health, education, culture and sports. 
Corporate Social responsibility at Siemens is a well 
thought out process with an emphasis on making 
Pakistan a cleverer, healthier and enjoyable place. 
This says it all from support to educational institu-

tions, art, culture and sports to volunteering by Sie-
mens employees and their families. We are among 
those few companies whose sustainability efforts 
are well documented and are driven by a vision, mis-
sion and strategy. We are among the few companies 
whose annual report is accompanied by a sustain-
ability report that documents in detail the activities 
of the company nationally and internationally that 
serves to create a sustainable culture of growth and 
progress. This year is no exception and you will find 
the accompanying sustainability report a document 
that will give you an insight into the projects that 
are changing lives and helping to create a sustain-
able society based on solid foundations of health, 
education, art and culture.
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Internet-based early warning 
system against floods
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During the spring melt or 
extended rainfall, many munici-
palities in Europe struggle 
against flooding on a regular 
basis. Insufficient drainage sys-
tems, intervention in river land-
scapes, increasing urbanization, 
and the threat of climate 
change increases the risk of 
floods. Coastal countries and 
municipalities are reinforcing 
their protective walls by build-
ing higher and higher dikes, but 
the problem is usually not their 
height. The dikes are simply too 
weak. An early warning system 
whose data can be called up 
over the Internet can be of 
assistance here.

The first step for this has been taken: “Urban-
Flood” is the name of a project that the European 
Commission wants to use to provide support for 
Internet-based monitoring of protective dams. An 
international consortium of which Siemens is a part 
is currently developing new technologies for flood 
protection in order to create a global monitoring sys-
tem. For the experimental dikes (in the Netherlands) 
built for “UrbanFlood,” the most important elements 
are sensors and learning software. The researchers 
allow a dike to erode in a targeted manner in order 
to find out what happens during a dike break. They 
then use the measured data to adjust the software 
and develop forecasting procedures. The idea goes 
back to Siemens researcher Bernhard Lang, who 
with his work won the Siemens-wide idea competi-
tion for sustainability in the category “Sustainable 
Portfolio Ideas.” An additional test has been under-
way since 2010 on the Livedijk. The system continu-
ously monitors the barriers, indicates weak points, 
and warns if there is threat of breakage. The project 
is set to run for two years.
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After the wreckage caused by last year’s devastating floods 
triggered by the monsoon rains it was estimated by United 
Nations that more than 20 million have lost their homes in 
Pakistan, with around 8% of the population displaced. At the 
outset of these floods, Siemens mobilized colleagues world-
wide to run fund collection drives for flood relief. The Siemens 
family rose to the challenge; Siemens Germany immediately 
donating 100,000 Euros to the German Red Cross for relief 
and rehabilitation. At the same time, funds started to pour in 
from Siemens companies in the Middle East including Kuwait, 
Qatar, Saudi Arabia and UAE to Siemens Pakistan flood relief 
fund account. In the first phase of relief, food hampers, water, 
juices and make-shift tents worth 6.5m PKR were dispatched 
to Pakistan Army while a truck load of food hampers was also 
given to SITE association to contribute towards their flood 
relief activities.  

Soon after, an agreement was signed for 4.1m PKR with The 
Citizens Foundation to rehabilitate and rebuild 4 flood affected 
schools in the four provinces of the country. A tent village was 
also set-up for immediate relief at Sehwan Sharif, in Sindh. 
The tent village provided food supplies, water, utensils, medi-
cines and tent shelters to a large number of families. This was 
a temporary setting for the flood affected people before water 
receded and  they could set off to their lands and villages. 

The Pakistan Army made a country wide request for uninter-
rupted power supply to their mobile facilities, hospitals and to 
pump water out of the affected areas. More than 30 DG sets 
were donated with a worth of approximately 30m PKR which 
were later installed in hospitals  to supply power due to fre-
quent power cuts. 

As the water receded, the flood committee at Siemens Paki-
stan started planning for rehabilitation work with the remain-
ing funds. 

However, in only the first quarter of FY 2011, another jolt of 
floods hit the country in major areas of Sindh and Balochistan. 
It was estimated that about a million people were affected and 
tens of thousands lost their homes.

These floods of such capacity forced us to divert our resources 
towards the more immediate needs. Relief goods with food 
hampers and tents worth 7.5m PKR were sent to Pakistan Navy 
in three phases. 5 filtrations plants were also procured to be 
installed around Sindh also with the help of Pakistan Navy.

Community investment, welfare 
schemes and rural development  
programs

The floods disaster gave us the opportunity to contribute 
towards community development. With our filtration plants 
which will be installed in different villages of Sindh, we can 
provide clean, drinking water to over 5,000 people per filtra-
tion plant. The filtration system  has a life span of 10 years and 
once installed will also serve as a filling station. 

We are also in talks with Pakistan Navy to set up a skills devel-
opment center in Sajawal for women who have now been 
reinstated in a model village under the supervision of Pakistan 
Navy. Over 40 families are currently living in this village. This 
opportunity would provide a livelihood to the flood affected 
people who are starting their lives anew, where women can 
make handicrafts and other traditional items to be sold later 
on and ensure a source of income for them.

Pakistan’s Flood 
and Siemens’ response

With our filtration plants which will be installed in different 
villages of Sindh, we can provide clean, drinking water to 
over 5,000 people per filtration plant. The filtration system  
has a life span of 10 years and once installed will also serve as 
a filling station.

 Over 30 Diesel Generating Sets were donated to Paki-
stan Army to power mobile hospitals in the flood af-
fected areas
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In only the first 
quarter of FY 2011, 
another flood hit 
the country mostly 
in Sindh and Balo-
chistan. It was esti-
mated that about a 
million people were 
affected and tens 
of thousands lost 
their homes.



CEO Talks

Winners act 
sustainably

Now that environmental 
technology has become 
the lead industry of the 
century, sustainability is 
transforming the entire 
economy.
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 Peter Löscher “We expect our green technologies 
– to be generating more than €40 billion 
in revenue by 2014.”

Some people say that sustainability is just a passing fad. But 
there’s absolutely no doubt in my mind that sustainability is 
the only business model that creates lasting value. Acting sus-
tainably keeps companies profitable by giving them a decisive 
competitive edge and ensuring their long-term growth. The 
more sustainable the company, the more attractive it is – for 
investors, customers, job-seekers and employees. Companies 
that are rigorously geared for sustainability are demonstrably 
more successful.

Humans are currently consuming the earth’s resources 1.5 
times faster than nature can replenish them. At this rate, we’ll 
need two earths by 2030. Moreover, the inhabitants of the rap-
idly growing countries and cities of Asia, Latin America and the 
Indian subcontinent have an understandable desire to achieve 
a standard of living comparable to that of their counterparts in 
the industrialized world. Now more than ever, it’s vital to strike 
a balance between growth and responsible resource use. As a 
pioneer in green infrastructure, Siemens has aimed, ever since 
its foundation in 1847, at achieving success with trailblazing 
technological innovations that are not only of high value to 
customers and society but have also been produced by highly 
motivated employees protected by a strong social safety net.

I’m convinced that our unique corporate culture of innova-
tion, excellence and responsibility is also a key reason why 
we weathered the global economic crisis as well as we did. 
Siemens not only maintained its workforce intact; it actually 
increased the number of employees substantially. Sustainable 
companies have a clear advantage when it comes to recruit-
ing the best and the brightest. Why? Because companies that 
are focused on sustainability are clearly perceived to be more 
attractive employers. Due to the shortage of skilled labor and 
the competition for talent in many countries, this is now a 
crucial factor for market success. Today, every third Siemens 
employee is working in the booming field of environmental 
technology. For example, Siemens Wind Power, which started 
with just a single worker six years ago, now employees 7,000 
people.

Sustainability is also playing an increasingly important role in 
investment decisions. A number of green investors are now 
engaged at Siemens. And it’s not just sustainability funds that 
are asking for environmental data and other indicators of sus-
tainable company management. More and more pension funds 
and institutional investors want to see them, too. In the pres-
tigious Dow Jones Sustainability Index, Siemens is ranked the 
most sustainable company in its category. The Carbon Disclo-
sure Project also puts us at No. 1.

Customers have long focused on sustainability. Of course, 
green products only have widespread market appeal if their 
procurement pays off economically. And it does. Take power 
generation, for example: over the course of their lifetime, six 
of our high-efficiency gas turbines will cut costs at a Florida 
utility by roughly $1 billion. Or take electric motors: Siemens’ 
latest models consume up to 45 percent less power than their 
conventional counterparts – generating huge potential sav-
ings, since energy consumption can make up nearly 97 percent 
of a motor’s total cost. Or take building technologies: main-
tenance – not construction – accounts for some 80 percent 
of a building’s lifecycle costs. Building upkeep alone uses 40 
percent of the energy consumed in the EU. Advanced building 
technologies can cut this consumption by up to 40 percent. We 
at Siemens also combine our technology with innovative con-
tract models. With our Energy-Saving Performance Contracting 
program, customers no longer have to open their wallets to 
pay for renovations. They simply reimburse us from the ongo-
ing guaranteed energy savings that our renovations produce. 
When we show how we can cut their energy costs by 40 per-
cent at essentially no charge, customers don’t hesitate. That’s 
why we’ve renovated 6,500 public buildings worldwide to date 
– enabling our customers to reduce energy costs by consider-
ably more than €2 billion.

Now that environmental technology has become the lead 
industry of the century, sustainability is transforming the 
entire economy. At Siemens, we expect our green technolo-
gies – which already account for more than a third of our total 
revenue – to be generating more than €40 billion in revenue 
by 2014. So sustainability is far from being just a passing fad. In 
many countries around the world, it’s now the cornerstone of 
business and society – influencing the decisions of investors, 
customers and employees. And sustainability drives success: 
according to analyses by SAM, there’s a medium-term correla-
tion between sustainability and a company’s market valuation. 
And not only that: a company’s longevity is also a significant 
indicator: studies show that companies in Japan and Europe 
have an average lifespan of 12.5 years. Siemens has been 
around for 164 – yet another sign of successful sustainability.

Peter Löscher
President and CEO of Siemens AG
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Karachi and  
Asian Green City Index
Judging Environmental Sustainability of Cities

A study commissioned by Siemens and conducted by the independent Econo-
mist Intelligence Unit (EIU), the Green City Index aims to analyze the envi-
ronmental sustainability of cities considering 8 parameters: CO2, energy, 
buildings, transportation, waste and land use, water, air and governance. The 
studies started in Europe followed by Latin America, Asia, US and now Africa. 

The Asian Green City Index recently announced its results analyzing 22 major 
cities in Asia including Karachi. Megacity Singapore was declared the green-
est metropolis in whereas Karachi was rated below average; rating average in 
water and waste management. 

The EIU developed the methodology in cooperation with leading urban 
experts around the world, including representatives of the OECD, the World 
Bank and Asia’s regional network of local authorities, CITYNET. “The study of 
Asian cities shows one thing very clearly: higher income does not necessarily 
mean higher resource consumption. While resource consumption increases 
substantially up to an annual gross domestic product (GDP) of about €15,000 
per capita, it drops again when income rises beyond this,” said Jan Friederich, 
research head of the EIU study. Why? In the prosperous Asian cities, envi-
ronmental awareness is greater and infrastructures are more efficient. These 
cities are actively cutting their consumption of natural resources and are thus 
developing more sustainably. “In addition, cities that performed well in the 
Index are characterized by their ability to successfully implement environ-
mental projects and consistently enforce regulations,” explained Friederich.

The index returned with an extensive analysis of these cities, highlighting 
key improvement areas and findings while accessing and thereby proposing 
development and planning ideas in comparison with other cities.  

Among the study’s particularly gratifying results were the following: 

Environmental awareness is growing, and the majority of the Asian cities 
have already introduced comprehensive environmental guidelines. 

Average annual CO2 emissions per capita are 4.6 tons in the Asian cities, and 
below the corresponding figure for Europe (5.2 tons per capita and year). 

The 22 Asian cities produce an average of 375 kilograms of waste per capita 
and year, less than in Latin America (465 kilograms) and Europe (511 kilo-
grams). 

According to the study, the biggest challenges facing Asia’s cities 
are in the following areas: 

Air pollution levels are relatively high in all the cities studied, regardless of 
income. The average values for all the cities substantially exceed WHO stan-
dards. 

Asia’s metropolises have much catching up to do in the area of renewable 
energies, which on average account for 11 percent of the total electricity gen-
erated in the 22 cities. By comparison, the average in Latin America is 64 
percent – due to the high proportion of hydroelectric power plants there.
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They therefore represent enormous potential energy savings 
and are the key to sustainable city development. The use of 
intelligent building technology can drastically reduce energy 
consumption and CO2 emissions without affecting the com-
fort.

Green buildings need infrastructures that are intelligently 
networked and offer innovative systems and solutions. The 
Siemens Total Building Solutions (TBS) system integrates all 
systems into the building’s technical infrastructure: electrical 
installation technology, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, 
access control systems, lighting, video surveillance, alarm sys-
tems, fire detection and extinguishing, and evacuation. The 
operation of a building becomes easier, more reliable and more 
environmentally friendly – all while reducing costs.

Technologies in Siemens Pakistan for Intelligent build-
ings

Osram
 > Fluorescent lamps and Electronic control gear
 >  Energy-saving lamps 
 >  Halogen Energy Savers 
 >  LEDs
 >  High-intensity discharge lamps (HQI, HCI, NAV)
 >  Display Optics
 >  Sylvania Lighting Services – projects and services (incl. 
energy audits)

Building Technologies
 >  Energy saving performance contracting (I BT BAU EES)
 >  Building modernization (I BT BAU Service (100%),   
 Solutions (100%)

 >  Components for heating, ventilation and air conditioning  
(I BT HVP)

Gray buildings 
become green

Buildings are responsible for 40 
percent of the energy consump-
tion worldwide and approximate-
ly 21 percent of all generated CO

2
 

greenhouse gas emissions.



Green Projects

The KIII Project
Siemens Pakistan undertook The Greater Karachi Water Supply 
Project, referred to as the KIII project to provide an  enhanced 
water supply to Karachi by 100 million gallons per day. Siemens 
Pakistan was the Consortium Leader of the two Pumping 
Stations (Dhabeji and NEK) built under this project. This project 
was a first to address and alleviate one of the major problems 
of a sprawling city of 15 million people like Karachi; 
discontinuous water supply, leakages and shortages. The 
project was completed two months ahead of schedule. This 
sustainable project has been providing smooth supply of water 
to the people of Karachi for the past 5 years.  



Al-Razi Healthcare Center 
Another project, Al-Razi Healthcare Center in Lahore was also 
equipped with Siemens technologies ensuring low dose 
radiations to patients. Proving full range of imaging and 
diagnostics services to the city‘s seven million inhabitants with 
a special focus on women’s health and mother-and-child care 
with Siemens re-furbished Inspiration Mammomat System. The 
key features of the system are the MRI (Magnetom Espree) unit 
and a CT (Somatom definition), both of which are energy 
efficient and environmentally friendly. The project has a huge 
environmental impact amongst healthcare technologies. 
Saving over 50% in energy consumption and using 97% 
recyclable material, this technology promises patient comfort 
while having lower operating costs and better image quality 
making it the most suitable for customers. 

Benazir Bhutto Airport 
Siemens Pakistan recently signed an agreement for the Benazir 
Bhutto Airport to provide Low Energy LED based Airfield 
Lighting fixture in place of conventional Halogen Lamps. This 
green technology aims to optimize energy using low energy 
LED based AFL fixture and introducing UPS for catering critical 
loads for CAT-II operations. The UPS reduces operating time of 
generating sets and consequently optimizes fuel consumption. 
The energy consumption is estimated to be 50% lower 
subsequently lowering the maintenance costs. The technology 
also increases safety and increased availability of airfield.

Mammography Bus project
Siemens Pakistan recently completed a Mammography Bus 
project with Roche Pakistan in their campaign to combat Breast 
Cancer through early detection, treatment and prevention. The 
bus is a complete screening facility on wheels. It has in-house 
Power Generation and conditioning system, HVAC system, 
Siemens world proven Mammomate 1000 system for 
Mammography and complete Computerized Radiological 
System for viewing and reporting, all in a Bus, which is 
specially designed for this purpose.

Load Dispatch Centre project 
Pakistan’s first Load Dispatch Centre (LDC) project was 
undertaken by Siemens for the power utility company that is 
providing electricity to more than 16 million people of Karachi.  
SCADA system was provided to 56 grid stations. The project 
has immense sustainable value as it opens greater possibilities 
for energy efficiency in Pakistan. The system reduces electricity 
losses, and with the help of load management, electricity 
outages in the city of Karachi are planned, improving the work 
and social city life of the consumers considerably.  The LDC also 
has the ability to monitor electrical load right from the 
generating plants down to 11kV feeders, it can monitor and 
hence, detect overloading, theft and other burdens on the 
network. 



Due to climate change and limited fossil fuels supplies, renew-
able energy sources are gaining in importance.. Siemens offers 
green solutions such as photovoltaic, solar thermal power 
plants, and different types of wind turbines. The percentage 
of renewable energy sources in power generation continues 
to rise. Smart grids are necessary to integrate the often fluc-
tuating amount of “green” power into the grid in a smart and 
energy-efficient way. Smart grids enable low-loss transmission 
and cut CO2 emissions because less power needs to be gen-
erated. They provide for better power quality on the different 
voltage levels as well as higher energy system stability and 
security. Smart meters are crucial components of smart grids. 
These electronic meters make it easier to coordinate power 
generation and consumption. Grid operators could reward cus-
tomers by offering lower rates to those who conserve energy 
for example by shifting their operations from peak times to 
off-peak times.

Technologies in Siemens Pakistan for Energy efficiency

Fossil Power Generation
 >  Highly efficient combined-cycle power plants (CCPP)
 >  Fuel gasification
 >  Stationary Fuel cells
 >  Instrumentation and control (T 3000)

Renewable Power Generation
 >  Wind Power 

 >  Photovoltaic projects
 >  Small hydro

Oil and Gas
 >  Solar (SST700)
 >  CHP plants (SSC 300) 
 >  Biomass
 >  Waste to Heat
 >  Aeration of Waste Water
 >  Seal less compressor
 >  All Electric LNG trains
 >  Flue gas desulphurization Service
 >  Environmental Service E S SF ESS (Wheelabrator,ABT)
 >  Modernization / upgrades of fossil power plants 
 >  (E S SO, E S SF)

Power Transmission
 >  Gas-insulated switchgear (GIS) high voltage
 >  Grid access for offshore wind farms
 >  Gas-insulated lines (GIL)
 >  High Voltage Direct Current power transmission   
 (HVDC)

Power Distribution
 >  GIS med. voltage
 >  Grid control 
 >  SIPLINK power connection for ships
 >  Smart metering
 >  O&M services for T&D grids
 >  Network planning and trainings for Renewables

Safeguarding 
Energy

Supplying sustainable energy in 
cities is becoming increasingly 
crucial. Energy security, afford-
ability and environmental impact 
need to be carefully balanced. 



Information 
Technology

Designing a high- perfor-
mance, cost-effective and 
secure IT landscape with 
standardized end-to-end 
processes and informa-
tion flows
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Business Process Improvement is a continuous practice at Sie-
mens and its scope is broad. Our teams practice business excel-
lence on a full time basis and everyone drives business improve-
ment activities based on their concrete ideas, knowledge and 
tools provided at Siemens. 

Business Process Improvement Activities
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Information Technology 

Information Technology (IT) at Siemens Pakistan 
offers a variety of services within the core func-
tions of Process Management, Information Security, 
Customer Relationship Management, Enterprise 
Resource Planning (SAP) as well as IT Infrastructure 
and Operational Services to support business strate-
gies.

For providing Business Units and Corporate Units 
with technological advantage, IT is responsible for 
designing a high- performance, cost-effective and 
secure IT landscape and establishing standardized 
end-to-end processes and information flows.

In order to keep the company synchronized with 
the current trends and innovations, IT evaluates 
the respective impact on Siemens business and 
initiates understandable value-adding transforma-
tions in time. IT also provides solutions for the rap-
idly changing business requirements of real-time 
enterprises.

Our mission can be best understood as: to con-
tribute to Company’s business success in close co-

operation with the Siemens units by ensuring the 
efficiency of Siemens IT landscape and its alignment 
to business requirements.

IT Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) 

The IT Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) at Siemens Paki-
stan is a combination of procedures each recovery 
team creates and performs for recovering from a 
disastrous event. These procedures cover the actual 
IT process that IT employees perform manually or 
through recovery technology. The plan is very con-
cise and built around the tasks a team must perform 
as a response to an interruption.

It entails initiation of emergency procedures and 
the use of technology therein. Overall, the benefits 
sought are as under:

 > Reducing the probability of a disaster occurrence 
 > Reducing disruption to normal operations 
 > Ensuring business continuity 
 > Ensuring organizational stability 
 > Ensuring orderly, systematic, and timely recovery 
 > Increasing asset protection
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Siemens One / top+

Siemens One is an integral 
part of our integrated tech-
nology company. It stands for 
getting closer to our customer 
and account management. It 
is a powerful platform of col-
laboration between sectors, 
divisions, clusters and regions 
for growth with global and 
regional account teams and 
market-specific organizations.
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Siemens One – our key differentiating 

factor

Basically this is what Siemens One is all about – it’s the key 
factor differentiating us from our competitors. Especially in 
turbulent times, it is one of our most important strategies for 
creating better customer relationships and customer loyalty.

The Siemens One mindset

As the customer’s world changes and becomes more com-
plex, our vertical industry approach needs to be balanced with 
a cross-business vision. Our unique value proposition as an 
integrated technology company gives us the unique ability to 
further enhance customer satisfaction and at the same time 
increase Siemens’ overall  share of wallet. 

These developments and facts support the Siemens One 
approach. To ensure that this approach is in place with all of 
our top customers, the Siemens One concept needs to become 
an integral part of employee mindset:

It is our answer to the individual needs of customers as they 
confront complex global challenges. Unlike the strategies 
of our competitors, Siemens One acts as a corporate gravity, 
drawing our activities together and enabling us to think, act, 
and behave as one entity. It integrates customer centricity on a 
global basis through account management and aligned struc-
tures and processes.

Customer centricity and Key Account Management

Increasing globalization of markets and international harmo-
nization of customer processes require account managers 
who can coordinate the breadth and depth of our entire com-
pany portfolio for their customers. Our top customers expect 
us to give them optimal support and to provide one Siemens 
account manager for all their needs.

After a long and successful history of working with our top 
customers through an effective account management system, 
Siemens’ goal today is to integrate account management as a 
vital part in all Siemens’ global sales organizations. Globally, 
more than 40 percent of Siemens revenue is already being gen-
erated by strong account management with established career 
steps and Siemens-wide standards.

Top+

top+ is the company-wide Business Excellence Program to 
improve Siemens products, solutions, services and processes. 
top+ is the way we work at Siemens and how we drive our 
businesses to success.

The top+ program comprises of four elements:

- Systematic Approach: top+ is the way we work at Siemens 
and how we drive our businesses to success.

- top+ Focus Initiatives: top+ identifies and addresses common 
operational challenges of our businesses.  

- top+ Toolbox: top+ provides tools, methodologies and best 
practices to improve Siemens over all operational performance.

- Best Practice Exchange: top+ is about best practice sharing. 
Many successful projects have been honored in the past few 
years with top+ awards.

Each of our businesses addresses specific challenges as effi-
ciently as possible using the appropriate top+ program, due to 
which it has become firmly established throughout our com-
pany. This is done by following the logic of goals, actions and 
consequences. The program rests on the tested, proven and 
excellent methodology of the top+ tools. Of all the available 
tools, only those were selected that enable a business to keep 
a step ahead of the competition.

top+ concentrates on the most important themes for the future 
of a business, with the help of selected focus initiatives. The 
first focus initiative is called SMART (Simple, Maintenance-
friendly, Affordable, Reliable, Timely to market). The top+ 
SMART Initiative means high tech at low cost. It has two goals: 
leading positions in emerging markets and increased value-
addition in low-cost countries. 

For us, low-cost means always fulfilling the customer’s expec-
tation and guaranteeing a high level of quality. Even in the 
business of low-cost products, our goal is always to be Best-
in-Class.

Medium and low-end market segments offer enormous 
potential for the company and have yet to be addressed by 
all businesses. By effective utilization of these top+ tools, the 
company is now strengthening its position against new and 
aggressive competitors in the market. 

    top + is the way we work at Siemens 
     and drive our businesses to success

77
 68 Our Technology

 68 Asian Green City Index
 71 Green Projects 
 75 Business Process Improvement Activities
 79 Energy Sector 
 85 Industry Sector 
 95 Healthcare Sector



siemens.com/answers

It ’s why we’re designing our technology to last longer 
and use fewer resources. It ’s why we’re helping our 
customers reduce their CO2 emissions. And it’s why we’re 
pioneering new answers with one of the world’s largest 
environmental portfolios.

As a result, we were just named the best in our business 
sector by the Dow Jones Sustainability Index. And recognized 
as the top company overall by the Carbon Disclosure Project, 

the world’s largest independent database of corporate 
climate change information. 

Yet we’d never claim to have all the answers. That’s why we’re 
working with 190 countries. Thousands of cities. Tens of 
thousands of companies. In energy, industry and healthcare.

We’re working with the world today to create answers 
that last for the world of tomorrow.

The world of tomorrow  
needs answers that last.
That’s why we’re building them today, with customers all over the world.
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Transmission Division continues to be one of the 
core divisions in the house of Siemens and consists 
of Business Units; High Voltage Substations, Trans-
formers and High Voltage Products.

Numerous High Voltage Grid Stations delivered to 
date, makes Siemens Pakistan the biggest local sup-
plier of high voltage sub-stations on turnkey basis. 
On the manufacturing front, Siemens Pakistan is 
the leading manufacturer and supplier of Power and 
Distribution Transformers in the country with state-
of-the-art manufacturing facilities in Karachi. Sie-
mens Pakistan is also a leading supplier of complete 
portfolio of High Voltage products in Pakistan.

High Voltage Substations

The High Voltage Substation market in Pakistan experienced 
very low price bids from foreign competitors during financial 
year 2010 – 11. Furthermore project award decision process 
from both utilities and private sector remained slow, owing to 
the poor economic and security conditions.
Nevertheless, Siemens Pakistan was able to secure orders for 
220 kV Substation at Loralai and 132 kV Substation at Multan 
in the utility sector, in addition to a 132/33 kV Substation for an 
integrated mini steel plant in Karachi. 

Commissioning of 110 kV and 220 kV Capacitors were per-
formed at Kabul North, Pul-e-Khumri and Chimtala Substations 
in Afghanistan. For the same contract, three Reactors were also 
commissioned at Naibabad 220 kV Substation in Afghanistan. 
This unique turnkey project was executed for Louis Berger / 
Black and Veatch Joint Venture in Afghanistan, which was 
financed by USAID.

During the year we were assessed as Center of Competence 
for High Voltage Substation Projects in Middle East Region, for 
Process Maturity by Siemens Corporate Technology Team.

Transformers:

Business Unit Transformers is the leading local manufacturer 
of Distribution and Power Transformers in Pakistan with local 
manufacturing experience of around 50 years in Distribution 
Transformers and 30 years in Power Transformers.

Our production portfolio covers the entire demand for local 
industry, utilities and regional markets. It is anticipated that 
demand for transformers in public and private sectors will 
remain high in coming years.

We were successful in maintaining our traditional role as a 
technology trendsetter by providing specially designed trans-
formers for various applications in the industries and main-
taining market leadership

Siemens Pakistan recently introduced Energy Efficient, Low 
Loss Distribution Transformers for enhancing the efficiency of 
electrical distribution system. In addition to above these trans-
formers are environmental friendly due to low heat emission 
in the atmosphere. 

A large of number of such energy efficient Distribution Trans-
formers was supplied to various distribution companies during 
the year, alongwith Power Transformers of various ratings. 

In addition, Siemens Pakistan supplied a number of specially 
designed 11kV Automatic Voltage Regulators for industrial elec-
trical networks to minimize the effect of voltage fluctuations to 
private sector and public utilities. 

Siemens Pakistan continues to be the leading exporter of 
Power and Distribution Transformers of various ratings in 
Afghanistan, Saudi Arabia, Kuwait etc 

Siemens Pakistan BU Transformers also received Brands of the 
Year 2010 award fourth year in running.

High Voltage Products

Business Unit High Voltage Products is a leading supplier of 
the complete portfolio of High Voltage Products, with voltages 
ranging from 72kV to 800kV. Our portfolio includes Circuit 
Breakers, Disconnectors, Surge Arrestors, Instrument and Cur-
rent Transformers.

During the year, a number of high voltage products were sup-
plied to various public utilities. Our high-voltage products 
meet customers’ requirements in terms of low life cycle costs 
with optimum availability in continuous operation and require 
short commissioning time. They are reliable, have a long ser-
vice life and are also earthquake resistant and weatherproof. 

We were the first to introduce new technology Silicon Polymer 
Housing for High Voltage Surge Arrestors and Current / Voltage 
Transformers in Pakistan.

Energy

Energy Transmission 
Division
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Portfolio includes turnkey solutions for Fossil Fired 
Power Plants, Coal Gasification, Industrial Power 
Generation / Co generation, Compression Solutions 
for Oil and Gas, Wind and Solar Renewable and In-
strumentation and Control Systems for Power 
Plants, Refineries and Boilers.

All products and solutions are supported by long 
term service programs, complete overhauling of 
steam and gas turbines, I& C modifications and up-
grades, fact finding and heat treatment services. We 
offer a combination of products and services that 
provide an answer to customer requirements entail-
ing design and engineering studies, utility and in-
dustrial power plant solutions, conventional steam 
and gas turbines for electricity generation and in-
novative renewable technologies.

Fossil:

The Fossil Power Generation Division continues to offer highly 
efficient products and solutions for power generation based 
on fossil fuels. They range from individual gas and steam tur-
bines and generators, to turnkey power plants. The division 
also develops instrumentation and control systems for all types 
of power plants and refineries.

Oil and Gas:

Oil and Gas Division has played a pivotal role in the enhance-
ment of power generation capacity of Pakistan. We have been 
successful in getting the order for the supply and services of 
Steam Turbine generator (3MW) from M/s Gul Ahmed.  Another 
milestone is the supply of first “foot print” 400 kW Steam Tur-
bine to Army Welfare Sugar Mills in Badin. This year, we also 
upgraded the impeller rotors in PPL at Sui Gas field that has 
resulted in a uniform flow and discharge of gas at the con-
sumer end.

Rotating Equipment Services:

Service Center Pakistan (SCP) has not only provided major over-
hauling services to various power plants in Pakistan but has 
also extended its services to Gulf and South East Asia. This 

year we had the inauguration of our Field Service Competence 
Center as a major move to developing a resource pool of field 
service personnel. 

Despite the prevailing social instability in Iraq, our competi-
tive field services team successfully provided outage services 
in Baiji, Iraq. The on-going power augmentation service on the 
rotor blades of GT-13 and 14 at KAPCO is a true testament of our 
existence in the region. Our long term service agreement with 
Rousch Power Plant early this year manifests our strong busi-
ness ties with customers and their satisfaction of our services.

Service Center Pakistan maintains qualified service team of 
commissioning engineers, supervisors, welders and turbine 
fitters. Our Service Center is equipped with several standard 
and special tool containers and is also equipped with state-of-
the-art videoscopic equipment for baroscopic inspections, gas 
turbine commissioning tool kits, vibration monitoring and bal-
ancing equipment, thermo graphic camera, mobile heat treat-
ment oven (up to 1200 C) for pre and post heat treatments of 
the hot gas path components of gas turbines, special welding 
machines, plasma cutters and Non-Destructive Testing (NDT) 
equipments. 

Renewable Energies:

Siemens offers sophisticated and state of the art wind tech-
nology in Pakistan to facilitate wind energy integration and 
provide the necessary support to increase electrical system 
stability of the utilities.

Together, Siemens Wind Power (E W) and Siemens Pakistan are 
offering an EPC turnkey solution to the investors and project 
developers. The Electrical Balance of Plant (EBoP), from the 
conceptual design to final commissioning and the O&M of the 
wind farm is entirely offered by Siemens Pakistan. The major 
electrical equipment including Power Transformers will also be 
manufactured at the Siemens factory in Karachi. We consider 
that substantial local value addition is necessary for sustained 
development of renewable energy in Pakistan.

Siemens is also working with local investors to develop eco-
nomical turnkey solutions to tap huge solar energy potential 
of Pakistan to fulfill the growing energy needs of the country. 
In Siemens one can find the right mix of experience, inno-
vation and vision; a mix that makes Siemens a reliable sup-
plier and a dependable partner in this important and growing 
energy field.

Power Generation, 
Services, Oil and Gas
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Energy Distribution Division consists of Business 
Units: Switchgears, Energy Automation and Servic-
es.

Siemens Pakistan is a leading manufacturer and 
supplier of Medium and Low Voltage Switchgears in 
the country with state of the art manufacturing fa-
cilities in Karachi. Siemens Pakistan also provides 
complete solutions for Energy Automation and 
Smart Grid Applications to the customers. In addi-
tion, Siemens Pakistan provides complete range of 
services to customers, to maximize the benefits of 
cutting-edge energy technology.

Switchboards:

BU Switchboards continues its tradition of enhancing its prod-
uct portfolio through introduction of products designed as per 
latest IEC requirements and combining Siemens core strength 
of innovative technology. MV Switchgear NX Air is the latest 
addition to our product portfolio which is now released for 
local market. 

Being one of the oldest setup of Siemens Pakistan, we are serv-
ing the demand of energy distribution for decades. Our clien-
tele includes all segments of market namely utilities, oil and 
gas, IPPs, chemicals, fertilizers, cement, foods and beverages, 
textiles, automotives, buildings and infrastructure, healthcare 
commercial etc. 

Products supplied during the year included Grid Station 
Switchgears for KESC; Ring Main Units for Secondary Distri-
bution Network of IESCO, Conventional MV switchgears for 
MEPCO grids,  Protection and Control Panels for PEPCO, Kiosk 
Type Package Substations to various customers, Sivacon 8PT 
Low Voltage switchgear (new variant) to one of the leading IPP 
etc. In addition, export of Protection and Control Panels was 
made to Afghanistan.

Sizeable orders have been received during the year for upcom-
ing IPPs. Another major order was secured for refurbishment 
and rehabilitation of power generation setup in the textile 
industry. 

As part of our after sales and services support, a comprehen-
sive training program was conducted for engineers of a util-

ity company in Afghanistan on operational and maintenance 
aspects of MV Switchgears that were supplied.

Energy Automation

Energy Automation is one of the most futuristic and high tech-
nology products and systems provider in the country for power 
system protection and control, power quality, substation auto-
mation, load management and power telecommunications.

Our comprehensive and cost effective systems include engi-
neering, design, parameterization, design calculations, manu-
facturing, testing, commissioning, systems upgrade and after 
sales support.  This substantially improves revenue and profit-
ability for our customers by providing comprehensive protec-
tion, smart monitoring and supervision, recording, automatic 
network management and timely communication with control 
centre.

Several orders were received and executed during the year 
in the field of Power Control, Protection and Communication 
Systems, both in Power Line Carrier and Fiber Optic Terminal 
system showing customer confidence in Siemens innovative 
technologies. 

Energy Automation earned a milestone by using local resources 
in successfully installing, testing and commissioning of Mini 
SCADA System using SAT 230. Our local resources have also 
achieved implementation of advanced Emergency Load Man-
agement System using Substation Automation. A milestone 
was also achieved in localization of Nokia Siemens Networks 
SDH system through technology transfer and local value addi-
tion which enable us to offer cost effective telecom solutions 
through local resources.

We introduced Siemens Smart Grid Applications and techno-
logical landscape to NTDC, distribution companies, consul-
tants, IPPs during the year. The utility and process industry 
managers learned many important aspects of smart grid appli-
cations. During a recent seminar at Lahore, a high level road 
map for Pakistani grids to follow smart grid applications was 
also discussed alongwith Siemens metering solutions.

Transmission and Distribution Services

Throughout the entire life cycle of infrastructure assets, trans-
mission and distribution services offer complete scope of solu-
tions for our customers. We enable our customers to maximize 
the benefits of cutting-edge energy technology through our 
services. 

As trendsetter in the field of smart metering, network consult-
ing and planning, we supply products and solutions today that 
help to solve the energy challenges of the future. Our services 
network provides round the clock customer support. 

During the year, various orders of supply and services were 
secured from public utilities and private customers.

Energy Distribution 
Division
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Electromobility

Renewable Ener-
gies under the 
Hood

Climate change, dwindling oil 
reserves, crises in the financial and 
automotive industries, coupled with 
new technological developments in 
drive and battery technology – all 
this is giving a 100-year old topic a 
whole new meaning: the electric 
car. This vision of electric mobil-
ity come about as the result of the 
convergence of a number of factors. 
More and more people want to be 
individually mobile, while at the 
same time oil reserves are becom-
ing more scarce and climate change 
has led to much more stringent 
CO2 emission limits. Working with 
collaboration with Ruf Automobile 
GmbH, the first prototype of an elec-
tric sports car – the eRuf sports car 
built on the basis of a Porsche 911 – 
has already been developed.
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Fossil Power Generation 

> Gas Turbines and Power Plants 
 (68MW-340MW)
> Steam Turbines and Power Plants
 (150MW-1900MW)
> Fuel Gasification Technology
> Combined Cycle Power Plants
> Electrical Generators

Oil and Gas and Industrial Applica-
tions

> Industrial Gas Turbines 
 (4.7MW-48MW)
> Industrial Steam Turbines 
 (1MW-150MW)
> Components for industrial power plants includ-

ing heat and power Co-generation plants
> Compressors (150-824,000 CFM) and Drives
> PGW Compressors
> Air Compressors
> TLT Fans

Instrumentation and Controls

> Systems for all types of Power Plants
> IT Solutions

Wind Power

> Wind Turbines (On/Offshore)
> Wind Farms (On/Offshore)
> Ranging from 600kW up to 3.6MW
 
Services

> Installation and Commissioning of Power Plants
> Inspections of Turbines and Generators Modules 

and Upgrades, Rehabilitation programs for Tur-
bines and Generators

> Long Term Service Contracts
> Operation and Maintenance Contracts
> Heat Treatment services (up to 1200C)

High Voltage Substations

Ranging from 72.5kV up to 500kV, we offer complete 
solution for high voltage sub stations including:

> Project Management
> Primary and Secondary Engineering for HV Sub-

stations 
> Protection System Engineering and Commission-

ing
> GIS, HIS and AIS Grid Stations
> Mobile Substation ranging from 72.5kV up to 

220kV

Transformers

Manufacturing, installation, commissioning, on-site 
testing, refurbishment, capacity enhancement, 

diagnosis and life assessment of:

> Distribution Transformers (up to 10 MVA, 36 kV)
> Power Transformers (up to 250 MVA, 245 kV)
> Auto Transformers with / without OLTC
> Generator Transformers
> Rectifier Transformers
> Furnace Transformers
> Neutral Earthing Transformers
> Voltage Regulators
> Dry Type Transformers

Answers for Energy
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Our commuter trains are getting people home faster in 
cities like San Diego. Our water treatment technologies are 
making safe water more plentiful in Singapore. In Berlin, 
our building solutions are lowering energy costs. And in 
Durban, our medical equipment is helping citizens lead 

longer, healthier lives. All around the globe, Siemens is 
helping cities become the kinds of places where people, 
businesses and the environment can thrive. Every day 
we’re working with the world to create answers that will 
last for years to come.

Siemens answers are making cities more lasting, livable and prosperous.

Building cities worth 
building a future in.

siemens.com/answers
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Business Unit Infrastructure Solutions (BU-INF) pro-
vides innovative and industry specific solutions in-
cluding product and services to serve infrastructure 
market segments with expertise and competence to 
promptly respond the customer’s prospective de-
mands. Our comprehensive portfolio of system inte-
gration solutions always approaches towards the 
ease and fulfillment of customer needs by offering 
the right solutions for sustainability and long-term 
success.

BU INF has shown its commitment and dedication to coun-
try infrastructure development in various sectors, focusing on 
airports (mobility and logistics), complex buildings and infra-
structure works.

Our well accepted solutions for airports have also resulted in an 
order intake from Sialkot International Airport. We continued 
to cater the electrical infrastructure segment by securing the 
underground external electrification works for Defence Hous-
ing Authority Phase – V, Lahore Cantt. Our mechanical works 
always complementing our progress; this year we secured an 
order for Manzalai-8 wellhead surface facility project from MOL 
Pakistan Oil and Gas Co. B.V

Another milestone in Siemens Building Technology (BT) 
domain is acquisition of an order for Integrated BMS from Dol-
men Mall Clifton, Karachi Harbor Front. It is the biggest mall 
in Pakistan where all shops require highly reliable and robust 
systems. We presented our uniquely devised integrated solu-
tion including metering methodology. We also worked jointly 
with client and consultant to economize the solution without 
decreasing the expected functionalities. 

Through our flawless and reliable on site project management, 
we are smoothly executing the prestigious Benazir Bhutto 
International Airport Package 8-B: Power and Telecommunica-
tion Networks as well as Package 7-A: Airfield Lighting System 
including all associated civil, electrical and mechanical works, 
wherein, contributing to the green initiative, the environment 
and O&M friendly, LED based runway lights were introduced; 
use of alternate source of energy such as solar power and other 
sources are also in consideration to optimize the environment 
friendly solutions.

With these on-going mega projects, this year we have success-
fully completed other projects including, Pakistan Telecom-
munication Employee Trust, Telecom Tower at Jinnah Avenue, 
the tallest building in Islamabad, well equipped with the latest 
technologies including Power Transformer, HT/LT Switchgear, 
DG set, Bus Bar Trunking, CCTV and other electrical systems 
and associated works. Moreover Building Electrification works 
for 12th and 14th Floors of Pakistan National Shipping Corpora-
tion (PNSC) building.

We are also smoothly executing the three year blanket con-
tract with Eni Pakistan on call-out basis at Khirthar Concession 
Area including mechanical, electrical, instrumentation, civil 
and pipeline works for two new wellhead installations and up-
gradation works. 

Additionally, we have several projects reaching their final 
stages including electrical, fire security, fire alarm and BMS 
works for Tetra Pak Pakistan Lahore project comprising of elec-
trical installation works, advance access control system, smoke 
and heat detection, video surveillance, central monitoring of 
multi-systems through MM8000, demand based ventilation, 
automated chiller controlling etc; external electrification sys-
tem overhead and underground (Phase I & II) for Rehbar Sector  
Defence Housing Authority, Lahore. Phase-I comprising of HT/ 
LT outdoor Pad Mounted Transformers, HT/LT cable system, 
street lighting system while Phase-II carries the scope of  line  
conductors, lighting poles , HT/LT cable, lighting fixtures etc.

Customer trust is our asset and we always strive for continuous 
improvement. Our recipe of success remains staying closer to 
the customer and maintaining customer trust through excel-
lence in project management and well trained man-power.

Industry

Infrastructure Solutions
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Business Unit Cross Industries has a strong portfolio 
for various vertical markets and Cross Industries, 
which encompasses process control and automa-
tion, revamp and migration, energy management, 
diesel power plant electrical and automation, water 
treatment and distribution, ERP/ERM and software 
development solutions. With such multi tasking ca-
pabilities and in depth engineering, Siemens has 
provided value addition to its customers through 
increased Productivity, enhanced flexibility, im-
proved efficiency as well as highest level of satisfac-
tion.

BU-CI has embedded the concept of innovation and global 
cooperation in its projects, as in this case where we worked 
with Siemens Netherlands and ZPMC China to cater to the 
customer DP World. This project was of 3 STS (ship to shore) 
cranes that was given to ZPMC china by DP-World. As the 
control system for these cranes is highly sophisticated and 
sensitive same as the one used in roller coasters therefore it 
requires a 100% fault tolerant and fail safe system. The proj-
ect was carried out successfully in different regions combin-
ing their competence and expertise. Netherland, leading with 
technology, China, Germany, Hong Kong and lastly and most 
significantly Pakistan, all combining their services to make a 
successful project. Control system includes Simatic S7 fail-safe 
systems with large number of distributed Inputs/Outputs (I/
Os), truck positioning mechanism to position the crane at its 
initial position. HMI touch panels at operator’s cabin; Sinamic 
drives; switchgears; complete monitoring of the system in con-
trol room and much more to provide efficient controlling of the 
sensitive huge crane. 

Talking, further about the globalized way of working, the name 
of “Nostra Cement Project” in Hungry is worthwhile to men-
tion. Launched by Strabag, a construction company, where 
regional cooperation of Siemens was witnessed. In collabora-
tion with Siemens Hungary, Austria and Germany our team 
has successfully completed the plant control system (hardware 
and software) as well as commissioning of the project. 

Going beyond borders is like a second nature for us which is 
why we worked with Siemens Malaysia Sdn Bhd for the mod-
ernization of Plant Control System at Bahau, Negari Sembilan, 

one of the Project of Malaysia Berhad (CIMA Group). Siemens 
Malaysia was responsible for the overall execution of the 
project while Siemens Pakistan developed the application 
software. A combined team performed the installation and 
commissioning. With expertise in Cement plant automation 
and teamwork, Siemens managed to complete the project well 
within the schedule  

Yanbu Cement Diesel Power Plant Expansion Project, Saudi 
Arabia for MAN Diesel was also successfully completed this 
year, with customized solutions of electrical and Siemens Die-
sel Control Concept (SIDCON) based Control System for 70 MW 
Power Plant including MV, LV, Transformers, Cables, DC Sys-
tem, UPS, SCADA, Installation Supervision and Commission-
ing. SIDICON is a market oriented automation solution for MAN 
Diesel, to supplement their core competence in diesel technol-
ogy. Once again global partnership between MAN Diesel and 
Siemens was observed through professional account manage-
ment in this fast track project, showing Siemens international 
project handling capabilities. This project was also benefited 
with the Siemens local presence in Saudi Arabia. 
 
Siemens Water Technologies portfolio provides the most 
comprehensive, cost-effective and reliable water treatment 
solutions. Siemens Pakistan has provided over 500 Reverse 
Osmosis Water Filtration Plants and over 800 Ultra-filtration 
Plants for CDWA project to install through out the province of 
Punjab. Reverse Osmosis System features an excellent pre-
treatment design, high quality components and offers high 
performance. The systems are designed for high recovery 
rates, minimum energy consumption and low operation and 
maintenance cost once installed, and the system has an overall 
filtration output capacity of 15000 gallons per day.

Successful completion of Burner Management System Proj-
ect of FFBL has proved that  has always offered Solutions and 
services to help customers improve their Performance and 
reliability. This project was an automation of Boiler’s Burner 
Management System of a Urea Plant. As this is a continu-
ous system having Burner management as an essential task, 
therefore Control System provided by Siemens is 99% available. 
Siemens has provided fault tolerant control system S7, HMI, 
extensive control system diagnostics, alarms and connectivity 
to the existing plant wide DCS. First run was possible in short 
span of 1 week.

Expanding in new dimensions  we have also provided chlorina-
tion systems this year. Unilever, a renowned FMCG company, 

Cross Industry
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is expanding its SLES plant, a part of their shampoo manu-
facturing facility. To fulfill their requirement Siemens Pakistan 
has provided them with an automated chlorinated solutions 
which will be incorporated at Rahim Yar Khan Factory. This is 
a state of the art chlorination system which comes along with 
a monitoring and controlling system . Process is handled by 
our SIMATIC S7-300 series and SIMATIC MP 377 12”, which will 
handle raw and fine chlorine dosing to their shampoo manu-
facturing process. 

Also this year, Cross Industries has further escalated its foot-
step in enterprise business solutions with SAP ERP implemen-
tation projects successfully going Live at Mayfair Spinning 
Mills and Asian Foods.

In the public sector BU – CI is the sole supplier and support 
partner of government organizations like PIFRA, FBR and 
HEC. Furthermore,  BU – CI have signed contracts to provide 
Profit Sharing Accounting (PSA) and Joint Venture Accounting 
(JVA) to Government Holding Private Limited (GHPL a highly 
professional public sector company that efficiently manages 
GOP working interest in upstream petroleum ventures. Sie-
mens’ SAP footprint in oil and gas sector in Pakistan is almost 
complete with the latest BU- CI project of SAP implementation 
at Mari Gas Company Limited, one of the largest oil and gas 
exploration and production companies in Pakistan.

In the avenue of SAP®’s latest state of the art reporting and 
analysis tool, Business Object-BOBJTM, Siemens in a very short 
duration of time have signed contracts with Getz Pharma, 
Higher Education Commission (HEC) and Federal Board of Rev-
enue – FBR, to provide its newly launched BOBJ  solution. 

Siemens, SAP® consulting services’ reliability and high stan-
dards have won us with excellent reputation with our custom-
ers and has been rewarded by recent signing of Service Level 
Agreements (SLAs) for SAP Services with Byco Petroleum Paki-
stan Limited, Pak Arab Refinery Limited, Pakistan State Oil and 
Coca Cola Pakistan Limited.

The recent signing of Continental Biscuit’s SAP ERP implemen-
tation project has enhanced Siemens presence in FMCG sec-
tor.  Sitara Chemicals, one of the renowned industrial groups 
of Pakistan, currently having a broad product range covering 
basic, specialty and agricultural chemicals, and gases, is also a 
new name added in our costumers list.

One of our oldest customer Byco Petroleum Pakistan (formerly 

Bosicor) have opted to have a SAP up gradation project with 
Siemens apart from upgrading the hardware infrastructure will 
upgrade SAP ERP from version 4.6c to the latest 6.0. 

Another milestone in Siemens BU CI portfolio is the award of 
SAP Roll project at KSB Pumps in Pakistan, KSB Pumps Pakistan 
is a Global SAP Rollout Project being executed under KSB Pro-
gram called GPS - Global Projects and Systems.

Outside Pakistan, Siemens BU CI has extended its reach in Mid-
dle East with signing an accord with Siemens Italy to deliver 
SAP-ERP system to ENI Iraq in order to effectively manage their 
vast venture portfolio and internal business processes. 

With intensified and focused marketing and sales activities, 
Cross Industry took the initiative to organize some distin-
guished events including, “Business Analytics Now - Launch 
Event of the Latest BI and EIM Solutions from SAP” (BI- Business 
Intelligence, EIM- Enterprise Information Management), the 
world of business is becoming increasingly global and marked 
by virtual organizations using mobile technology and social 
networks. Organizations must be equipped to better assess 
and act decisively on huge volumes of data both from within 
and outside their businesses. In response to this transforma-
tion, SAP Pakistan  launched the 4.0 releases of business intel-
ligence (BI) and enterprise information management (EIM) 
solutions from the SAP® Business Object-BOBJTM portfolio, 
harnessing the advances of three years of software develop-
ment. Another event organized was the “SAP SME Summit- Is 
your business a best run business?” where sessions relevant to 
SME  Sector were conducted. This event enabled the customer 
to discover the game changing innovations from SAP and learn 
more about issues, trends, and developments pertinent to the 
SME sector; meet with the  existing SME customers and  how 
they have leveraged SAP to grow their business and improve 
profitability. With respect to the growing needs of the Util-
ity Sector CI also arranged the event “Innovation in Utilities; 
enabled by Siemens Smart Grid and SAP ERP Solutions” which 
was conducted in Lahore and focused on the  tools, for effec-
tive and optimum utilization of enterprise resources to help 
organizations emerge strongly in the challenging and com-
petitive scenario. Furthermore it also highlighted how  SAP for 
Utilities solutions support role-specific business processes in 
the utilities industry, addressing the needs of companies in the 
generation, transmission and distribution, retail and services, 
water, and waste and recycling segments. Last but not least 
BU-CI conducted the “ELMS Short Seminar - Electrical Load 
Management System” exploring the industry’s requirement 
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for stable, continuous and uninterrupted Power Supply and its 
cost effective solution. This was first of the series of which are 
to be conducted on this topic. Upholding the Siemens value of 
social responsibility,  we also conducted several workshops at 
local universities such as FAST, IoBM, Hamdard etc to increase 
the awareness about SAP Education, and how it can be the 
gateway to career success

Field Services

Business Unit Field Services (BU-FS) offers comprehensive ser-
vice portfolio in life cycle services and value added services 
covering repair services, service contracts, energy optimiza-
tion, plant condition monitoring, modernization and spare 
parts which are bundled under One Industry Service concept 
to address customer needs in the marketplace.

In this respect, we here at BU FS are quite successful: the right 
portfolio, our presence in the customer’s vicinity, and our valu-
able business and service expertise allow us to fulfill our cus-
tomer requirements – and at the same time to grow profitably.

BU FS wants to strengthen, foster and expand its service busi-
ness. Repair response time and customer proximity is a critical 

challenge in the service business. To that end, the new repair 
center is being established in Lahore which is one of the Indus-
trial Centres in Pakistan and can serve the industries located 
in central and northern region by providing repair, rewinding, 
overhauling, testing and maintenance services for motors and 
alternators. Right there, large number of major Textile, Petro-
chemical, Cement, Fertilizer, Power Plants, Sugar Industries 
exist. The new repair centre will be ready to operate in Decem-
ber 2011.

Modernization and up-gradation portfolio has always been 
the core competence of BU FS. This year we have completed 
the milestone project with EPIK Construction Islamabad for 
upgradation of electrical substation including PFI Plant at US 
Embassy Islamabad. The project timeline, safety issues and 
smooth replacement of the equipment were the key decisive 
factors of the customer; and by team efforts we have success-
fully completed the project with entire customer satisfaction. 

This year we have secured up-gradation projects with Fauji Fer-
tilizer Bin Qasim and Institute of Business Administration Kara-
chi. Another success story of our customer retention with the 
intensified and focused sales activities, BU FS has successfully 
secured the O&M Contracts with ENI Pakistan, Japan Power 
Generation Ltd and ICI Power Gen Ltd. 
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Global Products

Business Unit Global Products (BU-GP) offers com-
prehensive product solutions to customers for their 
industrial requirements, through amalgamation of 
Siemens’ global product range of programmable 
controller based automation systems, process in-
struments, control components and system engi-
neering, building technology low voltage devices, 
mechanical drives and customized large drives. 

The sustained investments towards capacity building, modern-
ization and up-gradation in Cement, Chemicals, Pharmaceu-
ticals, Container Terminals, Food and Beverages and Textiles 
industries with a befitting strategic response from BU-GP 
complemented by its strong channel network, resulted in a 
significant growth and profitability in all its offered portfolios.

The business of mechanical drives (Siemens Gear units) is 
optimistically pursuing the emerging demands of mechanical 
drives in sugar industries, cement, paper mills, fertilizers, feed 
and rice mills. In FY 2011, the noticable orders of MD were: 
complete tandem of Deharki Sugar Mill, 600 kW Compact 
gear (Duored Gearunit) of Mehran Sugar Mill, 788 kW Duored 
gear unit of Faran Sugar mill, planetary gear units for Bestway 
Cement and other orders for Siemens Geared motors and cou-
plings.

BU-GP is now empowered with state of the art condition moni-
toring services in Pakistan (only certified for Siemens gear 
unit in Middle East region till end of FY 2010/11) and continue 
to serve and strengthen the relationship with our customers 
through reliable diagnostic report of products.

As the energy cost is moving up and causing increasingly 
negative impact on production costs therefore Siemens has 
introduced energy efficient Large Drives. The energy-efficient 
systems help companies to reduce production cost, improve 
the return on investment and lower CO2 emissions, on a sus-
tained basis and over the entire lifecycle of the plant. Behind 
every success is our planning and strategy as well as important 
orders secured from Ashraf Sugar Mill and Olympia Chemicals. 

During this fiscal year, as a part of our business strategy, 

Industrial Automation business channelized its sales through 
a strong network of dealers throughout the country, which 
is proving to be beneficial for the business unit. The dealer 
network not only proves to be a stimulant for increasing sales 
but also increases the market reach of Siemens which in turn 
promises to be a source of higher revenues in future.

Industrial Automation also had a key role in the successful 
launch of Project Pakistan, which included installation and 
training of state of the art PLC’s at the lab facilities of NED Uni-
versity and Engineering Technology and University of Engi-
neering and Technology, Lahore. These equipments provide 
complete and efficient solutions for automation tasks. The two 
types of devices were SIMATIC S7-300 Training Kit which fea-
tures a compact design with many functions integrated into 
the CPU, maintenance free equipment owing to data reten-
tively on micro memory card and the new addition in our con-
troller range SIMATIC S7-1200 Training Kit. This equipment is 
considered to be latest in technology and a first of its kind to 
be installed in engineering institutes part of Siemens CSR proj-
ects.

Moreover, Global Products participated in Sugar Seminar to 
facilitate the industry more effectively vis-à-vis value addition, 
thus achieving our goal of sustainability for Pakistan.

Industry Automation / 
Drive Technologies
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Local Products

Business Unit - Local Products (BU-LP) comprises the 
business segments of Generating Sets (GS) and Mo-
tor and Alternators (M&A), offering locally assem-
bled/manufactured products at our local production 
facility.

Generating Sets

Siemens Pakistan is the only local assembler of Die-
sel Generating sets in the country with local produc-
tion ranging from 5kVA to 1250kVA. Local presence, 
backed fully by the global high-tech engineering 
expertise of Siemens, provides unmatched strength 
and stability. Being an integral part of the national 
economy, we with a strong sense of responsibility to 
society and environment based upon our local man-
ufacturing program not only bring substantial sav-
ings but also provide lots of employment.

The prime objective of BS-GS is to offer our customers quality 
products and services at competitive prices to their complete 
satisfaction. We constantly endeavor to maintain our position 
as market leaders and technology pace–setters in all areas of 
our operations and to continuously improve our efficiency and 
competitive strength.

At Siemens, we believe in providing our customers the high-
est value for their money. We successfully achieve this by 
maintaining the highest quality standards with the latest 
technology, ensuring ultimate reliability to the customer at 
competitive prices. The Mechanical and Electrical features 
are designed, to make them a globally compatible product, 
operating even under harsh environments and most demand-
ing operating conditions. All Siemens DG Sets are extensively 
tested and approved according to international quality stan-
dards, before despatch from our works.

Siemens Pakistan has the unique honour of exporting the 
locally manufactured Siemens Generating Sets to various 
countries including Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Norway, Myanmar, 
Yemen, Libya, Afghanistan, etc.

We provide complete pre-purchase and post-purchase con-
sultancy services for Diesel Generating sets and associated 
switchgear. Customized and tailor-made solutions can be pro-
vided as per customer specifications. These range from stand-

alone Diesel Generating Sets to complete Diesel Generator 
based power house solutions on a turnkey basis.

Each Generating Set undergoes stringent and rigorous on-load 
testing program in our testing facilities. Training can also be 
provided on various aspects of Diesel Generator operation, 
maintenance and troubleshooting. Comprehensive customer 
training facilities combined with 150 years of engineering / 
experience history provides in depth hands on training and 
practical experience to our customers on Siemens Diesel gen-
erating sets and allied equipment.

Motors and Alternators

The aim of M&A business segment is to remain mar-
ket leader through customer focus, product portfolio 
and innovative tools (like; Sinasave, Sizer and CA01).  
Siemens provides complete range of; LV standard ef-
ficiency (IE1), High efficiency (IE2) and Premium ef-
ficiency (IE3) motors and alternators (ranging from 
10 kVA to 1250 kVA). We provide complete custom-
er’s satisfaction by providing customized solutions 
through our local production facility and strong ser-
vice back-up through our service network through-
out Pakistan.

The scientific consensus is clear: our climate is changing. 
Between 1850 and the beginning of the 21st century, the aver-
age temperature on the earth’s surface rose by 0.76° Celsius. 
The period between 1994 and 2005 included 11 of the 12 warm-
est years on record. Since the beginning of industrialization, 
the warming of the earth’s surface has been accompanied by 
a massive increase in greenhouse gas emissions. The concen-
tration of CO2 in the atmosphere is now at the highest level in 
800,000 years.

Climate change is closely linked to shifting demographics. 
Due to world population growth and ongoing globalization, 
the amount of power generated worldwide will increase more 
than 60 percent by 2030. Emerging and developing countries 
will account for two-thirds of this increase. Drastic measures 
will be required to limit the rise in global temperature to a max-
imum of 2° Celsius. Innovations are the most effective means 
of combating the negative consequences of climate change – 
innovations relating to energy conservation.

BU-LP has been involved for few months with USAid project 
where inefficient tube-wells are being replaced with efficient 
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ones. The new efficient pumps mainly powered by our VHS 
motors are being installed as a dependant source of energy 
conservation and efficiency. Pilot phase of this project in Mul-
tan region has already been completed successfully. 

Siemens has been very instrumental in water supply, drain-
age and sewerage schemes. Recent examples of public health 
and irrigation schemes and water supply schemes are: Public 
Health Faisalabad, Multan, Public Health Mirpurkhas, Nawab-
shah, AES Lalpir. 

All these water supply schemes are backed up by our locally 
manufactured efficient Vertical Hollow Shaft motors capable 
of working in rugged environment.

Complete range of LV motors installed in newly developed 
Deharki Sugar Mill, Tando Allayar Sugar Mill and Bachani Sugar 
Mill are other achievements by Siemens Pakistan.

Increasing demand of High Efficiency (IE2) LV motors in Food 
and Beverage sector is the reflection of Siemens motors as a 
very good energy conserving source.
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Industry Automation and Drive Tech-
nologies Division:

Offering complete range of global and local prod-
ucts, systems and solutions covering:
> Automation Solutions (PLC, HMI, Process Control 

Systems)
> Control and Low Voltage Components
> Sensors and Control (Field Instruments)
> Mechanical Drives and Gear Units
> Large Drives (Local Generating Sets and Motors 

and Global Customized Products)
> Motion Control Solutions

Industry Solutions Division:

Infrastructure Solutions:
We are offering diverse portfolio of Infrastructure 
Solutions, Products and Project Management, Instal-
lation, Testing and Commissioning Services, cover-
ing:
> Electrical Infrastructure
> Mobility / Intelligent Traffic Solutions for: 
 > Airfield Lighting
 > Urban Traffic Control
> Building Technologies
 > Building Management System
 > Securing and Surveillance Solutions (CCTV, > 

Access Control)
 > Fire Safety Solutions 
> Energy Cross Sectors and Others
> Complete Mechanical and Electrical erection in 

the following area:
  > On/Offshore Production
 > Drives for Compressors Pumps and Gas Tur-

bines
 > Pipelines
 > Oil Refineries

Field Services:

We at field services have the capabilities and wealth 

of experiences in the following fields: 

Up-gradation and Modernization Services:
> Electrical Up-gradation 
> PLC Migration (S5-S7 and Non-Siemens –  

Siemens)
> Others 

Operation and Maintenance Service:
> Facility Management
> Power Plants 
> Process Industries
> Generating Sets

Energy Optimization Services:
> Energy Improvement Program
> Health Checks

Installation, Testing and Commissioning:
> Electrical System
> Automation System
> Grid Station 

On-Site Troubleshooting 
> Electrical System
> Automation and Drives 
> DG Set

Professional Services
> Protection Relay Testing
> Transformer Testing and Commissioning
> Electrical MV Switchgear
> LV Switchgear/MCC/PFIP Panels
> Energy Meter Testing
> Harmonic Analysis

Condition Monitoring Services
> Thermography 
> Vibration Analysis
> Health Check 
> Physical Inspection

Answers for Industry
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Motors / Alternator Testing
> Overhauling
> Rewinding
> Testing and Commissioning

PCB Diagnostics Services
> PCB Diagnostics and Repair Services

DG Set Services
> Operation and Maintenance Services
> Annual Maintenance Services
> Installation, Testing and Commissioning Services
> OnCall Troubleshooting Services
> Repair, Overhauling, Services

Spare Parts support
> Supply of critical Spare Parts
> Inventory Management Services
> Logistics Supports

IT Network Solution and Services
> Turnkey IT-Infrastructure Solutions
> System Design (Consulting, Engineering, Devel-

opment)
> Networking Solutions (LAN, WAN, MAN, VoIP, 

IPT, SAN)
> Data Center Solution
> Intelligent Building Solutions

Industrial Trainings
> Siemens PLC Training
> Electrical Trainings
> Products Training
> Customer support (021) 111-066-077

Cross Industries Solutions:

> Project Management, Design, Engineering and 
Commissioning of Electrical and Process Control 
Systems 

> Distributed Control Systems for Continuous and 
Batch Process Industry for e.g. Cement Sugar, 
Paper and Pulp , Fertilizer and etc

> SCADA Systems
> Process Instrumentations
> Management Information Systems 
> System Integration
> Training and Workshops for Customers

Water and Waste Water Solutions:

> RO and Ultra Filtration Treatment Plants
> Water Telemetry and SCADA
> Industrial and Municipal Waste Water 
> Treatment including Sludge Treatment
> Water and Waste Water Treatment Plants
> Water Pumping and Disposal stations
> Screening and Membrane solutions
> Pipeline and Disinfection solutions

Enterprise Business Solution

Siemens Pakistan Cross Industry is one of the lead-
ing enterprise business solution provider. We focus 
on offering quality and innovative turnkey IT Solu-
tion for our customers, which includes flexible soft-
ware and hardware solutions. Through consultative 
model Siemens provide meaningful technology 
solutions which addresses all business and opera-
tional needs. Siemens Pakistan provides a full spec-
trum of products and services for the entire lifecycle 
of the SAP Solution. As a value-added reseller and 
authorized Training Centre, Siemens Pakistan is 
empowered and equipped to provide comprehen-
sive SAP solutions

Enterprise Business Solution portfolio includes:
> SAP Center of Expertise (VAR)
> SAP Turnkey Solutions: Core SAP 
> ERP Solutions, SAP Industry, Core Banking, and 

Utilities Solutions etc.
> SAP Authorized Training Center (ATC)
> SAP Support Services(Round-the-clock IT system 

support and services to our clients)
> FUJITSU Global Sales and Support Partner
> Certified Flexframe Partner (EMEA Region)
> Turnkey IT-Infrastructure Solutions
> System Design (Consulting, Engineering, Devel-

opment)
> Hardware Solutions (Servers, PCs, Peripherals)

Information Technology Education
> Siemens Learning Centre, state-of-the-art, dedi-

cated training center offering SAP Education and 
IT Training
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When diseases are caught early, they make less of an 
impact on everyone. That’s because a large majority of 
today’s healthcare costs go toward treating the late stages 
of diseases like cancer and heart disease. With Siemens 
advanced diagnostic technology, doctors can accurately 

identify these killers earlier. So patients get the treatment 
they need sooner. Which helps save lives and cuts costs. 
Wherever there are tough healthcare questions, we’re 
answering them.

Small cells don’t have to lead  
to big problems.
Siemens answers help doctors detect diseases earlier, saving costs and extending lives.

siemens.com/answers
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Healthcare market in Pakistan is set to witness po-
tential growth driven by positive trends within the 
healthcare sector. Due to ever increasing public 
awareness and improved technology; the healthcare 
sector is going to be one of the major sectors that 
would fuel the economic growth and also the social 
well being of general public. 

Healthcare sector in Pakistan is categorized in the 
business areas of Imaging and Therapy and Clinical 
products. While offering the services in said modal-
ities, the sales turnover volume is Rs 257 million, 
whereas total order intake for the year 2011 includ-
ing own plus commission order is Rs 750 million.

With increasing population, higher expenditure on 
lifestyles, rising market of health insurance, govern-
ment initiatives for better medical infrastructure, 
focus on Public Private Partnership and improved 
medical facilities in private sector shall be the key 
driving factors for the growth of healthcare sector in 
Pakistan. 

Imaging and Therapy (H IM):

This year, Siemens Pakistan strengthened its leading position 
in the filed of angiography and cath lab systems by securing 
orders for :

> Cardiac angiography system 
> Universal Angiography machine
> Cardiac Cath Lab.

Magnetic Resonance Imaging also enjoyed a successful year, 
which included following important wins:

> 1.5T MRI system MAGNETOM ESSENZA
> 1.5T MRI system MAGNETOM Avanto 
> 2 x Permanent Magnet MRI systems 

In the field of therapy, a TPS (Treatment Planning System) 
order was received.

Clinical Products

Order for mammography, ultrasound and x-ray system.

Healthcare

Healthcare market 
in Pakistan

Siemens answers help doctors detect diseases earlier, saving costs and extending lives.
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Smart Imaging

Images can save 
lives 

Magnetic resonance imaging is an 
imaging technique, which produces 
images that show the inside of the 
human body. In contrast to X-ray, 
MRI technology uses magnets and 
radio waves that, due to continu-
ously improving technologies, gen-
erate remarkably sharp images of 
the body. In particular, MRI gener-
ates soft-tissue images and provides 
the physician with the tools to suc-
cessfully differentiate healthy soft 
tissue from diseased tissue and to 
localize lesions, such as cancerous 
growths. The magnetic field gener-
ated during the examination is up 
to 30,000 times stronger than the 
magnetic field of the earth.
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Imaging and Therapy

> Angiography and Interventional X-Ray Systems
> Computed Tomography Systems
> Molecular Imaging Solutions
> Magnetic Resonance Systems
> Radiation Oncology Solutions
> Refurbished Systems
> SYNGO (Healthcare IT Solutions)
> Particle Therapy

Clinical Products

> Ultrasound Systems
> X-ray Systems
> Radiography Systems
> Fluoroscopy Systems
> Urology Systems
> Surgery Systems (Mobile C-arms)
> Mobile X-ray Systems
> Women’s Health Solutions
> Accessory Solutions

Diagnostics

> Immunoassay and Urinalysis
> Chemistry and Hematology analyzers
> Molecular and Blood gas analyzers
> Laboratory Solutions

Services

> Project Management
> Installation and commissioning
> System Integration / Engineering Design
> After sales service support
> Customer training

Answers for 
Healthcare
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Transportation

Trains that  
conserve  
resources and are 
easily recycled

Environmental lifecycle assess-
ments are also playing an ever more 
important role in the rail industry. 
Siemens Rail Systems in Vienna is 
a pioneer, constructing its trains, 
subway cars and light rail vehicles 
so that they use as few resources 
and energy as possible during the 
manufacturing process as well as 
during operation. More and more 
attention is being paid to the reuse 
of obsolete rail vehicles as well. 
Through skillful selection of materi-
als and manufacturing processes, 
the vehicles can be designed so that 
they can later be easily recycled. 
This enables Siemens Rail Systems 
to already recycle 95 percent of the 
materials. 



99
 68 Our Technology  101 Financial Data  150 Shareholders’ Information

Low and Medium Voltage Switchgears

Design, Engineering, Manufacturing, Sales and 
After Sales Service, Consultancy Service and Turn-
key Project Management for Switchgear Products 
and Systems consisting of:
> MV Switchgears: Simoprime, NXAir World, 

Simoprime A2, 8BD4
> LV Switchgears, Controlgears and Bus-risers: Siv-

acon 8PT, 8PU, 8HK
> Pad-mounted Transformers
> Ring Main Units / Gas-Insulated Switchgears
> Kiosk Substations

Energy Automation

Supply, engineering, design, parameterization, 
manufacturing, testing, commissioning and after 
sales support for :

Protection and Control Products/Systems
Siemens Siprotec and Reyrolle Protection relays for 
500, 220 and 132kV Voltage Levels

Substation Automation System
Complete Substation Automated Solution for Indus-
tries and Utilities with a complete range of Remote 
Terminal Units.

Power Quality, Metering and Power recording 
Systems
Fault and Event Recording Systems – Complete Prod-
uct and Systems in Distribution and transmission 
networks of NTDC and KESC
Energy Meters – Digital Power Meter 

Power Line Telecommunication System
Complete Power Line Telecommunication Systems
Power Line Communication
> Siemens Power Link (PLC)

Fiber Optic Communication 
> Surpass hiT 7060/ 7035/ 7025

Energy Automation is one of the most futuristic and 
high technology products and systems providers in 
the country for Power System Protection and Con-
trol, Power Quality, Substation Automation, Load 
management and Power Telecommunications.

Our comprehensive and cost effective systems 
include engineering, design, parameterization, 
design calculations, manufacturing, testing, com-
missioning, systems upgrade and after sales sup-
port. This substantially improves revenue and 
profitability for our customers by providing compre-
hensive protection, smart monitoring and supervi-
sion, recording, automatic network management 
and timely communication with control centre.

Several break through orders received and executed 
during the year in the field of Power Control, Pro-
tection and Communication Systems both in Power 
Line Carrier and Fiber Optic Terminal system which 
shows customer’s confidence in Siemens innovative 
Technologies.

Energy Automation earned a milestone by using 
local resources in successfully installing, testing 
and commissioning of Mini SCADA System using 
SAT 230. Our local resources have also achieved 
implementation of advanced Emergency Load Man-
agement System using Substation Automation. A 
milestone was also achieved in localization of Nokia 
Siemens Networks SDH system through technology 
transfer and local value addition which enable us to 
offer cost effective Telecom solutions through local 
resources.

We introduced Siemens Smart Grid Applications and 
technological landscape to NTDC, DISCOs, consul-
tants, IPPs and NTDC design teams during the year. 
The utility and process industry managers learned 
many important aspects of smart grid applications. 
During a recent seminar at Lahore, a high level road 
map for Pakistani grids to follow smart grid appli-
cations was also discussed, which was followed by 
Siemens metering solutions.

Answers for 
Infrastructure 
and Cities
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The world’s population is not only growing, it is also getting 
older, which means that healthcare has to meet new require-
ments as well. Workflows need to be designed more efficiently 
and the cost-effectiveness of hospitals needs to be optimized. 
Along with these requirements, hospitals face the challenge of 
providing even better care for their patients. All of this needs 
to be done sustainably.

Imaging and Therapy
 > Angiography and Interventional X-Ray Systems
 > Computed Tomography Systems
 > Molecular Imaging Solutions
 > Magnetic Resonance Systems
 > Radiation Oncology Solutions
 > Refurbished Systems
 > SYNGO (Healthcare IT Solutions)
 > Particle Therapy

Clinical Products
 >  Ultrasound Systems
 >  X-ray Systems
 >  Radiography Systems
 >  Fluoroscopy Systems
 >  Urology Systems
 >  Surgery Systems (Mobile C-arms)
 >  Mobile X-ray Systems
 >  Women‘s Health Solutions
 >  Accessory Solutions

Diagnostics
 > Immunoassay and Urinalysis
 > Chemistry and Hematology analyzers
 > Molecular and Blood gas analyzers
 > Laboratory Solutions

A healthy  
future

The world’s population is not only 
growing, it is also getting older, 
which means that healthcare has 
to meet new requirements as 
well.
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This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) as
incorporated in the listing regulations of the stock exchanges of Pakistan. The Code provides a framework of best practices
of Corporate Governance. Good Governance is considered indispensable by the Board to enhance and achieve highest
performance. The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors. The Board comprises of eight
directors which include two independent non-executive directors, one of whom is the Chairman. One director
represents the National Investment Trust Limited (NIT).

2. All the directors have given declaration that they were aware of their duties and powers under the relevant laws and
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and the listing regulations of the stock exchanges of
Pakistan.

3. The directors of the Company have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed
companies including this Company.

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any
dues to any banking company, a DFI or NBFI.

5. None of the directors or their spouses is engaged in business of stock brokerage.

6. Casual vacancies occurred during the year were duly filled within thirty days of their occurrence.

7. The Company has adopted a Statement of Ethics & Business Practices called “Business Conduct Guidelines” which
has been signed by all the directors and employees of the Company.

8. The Board of Directors has developed a Vision and Mission Statement. All significant policies have been approved by
the Board and compiled in the Company’s Policy Manual. The level of materiality has also been defined by the Board.

9. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions have been taken by the
Board. The appointment, remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer have been determined and approved by the Board of Directors. Further, the appointment,
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Company Secretary have been determined by the
Chief Executive Officer with the approval of the Board of Directors.

10. The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined.

11. The meetings of the Board are presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose.

12. The Board meets at least once in every quarter.

13. Written notices and agenda of Board Meetings are circulated not less than seven days before the meeting.

14. The Minutes of the Board Meetings are appropriately recorded, signed by the Chairman and circulated within 14 days
from the date of meeting.

15. The Company provided information to foreign resident directors of their duties and responsibilities. Other directors
of the Company, being professionals and directors of other local companies have adequate exposure of corporate
matters and are already aware of their duties and responsibilities.

Statement of Compliance with the
Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance
For the year ended September 30, 2011
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16. All material information as required under the relevant rules has been provided to the stock exchanges and to the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan within the prescribed time limit.

17. All quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements presented to the Board for approval were duly endorsed by
the CEO and the CFO.

18. The directors, CEO, CFO and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

19. All statements have been included in the Directors’ report, which are required by the Code and Section 236 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

20. We confirm that the Company has complied with all material principles and the corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code as mentioned in this Statement of Compliance with the best practices of Corporate
Governance.

21. The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of four members including the Chairman of Committee, all
of whom are non-executive directors.

22. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final
results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and
advised to the Committee for compliance.

23. All related party transactions entered during the year were on arm’s length basis and these have been placed before
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. These transactions are duly reviewed and approved by Audit Committee
and Board of Directors.

24. The Company has outsourced the internal audit function to Corporate Finance Audit (CF A) department of Siemens
AG. The CF A is managed by suitably qualified and experienced staff who are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company and their representatives are involved in the internal audit activities on a full time basis.

25. The external auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

26. The external auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines
in this regard.

27. The Directors’ report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the
salient matters required to be disclosed.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Syed Babar Ali Ali Hamdani
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2011

2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Equity and liabilities Restated

Share capital and reserves

Share capital

- Authorised

20,000,000 (2010: 20,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 200,000 200,000

- Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 5 82,470 82,470

Reserves 6

Capital 624,192 624,192

Revenue 5,902,044 6,326,969

6,526,236 6,951,161

Total equity 6,608,706 7,033,631

Non-current liabilities

Retention money 53,384 151,582

Other non-current liabilities 28,959 20,093

82,343 171,675

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 6,819,367 8,941,807

Provisions 8 2,130,337 2,206,189

Short-term running finances 9 3,948,627 4,297,231

Taxation - net 10 1,749,572 1,959,407

14,647,903 17,404,634

Total liabilities 14,730,246 17,576,309

Contingencies and commitments 11

Total equity and liabilities 21,338,952 24,609,940

Restated
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2011

2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Assets Restated

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 1,631,041 1,678,522

Intangible assets 13 250 2,747

1,631,291 1,681,269

Long-term loans and trade receivables 15 894,670 854,472

Long-term deposits 16 4,006 5,113

Deferred tax asset 17 1,420,257 1,322,323

3,950,224 3,863,177

Current assets

Inventories 18 3,325,075 3,734,297

Trade receivables 19 8,883,168 10,318,366

Due against construction work in progress 20 3,984,686 4,346,973

Loans and advances 21 117,675 384,400

Deposits and short-term prepayments 22 118,989 139,194

Other receivables 23 239,767 427,267

Cash and bank balances 24 719,368 1,396,266

17,388,728 20,746,763

Total assets 21,338,952 24,609,940

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director

Restated
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2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Net sales and services 25 15,059,556 26,248,842

Cost of sales and services 26 (12,943,086) (22,367,845)

Gross profit 2,116,470 3,880,997

Commission and allowances earned 76,095 67,729

2,192,565 3,948,726

Marketing and selling expenses 27 (1,328,827) (1,480,011)

General administrative expenses 28 (580,899) (625,186)

Other operating income 29 60,002 146,425

(1,849,724) (1,958,772)

Operating profit 342,841 1,989,954

Financial income 30 54,708 30,575

Financial expenses 30 (239,371) (430,462)

Net finance costs (184,663) (399,887)

Profit before tax 158,178 1,590,067

Income tax expense 31 (90,770) (578,788)

Net profit for the year 67,408 1,011,279

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 32 8.17 122.62

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director

Restated
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2011

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Net profit for the year 67,408 1,011,279

Other comprehensive income for the year

Recognition of actuarial gains / (losses) 5,785 (16,944)

Deferred tax on actuarial (gains) / losses (3,296) 3,636

2,489 (13,308)

Total comprehensive income for the year 69,897 997,971

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director

Restated
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended September 30, 2011

2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 33 1,052,851 (291,146)

Payment to Gratuity Fund (89,234) (70,619)

Financial expenses paid (236,022) (462,684)

Income tax paid (401,835) (748,351)

Payment to Workers' Profits Participation Fund (85,940) (116,377)

Net cash flows from operating activities 34 239,820 (1,689,177)

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure (206,497) (244,434)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 80,453 28,973

Financial income received 52,752 17,508

Net cash used in investing activities (73,292) (197,953)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid (494,822) (742,233)

Net cash used in financing activities (494,822) (742,233)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (328,294) (2,629,363)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (2,900,965) (271,602)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 (3,229,259) (2,900,965)

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Issued, Capital reserves Revenue reserves Total
subscribed Share Capital Other General Actuarial Unappro-
and paid-up premium repurchase capital reserve losses priated
share capital reserve reserve profit

account
------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000)--------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at September 30, 2009 -
as previously reported 82,470 619,325 567 4,300 3,523,026 - . 2,681,505 6,911,193

Effect of change in accounting policy resulting from
early adoption of IAS - 19 [note 3.20(1)] - net of
deferred tax - . - . - . - . - . (133,300) - . (133,300)

Balance as at September 30, 2009 - as restated 82,470 619,325 567 4,300 3,523,026 (133,300) 2,681,505 6,777,893

Final dividend @ Rs 60 per Ordinary share of Rs 10
each for the year ended September 30, 2009 - . - . - . - . - . - . (494,822) (494,822)

Transfer to general reserve - . - . - . - . 500,000 - . (500,000) - .

Net profit for the year ended September 30, 2010 - . - . - . - . - . - . 1,011,279 1,011,279

Other comprehensive income for the year - . - . - . - . - . (13,308) - . (13,308)
Total comprehensive income for the year - . - . - . - . - . (13,308) 1,011,279 997,971

Interim dividend @ Rs 30 per Ordinary share of Rs 10
each for the six months period ended March 31, 2010 - . - . - . - . - . - . (247,411) (247,411)

Balance as at September 30, 2010 - as restated 82,470 619,325 567 4,300 4,023,026 (146,608) 2,450,551 7,033,631

Final dividend @ Rs 60 per Ordinary share of Rs 10
each for the year ended September 30, 2010 - . - . - . - . - . - . (494,822) (494,822)

Transfer to general reserve - . - . - . - . 500,000 - . (500,000) - .

Net profit for the year ended September 30, 2011 - . - . - . - . - . - . 67,408 67,408

Other comprehensive income for the year - . - . - . - . - . 2,489 - . 2,489
Total comprehensive income for the year - . - . - . - . - . 2,489 67,408 69,897

Balance as at September 30, 2011 82,470 619,325 567 4,300 4,523,026 (144,119) 1,523,137 6,608,706

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2011

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan. The Company is a public limited
company and its shares are quoted on the Karachi, Islamabad and Lahore Stock Exchanges. The Company is principally engaged in
the execution of projects under contracts and in manufacturing, sale and installation of electronic and electrical capital goods. The
Company's registered office is situated at B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall
prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the 'historical cost' convention except for derivative financial instruments
which are valued at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rs) which is the functional currency of the Company and figures are
rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise specified.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by the management in applying accounting policies
include:

- Warranty obligations (note 3.2)
- Provision for liquidated damages (note 3.2)
- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 3.4)
- Provisions against inventories, doubtful receivables and construction work in progress (notes 3.9, 3.10 and 3.11 respectively)
- Actuarial assumptions for the gratuity scheme and provision thereagainst (note 7.2)
- Provision for taxation and deferred taxation (note 3.7 and 31.2)
- Cost of completion of contracts in progress and their results (note 37)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CHANGE THEREIN

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

3.1 Employees' retirement benefits

The Company's retirement benefit plans comprise of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.

3.1.1 Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its regular permanent employees except expatriates. Provisions are made in
the financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit
method. Uptil September 30, 2010, actuarial gains / losses were being amortised over the expected future service of the employees.
With effect from the current year, the Company has changed its accounting policy in this regard due to early adoption of
amendments in IAS-19 "Employee benefits", whereby actuarial gains / losses are now being recognised directly to equity through
statement of comprehensive income. The description and the impacts of the change in accounting policy have been detailed in note
3.20(1).
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3.1.2 Defined Contribution Plan

The Company also operates a provident fund scheme for all its regular permanent employees except expatriates. Equal monthly
contributions are made to the fund, both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10 percent of the aggregate of basic
salary and cost of living allowance wherever applicable.

3.2 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Various contracts entered into by the Company include provisions whereby liquidated damages may be imposed in case of estimated
delay in completion of the sales and construction contracts. These damages are generally levied in case the delay is considered to
be on account of factors under Company’s control. The Company makes provision for these liquidated damages based on an analysis
of various factors resulting in delays / estimated delays. The imposition of actual liquidated damages is subject to negotiations and,
in certain cases, based on fresh analysis of the factors affecting the delay, these damages may not be imposed or may be higher than
the amount provided.

The Company accounts for its warranty obligations when the underlying products or services are sold or rendered. The provision is
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.

The Company accounts for its obligations towards long service bonus payable to its employees who are expected to complete twenty
five / forty years of service when the employees render service, whichever is applicable.

3.3 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital asset under construction
are capitalised and added to the project cost until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use, i.e., when they
are capable of commercial production. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except
for freehold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost in relation
to self manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing overheads. If the cost of certain
components of an item of property, plant and equipment are significant in relation to the total cost of the item, they are accounted
for and depreciated separately.

Capital work in progress are transferred to the respective items of property, plant and equipment on becoming available for intended
use.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over
its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available to use and on disposals
upto the month of deletion. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives. The residual value,
depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

3.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets having definite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives.

3.6 Impairment

3.6.1 Financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment, if any. A
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect of the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.
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3.6.2 Non-Financial assets

The carrying values of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, then the recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account, for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount.

3.7 Taxation

3.7.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under Normal Tax Regime after taking
into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any and the remaining income streams under Final Tax Regime at the applicable
tax rates. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is
compared with turnover tax under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and whichever is higher is provided in the
financial statements.

3.7.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

3.8 Long-term receivables

Long-term loans, trade receivables and other receivables, except those on which mark-up is earned by the Company are discounted
to their present values.

3.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of finished goods, both manufactured and purchased, raw
material and components is determined on weighted average basis. The cost of work-in-process and finished goods includes direct
materials, labour and applicable production overheads.

3.10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for any
uncollectible amounts.

3.11 Due against construction work in progress

Due against construction work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for
contract work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date less progress billing and recognised losses and
any related provision thereagainst. Cost includes all expenditures related directly to specific projects and an allocation of fixed and
variable overheads incurred.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid investments with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition. Running finance facilities availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows.

3.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments and related revenue, loans and borrowings and related expenses,
corporate assets, cash and bank balances and tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets other than goodwill.

3.14 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are included in the profit and loss account currently. Derivative financial instruments are translated at the fair market values as at
the balance sheet date.

3.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer. Service
revenue is recognised over the contractual period or as and when services are rendered to customers. Commission income is
recognised on receipt basis. Financial income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective mark-up rates.

Contract revenue and contract costs relating to long-term construction contracts are recognised as revenue and expenses
respectively by reference to stage of completion of contract activity at the balance sheet date. Stage of completion of a contract is
determined by applying ‘cost-to-cost method’ by reference to the proportion that contract cost incurred to date bears to the total
estimated contract cost. Contract revenue on construction contracts valuing less than Rs 10 million and / or duration upto six months
is recognised using completed contract method. When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that they have agreed with
the customer and are capable of being measured reliably.

3.16 Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received as
appropriate. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be. The
Company derecognises the financial assets and financial liabilities when it ceases to be a party to contractual provisions of such
instruments.

3.17 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange arising from operational activities. Any
gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised in the profit and loss account.

3.18 Dividends

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared.

3.19 Share based payment transactions

The fair value of the amount payable in cash to employees in respect of Stock Appreciation Rights, Siemens Stock Awards and
Phantom Stock Awards is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes
in the fair value of the liability are recognised as salaries, wages and employee welfare expense in the profit and loss account.

3.20 Changes in accounting policies resulting from adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations during the year

3.20(1) Early adoption of amendments in IAS-19

IAS 19, 'Employee Benefits (Amendments)' has been adopted early by the Company. The effective date of this amendment is from
annual periods beginning on or after January 2013, but the Company has decided to apply this amendment from the current year.
The amendment requires an entity to recognise actuarial gains or losses immediately in 'other comprehensive income'. Actuarial
gains or losses were previously amortised over the expected future service of the employees. Comparative information for the year
ended September 30, 2010 have been restated. The balance sheet as at the beginning of the comparative period has been presented
in note 42. Had the Company not changed its accounting policy, the net profit of the Company would have been reduced by
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Rs 4.233 million (2010: Rs 11.486 million) and the 'Basic and diluted earnings per share' would have been reduced by Rs 0.51 (2010:
Rs 1.43). Further, 'Trade and other payables' would have been reduced by Rs 193.581 million (2010: Rs 203.599 million), 'Deferred
tax asset' would have been reduced by Rs 65.509 million (2010: Rs 68.805 million) and 'Equity' would have been increased by Rs
128.072 million (2010: Rs 134.794 million).

3.20(2) Standards effective in 2011 but not relevant or do not have any material effect

Other amendments to the following IFRSs did not have any material effect on the accounting policies, financial position or
performance of the Company:

- IFRS 2, 'Share-based Payment'
- IFRS 3, (Amendments) 'Business Combinations'
- IFRS 5, 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations'
- IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments'
- IAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements'
- IAS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'
- IAS 17, 'Leases'
- IAS 27, 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'
- IAS 28, 'Investments in Associates'
- IAS 31, 'Investments in Joint Ventures'
- IAS 32, 'Financial Instruments: Presentation'
- IAS 36, 'Impairment of Assets'
- IAS 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'
- IFRIC 9, 'Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives'
- IFRIC 15, 'Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate'
- IFRIC 16, 'Hedges of a Net Investment in a foreign Operation'
- IFRIC 17, 'Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners'
- IFRIC 18, 'Transfers of Assets from Customers'
- IFRIC 19, 'Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments'

3.21 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting standards that are issued but not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are only effective for Company's
financial periods beginning on or after October 1, 2011 and, except for additional disclosures (if any), are not expected to have a
significant effect on the Company's financial statements or are not relevant to the Company:

- IFRS 7, (Amendments) 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011).
The amendments add an explicit statement that qualitative disclosures should be made in line with the quantitative disclosures
to better understand users to evaluate an entity's exposure to risks arising from financial instruments and amend the existing
disclosure requirements. It also introduce new disclosure requirement about transfers of financial assets, including disclosures
for financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but for which the entity retains continuing involvement.

- IAS 1, (Amendments) 'Presentation of Financial Statements' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2011). The amendments clarify that disaggregation of changes in each component of equity arising from transactions recognised
in other comprehensive income also is required to be presented, but may be presented either in the statements of changes in
equity or in the notes.

- IAS 24, 'Related Party Disclosures' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011). It simplifies the
disclosure requirements for entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a government (referred to
as government-related entities) and clarifies the definition of a related party.

- IAS 34, (Amendment) 'Interim Financial Reporting' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011). It adds
further examples to the list of events or transactions that require disclosure under IAS 34 and remove references to materiality
that describe other minimum disclosures.

- IFRIC 13, (Amendment) 'Customer Loyalty Programmes' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011).
The amendment clarifies that the fair value of award credits takes into account the amount of discounts or incentives that
otherwise would be offered to customers that have not earned the award credits.

- IFRIC 14, (Amendment) 'The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction' (effective
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011). The amendment provides guidance on assessing the recoverable
amount of a net pension asset. The amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement
as an asset.
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- IAS 12, (Amendments) 'Income Taxes' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012). The amendments
introduce an exception to the general measurement requirements of IAS 12 in respect of investment properties measured at fair
value. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is based on a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of the investment property will be recovered entirely through sale. The presumption can be rebutted
only if the investment property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the asset’s economic benefits over the life of the asset.

- IAS 1, (Amendments) 'Presentation of Financial Statements' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2012). The amendments:
• require that an entity presents separately the items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss

in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss; and
• change the title of the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income. However, an entity is still allowed to use other titles
The amendments do not address which items are presented in other comprehensive income or which items need to be
reclassified. The requirements of other IFRSs continue to apply in this regard.

- IAS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). It carries forward
the existing accounting and disclosure requirements for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications.

- IAS 28, 'Investment in Joint Ventures' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). It makes the
following amendments:
• IFRS 5 applies to an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be

classified as held for sale; and
• on cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint

venture or vice versa, the entity does not remeasure the retained interest.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

- IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013). It applies to classification and measurement of financial assets as defined in IAS 39 in the first phase. In the second phase,
it will address classification and measurement of financial liabilities, hedge accounting and depreciation.

- IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). IFRS 10
introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated and provides a single model to be applied in
the control analysis for all investees. An investor controls an investee when:
• it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with that investee
• it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that investee; and
• there is a link between power and returns

Control is re-assessed as facts and circumstances change. IFRS 10 supersedes IAS 27 (2008) and SIC-12 Consolidation – Special
Purpose Entities.

- IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). IFRS 11 focuses on the rights
and obligations of joint arrangements, rather than the legal form (as is currently the case). It:
• distinguishes joint arrangements between joint operations and joint ventures; and
• always requires the equity method for jointly controlled entities that are now called joint ventures; they are stripped of the

free choice of using the equity method or proportionate consolidation
IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31 and SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers.

- IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). IFRS 12
contains the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements (i.e. joint operations or
joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities, aiming to provide information to enable users to evaluate:
• the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities; and
• the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows

- IFRS 13 ' Fair Value Measurement' (effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013). IFRS 13 replaces the fair
value measurement guidance contained in individual IFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It
explains how to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other IFRSs. It does not introduce new requirements to
measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that
currently exist in certain standards.
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4. OPERATIONS IN UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on January 22, 2010 decided that the Company will cease to participate
in further bidding in the United Arab Emirates (UAE) due to prevalent market situation. The shareholders of the Company, in their
Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on March 4, 2010, also approved the decision. However, the Company continues to execute
existing orders in hand which are valued at Rs 3,063 million (2010: Rs 5,812 million) as at September 30, 2011.

4.1 Results of the UAE Operations

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

The following are the results of the UAE operations:

Net sales and services 2,524,828 9,721,649

Cost of sales and services (2,218,425) (8,605,643)

Gross profit 306,403 1,116,006

Marketing and selling expenses (259,219) (418,786)

General administrative expenses (22,922) (119,172)

Other operating loss (430) (680)

(282,571) (538,638)

Operating profit 23,832 577,368

Financial income 402 68

Financial expenses (116,652) (237,231)

Net finance costs (116,250) (237,163)

(Loss) / profit before tax (92,418) 340,205

4.2 Cash flows from the UAE Operations

Net cash flows from operating activities 441,869 (2,630,826)

Net cash flows from investing activities 1,508 (2,570)

Net cash flows from UAE Operations 443,377 (2,633,396)

4.3 Assets of the UAE Operations

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment 5,846 29,456

Intangible assets 45 1,722

5,891 31,178

Long-term loans and trade receivables 873,601 740,471

Inventories 20 26,046

Trade receivables - current 4,782,941 5,873,767

Due against construction work in progress 2,526,642 2,731,476

Loans and advances 66,507 191,664

Deposits and short-term prepayments 6,902 27,820

Other receivables 6,240 20,284

8,268,744 9,642,706
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4.4 Liabilities of the UAE Operations 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Long term retention money 51,823 149,959

Other non-current liabilities 898 566

Trade and other payables 2,224,236 3,225,596

Provisions 1,219,437 1,316,737

Short-term running finances 3,839,254 4,281,123

7,335,648 8,973,981

4.5 For segment reporting, the results of the UAE Operations have been reported as part of the 'Energy Segment' (note 46).

5. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

2011 2010

6,217,780 6,217,780 Issued for cash 62,178 62,178

81,700 81,700 Issued for consideration other than cash 817 817

1,526,800 1,526,800 Issued as bonus shares 15,268 15,268

(56,683) (56,683) Shares bought back (567) (567)

477,440 477,440 Issued under a scheme of amalgamation 4,774 4,774

8,247,037 8,247,037 82,470 82,470

5.1 Siemens Aktiengesellschaft (Siemens AG, the Parent Company), held 5,451,120 Ordinary shares (2010: 5,451,120 Ordinary shares)

of Rs 10 each of the Company as at September 30, 2011.

5.2 Dividends and other appropriations

The Board of Directors have, in their meeting held on November 24, 2011, proposed a final cash dividend of Rs 10 per Ordinary share

of Rs 10 each (2010: Rs 60 per share), amounting to Rs 82.470 million (2010: Rs 494.822 million). The Board also proposed to

transfer an amount of Nil (2010: Rs 500 million) from unappropriated profit to general reserve.

6. RESERVES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Capital Restated

Share premium 6.1 619,325 619,325

Capital repurchase reserve account 6.2 567 567

Other capital reserve 4,300 4,300

624,192 624,192

Revenue

General reserve 4,523,026 4,023,026

Actuarial losses - net of deferred taxes (144,119) (146,608)

Unappropriated profit 1,523,137 2,450,551

5,902,044 6,326,969

6.1 This represents premium of Rs 50 per share on the issue of 186,340 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each and Rs 70 per share on the issue

of 223,608 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each during the years ended September 30, 1988 and 1990, respectively, and premium of Rs

1,277 per share on the issue of 477,440 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each under the scheme of amalgamation during the year ended

September 30, 2007. This amount was reduced by Rs 15.334 million on account of 56,683 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each bought

back by the Company during the year ended September 30, 2003.

Restated
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6.2 This represents the amount by which the share capital of the Company was reduced on the buy back of 56,683 Ordinary shares of

Rs 10 each and transferred from the distributable profits of the Company to 'capital repurchase reserve account' during the year

ended September 30, 2003. This reserve was created to comply with the requirements of sub-section 10 of section 95A of the

Companies Ordinance, 1984.

7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)
Restated

Trade creditors [including retention money of Rs 1,168.356 million

(2010: Rs 1,397.591 million)] 7.1 3,197,245 4,680,953

Accrued liabilities 1,283,482 1,528,797

Advances from customers

For goods 483,743 554,331

For projects and services 1,114,408 1,320,101

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 7.2 203,956 224,707

Accrued mark-up on running finances 3,578 8,990

Unearned portion of revenue and maintenance contracts 78,021 102,220

Workers' Profits Participation Fund 7.3 11,981 88,991

Workers' Welfare Fund 77,100 71,307

Unclaimed dividend 14,844 12,717

Derivative financial instruments 21,431 1,270

Withholding tax payable 12,008 18,089

Other liabilities 7.1 317,570 329,334

6,819,367 8,941,807

7.1 These include a sum, aggregating Rs 247.677 million (2010: Rs 373.581 million), due to related parties.

7.2 Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity

The actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out at September 30, 2011. The Projected Unit Credit Method, using the

following significant financial assumptions has been used for the actuarial valuation:

• Discount rate 13.00% per annum compound (2010: 14.00%)

• Expected rate of increase in salaries 10.75% per annum (2010: 11.80%)

• Expected rate of return on plan assets 13.00% per annum (2010: 14.00%)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Fair value of plan assets 7.2.1 375,936 402,338

Present value of defined benefit obligation 7.2.2 (579,892) (627,045)

Deficit - recognised in the balance sheet 7.2.3 (203,956) (224,707)

7.2.1 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Opening balance 402,338 338,082

Expected return 53,407 35,025

Contributions made by the Company 89,234 70,619

Benefits paid (216,401) (52,874)

Actuarial gain 47,358 11,486

375,936 402,338

Restated
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7.2.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Opening balance 627,045 545,577

Current service expense 47,240 40,922

Interest expense 80,435 64,990

Benefits paid (216,401) (52,874)

Actuarial loss 41,573 28,430

579,892 627,045

7.2.3 Movement in net liability in the balance sheet is as follows:

Opening balance of liability (224,707) (207,495)

Expense recognised for the year 7.2.4 (74,268) (70,887)

Contributions made by the Company 89,234 70,619

Net actuarial gains / (losses) for the year 5,785 (16,944)

(203,956) (224,707)

7.2.4 The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account

in respect of these benefits:

Current service expense 47,240 40,922

Interest expense 80,435 64,990

Expected return on plan assets (53,407) (35,025)

74,268 70,887

7.2.5 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows: 2011 2010

------------------%------------------

Debt instruments 70 42

Mixed funds - . 13

Cash and cash equivalents 30 45

100 100

7.2.6 Historical information

As at September 30, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

---------------------------------(Rupees in '000)----------------------------------

Fair value of plan assets 375,936 402,338 338,082 348,671 368,633

Present value of defined benefit obligation (579,892) (627,045) (545,577) (441,555) (377,690)

Deficit (203,956) (224,707) (207,495) (92,884) (9,057)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 7% 5% 7% 11% 7%

Experience adjustment on plan assets 13% 3% -16% -12% -1%

7.2.7 The expected return on plan assets is taken as weighted average of the expected investment return on different assets of the

gratuity fund.

7.2.8 Actual profit on plan assets for the year ended September 30, 2011 was Rs 100.756 million (2010: Rs 46.511 million).

7.2.9 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the Company plans to contribute Rs 99 million to the gratuity fund during the year 2012.

Restated
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7.3 Workers' Profits Participation Fund 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year 88,991 119,428

Interest on funds utilised in Company's business 4,855 11,464

Amount allocated for the year 8,930 85,940

Amount paid to the Fund including interest (90,795) (127,841)

Balance at end of the year 11,981 88,991

8. PROVISIONS Warranties Liquidated Losses on Total

damages sales contracts

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------

Balance at beginning of the year 524,381 1,665,850 15,958 2,206,189

Additional provision 352,974 357,764 45,789 756,527

Reversal of utilised and unutilised amounts (241,906) (566,777) (23,696) (832,379)

Balance at end of the year 635,449 1,456,837 38,051 2,130,337

9. SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

From an associate - unsecured 9.1 3,716,440 4,281,123

From others - secured 9.2 109,373 16,108

- unsecured 9.3 122,814 - .

232,187 16,108

3,948,627 4,297,231

9.1 This facility is available from Siemens Financial Services (SFS), amounting to Rs 3,716 million (2010: Rs 4,281 million), to be utilised

in the UAE. The mark-up on this facility ranges between 0.64% and 1.33% per annum (2010: 0.64% and 1.50% per annum).

9.2 These facilities available from various banks aggregated to Rs 1,770 million (2010: Rs 1,608 million). The mark-up on these facilities

ranges between 13.56% and 15.34% per annum (2010: 13.00% and 16.00% per annum). These facilities are secured against the joint

hypothecation of inventories of finished goods, work-in-process, raw materials and components and present and future trade

receivables.

9.3 These facilities available from various banks aggregated to Rs 714 million (2010: Rs 1,191 million) in the UAE at mark-up rates

ranging between 4.10% and 5.54% (2010: 2.36% and 5.56%) per annum.

9.4 Other facilities granted by the banks and amounts remaining unutilised thereof as at September 30, 2011 are as follows:

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Letters of credit

- limit 2,113,000 9,091,865

- unutilised portion 1,221,050 8,204,048

Guarantees

- limit 10,034,365 14,165,891

- unutilised portion 4,188,434 8,118,698
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10. TAXATION 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Provision for taxation 2,667,648 2,535,935

Advance tax (918,076) (576,528)

1,749,572 1,959,407

11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

11.1 Contingencies:

11.1.1 During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Company served a notice of termination of the Operation and Maintenance Contract

(O & M Contract) to Karachi Electric Supply Company Limited (KESC) on account of material default by KESC on payments against the

O & M Contract and hiring of the Company’s officials without the Company’s consent. The Company filed suits on October 8, 2007

against KESC for recovery of outstanding payments in respect of fixed and variable fee of US$ 3.160 million and Rs 1,792.905 million

respectively, and termination charges of US$ 16 million, plus mark-up accrued thereon and against unauthorized access to the

Company’s intellectual property (i.e. SAP system) by KESC.

KESC filed a counter suit in the High Court of Sindh against the Company and Siemens AG, for the recovery of an aggregate sum of

Rs 56.986 billion on account of losses incurred by KESC under the O&M Contract executed by the Company. The maximum liability

clause included in the O&M Contract restricts the total exposure of the Company up to the sum equal to the fixed fee for the year to

which the claim relates, which amounts to US$ 16.538 million, equivalent to Rs 1,445.587 million. However, the Company strictly

maintains that if at all, its liability would be restricted to US$ 14 million, equivalent to Rs 1,223.740 million, representing the total

fixed fee received by the Company during the tenancy of the O&M Contract. The Company's management, based on the advice of its

legal advisor, is confident that the suit filed by KESC is not maintainable and will be decided in its favour. Accordingly, no provision

for any liability that may arise from this law suit has been made in these financial statements, pending a final decision by the above

referred court.

11.1.2 The Company has received a show cause notice, dated September 21, 2011, from the Competition Commission of Pakistan under

section 30 of the Competition Act, 2010, which is currently under evaluation. The financial implications thereof, if any, on these

financial statements cannot be determined at this stage.

11.1.3 The Company is defending various suits filed against it in various courts in Pakistan for sums, aggregating to Rs 159.980 million,

related to its business operations. The Company’s management is confident, based on the advice of its legal advisors, that these suits

will be decided in its favour and, accordingly, no provision has been made for any liability against these law suits in these financial

statements.

11.2 Commitments:

As at September 30, 2011 capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred amounted to Rs 78.254 million (2010: Rs 120.999

million).

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Operating assets 12.1 1,553,469 1,616,513

Capital work in progress 12.2 77,572 62,009

1,631,041 1,678,522
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12.1 Operating assets
As at October 1, 2010 During the year ended September 30, 2011 As at September 30, 2011

2011 Cost Accumulated Net book Additions / Depreciation / Net book Cost Accumulated Net book Depreciation

depreciation value (deletions) (on deletions) value of depreciation value rates as a

disposals % of cost

------------------------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)----------------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold land 53,149 25,995 27,154 - . 1,321 - . 53,149 27,316 25,833 2.5

Freehold land 544,011 - . 544,011 - . - . - . 544,011 - . 544,011 -

Buildings on leasehold / freehold land 428,855 112,859 315,996 12,290 11,514 - . 441,145 124,373 316,772 2.5 & 10

Plant and machinery 919,557 466,246 453,311 116,572 80,149 17 1,029,692 539,975 489,717 10,20,25

(6,437) (6,420) & 100

Tools and patterns 237,101 184,152 52,949 12,312 24,610 70 246,493 205,912 40,581 50

(2,920) (2,850)

Furniture and equipment 399,143 309,374 89,769 24,489 53,746 2,372 398,183 340,043 58,140 20,25,33.33

(25,449) (23,077) & 100

Vehicles 459,414 326,091 133,323 25,271 55,100 25,079 335,252 256,837 78,415 25 & 50

(149,433) (124,354)

3,041,230 1,424,717 1,616,513 190,934 226,440 27,538 3,047,925 1,494,456 1,553,469

(184,239) (156,701)

As at October 1, 2009 During the year ended September 30, 2010 As at September 30, 2010

2010 Cost Accumulated Net book Additions / Depreciation / Net book Cost Accumulated Net book Depreciation

depreciation value (deletions) (on deletions) value of depreciation value rates as a

disposals % of cost

------------------------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)----------------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold land 53,149 24,674 28,475 - . 1,321 - . 53,149 25,995 27,154 2.5

Freehold land 544,011 - . 544,011 - . - . - . 544,011 - . 544,011 -

Buildings on leasehold / freehold lands 424,534 102,338 322,196 4,321 10,521 - . 428,855 112,859 315,996 2.5 & 10

Plant and machinery 897,753 403,407 494,346 30,244 71,115 164 919,557 466,246 453,311 10,20,25

(8,440) (8,276) & 100

Tools and patterns 219,023 159,136 59,887 18,880 25,795 23 237,101 184,152 52,949 50

(802) (779)

Furniture and equipment 372,865 276,834 96,031 42,592 47,680 1,174 399,143 309,374 89,769 20,25,33.33

(16,314) (15,140) & 100

Vehicles 414,758 305,890 108,868 94,900 70,143 302 459,414 326,091 133,323 25 & 50

(50,244) (49,942)

2,926,093 1,272,279 1,653,814 190,937 226,575 1,663 3,041,230 1,424,717 1,616,513

(75,800) (74,137)
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12.2 Capital work in progress 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Plant, machinery and equipment under installation 71,352 55,734

Advances to suppliers 6,220 6,275

77,572 62,009

12.3 The fair value of property, plant and equipment as at September 30, 2011 approximated to Rs 5,961 million (2010: Rs 5,835 million).

12.4 Property, plant and equipment include items, having an aggregate cost of Rs 864.043 million (2010: Rs 766.276 million), which have

been fully depreciated and are still in use of the Company.

12.5 Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year

Original Accumulated Net book Sale Mode of Name & address of purchaser

cost depreciation value proceeds disposal

-------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

Plant and machinery

Items with book value

below Rs 50,000 each 6,437 6,420 17 - Various Various

6,437 6,420 17 -

Tools and patterns

Items with book value

below Rs 50,000 each 2,920 2,850 70 - Various Various

2,920 2,850 70 -

Furniture and equipment

Porta cabin 545 227 318 82 Negotiation Essa Engineering & Marine

Services - UAE, Dubai

Porta cabin 545 227 318 82 Negotiation ------------------do------------------

Porta cabin 369 111 258 50 Negotiation ------------------do------------------

Porta cabin 369 111 258 50 Negotiation ------------------do------------------

Porta cabin 605 474 131 47 Tender Tanja used Machinery -

UAE, Dubai

Porta cabin 603 523 80 84 Tender Dawar Al Matafi Metal Scrap

- UAE, Dubai

Porta cabin 603 523 80 83 Tender ------------------do------------------

Porta cabin 788 525 263 84 Tender ------------------do------------------

Porta cabin 335 223 112 42 Tender ------------------do------------------

Laptop 92 15 77 - Company policy Mr. Rahim Dawood -

Ex employee

Laptop 84 19 65 - Scrapped

Items with book value

below Rs 50,000 each 20,511 20,099 412 961 Various Various

25,449 23,077 2,372 1,565
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Original Accumulated Net book Sale Mode of Name & address of purchaser

cost depreciation value proceeds disposal

-------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

Vehicles

Car 652 571 81 585 Auction Mr. Amir Sajjad

House # 231-A

Ferozpur Road, Lahore

Car 1,869 273 1,596 1,854 Insurance claim

Car 1,200 825 375 1,223 Insurance claim

Car 772 386 386 765 Insurance claim

Car 1,269 264 1,005 1,304 Insurance claim

Car 1,869 389 1,480 1,558 Company policy Mr. Shahid Ahmed -

Ex employee, Karachi

Car 1,879 431 1,448 940 Company policy Mr. Aijaz Saleem -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,849 501 1,348 924 Company policy Mr. Mansoor Farooqui -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,869 545 1,324 934 Company policy Mr. Mansoor Iqbal Khan -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,869 545 1,324 935 Company policy Mr. Mohammad Rafi -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,848 539 1,309 924 Company policy Mr. Syed Asadullah -

Employee, Islamabad (*)

Car 1,414 354 1,060 707 Company policy Mr. Safdar Ibrahim -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,414 383 1,031 707 Company policy Mr. Suhail Anwer -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,239 310 929 981 Company policy Mr. Khalid Jamal - Ex

employee, Karachi

Car 827 172 655 414 Company policy Mr. Khalil ur Rehman -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 810 203 607 405 Company policy Mr. Sabih Hasan - Employee,

Karachi (*)

Car 810 203 607 405 Company policy Mr. Kashif Hussain -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 795 248 547 398 Company policy Mr. Khurram Iqbal -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 795 248 547 398 Company policy Mr. Asifullah - Employee,

Karachi (*)

Car 770 241 529 385 Company policy Ms. Wajeeha Rafat -

Ex employee, Karachi (*)

Car 1,200 775 425 600 Company policy Mr. Irfan Ahmed -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 755 346 409 340 Company policy Mr. Asim Hashmi -

Employee, Karachi (*)

Total carried forward to next page 27,774 8,752 19,022 17,686

(*) Vehicles disposed off as per one time policy as part of cost saving measures, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on April 28, 2011.



101 Financial Data

101 Auditors’ Review Report
102 Statement of Compliance
104 Auditors’ Report
106 Balance Sheet
108 Profit and Loss Account

109 Statement of Comprehensive Income
110 Cash Flow Statement
111 Statement of Changes in Equity
112 Notes to the Financial Statements

68 Our Technology

127

Original Accumulated Net book Sale Mode of Name & address of purchaser
cost depreciation value proceeds disposal

-------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------
Total brought forward
from previous page 27,774 8,752 19,022 17,686

Car 755 346 409 340 Company policy Mr. Sajid Rizvi -
Employee, Islamabad (*)

Car 792 413 379 356 Company policy Mr. Tahir Nazir -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 792 413 379 356 Company policy Mr. Shahzad Yaseen -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 755 378 377 340 Company policy Mr. Mustafa Ali -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 2,750 2,406 344 688 Company policy Mr. Rahim Dawood -
Ex employee, Karachi

Car 772 450 322 347 Company policy Ms. Salma Kamal -
Ex employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 466 306 309 Company policy Mr. Siraj Alamzeb -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 466 306 309 Company policy Mr. Zaid Hanif -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 483 289 309 Company policy Mr. Iqbal Ahmed -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 483 289 309 Company policy Mr. Syed Muhammad Rizwan
- Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 483 289 309 Company policy Mr. Khurram Khan -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 772 483 289 309 Company policy Mr. Rizwan Ali -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 767 479 288 309 Company policy Mr. Najmus Saqib Khan -
Ex employee, Karachi (*)

Car 2,750 2,464 286 688 Company policy Mr. Amin Bandhani -
Ex employee, Karachi

Car 772 499 273 309 Company policy Mr. Majid Jameel -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 662 469 193 265 Company policy Mr. Ahsan Raza -
Employee, Lahore (*)

Car 651 529 122 260 Company policy Mr. Faisal Yaqub -
Employee, Islamabad (*)

Car 652 557 95 261 Company policy Mr. Wasiul Haq -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 360 278 82 110 Company policy Mr. Tahir Naushahi -
Employee, Lahore (*)

Car 652 571 81 228 Company policy Mr. Syed Nasiruddin -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 652 571 81 228 Company policy Mr. Zafar Javed -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 652 584 68 228 Company policy Mr. Sarfaraz Awan -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 694 636 58 228 Company policy Mr. Asadullah Shaikh -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 652 598 54 228 Company policy Mr. Muhammad Adnan -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Car 652 598 54 228 Company policy Mr. Yousuf Mubarak -
Employee, Karachi (*)

Items with book value
below Rs 50,000 each 99,843 99,499 344 53,351 Various Various

149,433 124,354 25,079 78,888

September 30, 2011 184,239 156,701 27,538 80,453

September 30, 2010 75,800 74,137 1,663 28,973

(*) Vehicles disposed off as per one time policy as part of cost saving measures, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on April 28, 2011.
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at October 1, 2010 During the year ended September 30, 2011 As at September 30, 2011

2011 Cost Accumulated Net book Additions/ Amortisation/ Net book Cost Accumulated Net book Amortisation

amortisation value (write off) (on write off) value of amortisation value rate as a

write off % of cost

----------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)----------------------------------------------------------

Software 87,305 84,558 2,747 - . 2,497 - . 86,993 86,743 250 33.33

(312) (312)

87,305 84,558 2,747 - . 2,497 - . 86,993 86,743 250

(312) (312)

2010 87,131 81,099 6,032 174 3,459 - . 87,305 84,558 2,747 33.33

13.1 Intangible assets include items, having an aggregate cost of Rs 84.102 million (2010: Rs 79.095 million), which have been fully

amortised and are still in use of the Company.

14. Depreciation and amortisation have been allocated as follows:

Depreciation Amortisation 2011 2010

Total Total

Note -----------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------------------

Cost of sales 26.1 164,702 1,816 166,518 162,915

Marketing and selling expenses 27 51,928 573 52,501 53,421

General administrative expenses 28 9,810 108 9,918 13,698

226,440 2,497 228,937 230,034

15. LONG-TERM LOANS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Loans

Considered good - secured

Due from executives 15.1 & 15.2 1,438 2,490

Due from other employees 15.1 910 1,324

2,348 3,814

Receivable within one year shown under current assets 21 (1,456) (1,765)

Long term portion 892 2,049

Discounting to present value (170) (488)

722 1,561

Trade receivables

Considered good 973,005 922,890

Considered doubtful 55,037 6,094

1,028,042 928,984

Provision for doubtful trade receivables (55,037) (6,094)

Discounting to present value (79,057) (69,979)

893,948 852,911

894,670 854,472
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15.1 These represent interest free housing loans provided to the executives and other employees in accordance with the Company’s policy.

The loans are secured against the respective assets for which the loans have been granted and are recoverable in periods ranging

between one and ten years in equal monthly installments.

15.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year 2,490 3,887

Repayments (1,052) (1,397)

1,438 2,490

Maximum amount outstanding at end of any month

during the year against loans to executives 2,420 3,409

16. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits 4,006 5,113

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Restated

Debit / (credit) balances arising in respect of:

Provision for doubtful trade receivables, deposits and other receivables 467,617 329,287

Provision for obsolete and slow moving items of inventories 93,853 105,911

Provision for liquidated damages 493,004 562,959

Provision for warranties 272,185 251,693

Actuarial losses 65,509 68,805

Discounting of long-term receivables 26,811 23,813

Minimum tax 8,848 - .

Other short-term provisions 76,612 71,680

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation (84,182) (91,825)

1,420,257 1,322,323

18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials and components 1,266,499 1,259,337

Work-in-process 1,476,900 1,478,625

Finished goods 18.1 814,287 955,618

3,557,686 3,693,580

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (552,095) (626,805)

3,005,591 3,066,775

Goods-in-transit 319,484 667,522

3,325,075 3,734,297

18.1 These include items, costing Rs 2.347 million (2010: Rs 3.586 million), valued at their net realisable value of Rs 1.891 million (2010:

Rs 3.046 million).
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Considered good

Due from related parties 19.1 593,137 702,147

Due from others [including retention money of Rs

4,185.347 million (2010: Rs 6,481.868 million)] 8,290,031 9,616,219

8,883,168 10,318,366

Considered doubtful - others 1,106,970 892,472

9,990,138 11,210,838

Provision for doubtful receivables (1,106,970) (892,472)

8,883,168 10,318,366

19.1 These represent amounts due from the associates of the Company.

19.2 For ageing analysis and movement of provision, refer note 43.2.

20. DUE AGAINST CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS

Considered good 3,984,686 4,346,973

Considered doubtful 97,138 16,040

4,081,824 4,363,013

Provision for doubtful construction work in progress (97,138) (16,040)

3,984,686 4,346,973

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good

Current portion of loans due from:

Executives 848 1,110

Other employees 608 655

15 1,456 1,765

Advances to:

Executives 902 1,003

Suppliers 110,708 374,712

Other employees 4,609 6,920

116,219 382,635

117,675 384,400

22. DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits

Considered good 110,369 131,174

Considered doubtful 49,862 30,786

160,231 161,960

Provision for doubtful deposits (49,862) (30,786)

110,369 131,174

Prepayments 8,620 8,020

118,989 139,194
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Considered good

Sales tax refundable 190,771 331,537

Accrued mark-up 4,880 9,304

Derivative financial instruments 6,325 20,284

Others 37,791 66,142

239,767 427,267

Considered doubtful

Sales tax refundable 34,574 - .

Others 38,237 29,000

72,811 29,000

312,578 456,267

Provision against doubtful other receivables (72,811) (29,000)

239,767 427,267

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks in

Current accounts 24.1 300,940 980,436

Deposit accounts 24.2 290,470 205,693

Cheques in hand 123,978 202,234

Cash in hand 3,980 7,903

719,368 1,396,266

24.1 Included herein is a sum of Rs 0.088 million, representing balance in a bank account in Afghanistan not in the Company's control as

it has been confiscated by the Ministry of Finance, Afghanistan.

24.2 The rate of mark-up on these accounts ranges between 9.00% and 10.75% (2010: 9.00% and 10.05%) per annum.

25. NET SALES AND SERVICES 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Execution of contracts - outside Pakistan 3,774,444 10,674,064

- local 2,513,480 3,897,562

6,287,924 14,571,626

Sale of goods - outside Pakistan 176,460 367,393

- local 8,502,432 11,297,741

8,678,892 11,665,134

Rendering of services - outside Pakistan 334,404 120,566

- local 426,241 462,078

760,645 582,644

Gross sales and services 15,727,461 26,819,404

Commission paid (28,379) (80,693)

Sales tax (639,526) (489,869)

15,059,556 26,248,842
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26. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Opening inventory of finished goods 955,618 1,198,627

Cost of goods manufactured and services rendered 26.1 12,329,742 21,738,701

Finished goods purchased 472,013 386,135

13,757,373 23,323,463

Closing inventory of finished goods 18 (814,287) (955,618)

12,943,086 22,367,845

26.1 Cost of goods manufactured and services rendered

Opening inventories

Raw materials and components 1,259,337 1,151,734

Goods-in-transit 667,522 892,223

Work-in-process 1,478,625 1,629,687

3,405,484 3,673,644

Purchase of goods and services 8,458,592 16,329,922

Salaries, wages and employees welfare expenses 1,735,513 1,938,320

Gratuity 38,652 34,321

Provident fund contribution 26,301 19,304

Fuel, power and water 346,869 378,853

Repairs and maintenance 91,592 154,790

Rent, rates and taxes 276,488 410,177

Liquidated damages (81,078) 358,296

Warranty 208,570 24,752

Other contractual obligations (31,322) (27,117)

Inventories written off - . 418

(Reversal of provision) / provision for slow moving and

obsolete items of inventories (74,710) 121,965

IT, networking and data communication 75,579 79,439

Insurance 65,805 71,161

Depreciation and amortisation 14 166,518 162,915

Transportation 44,106 70,990

Travelling and conveyance 416,326 502,163

Exchange loss 44,395 588,863

Stationery, telex and telephone 88,534 114,856

Others 141,086 245,336

15,443,300 25,253,368

Closing inventories

Raw materials and components (1,266,499) (1,259,337)

Goods-in-transit (319,484) (667,522)

Work-in-process (1,476,900) (1,478,625)

(3,062,883) (3,405,484)

12,380,417 21,847,884

Sale of scrap (50,675) (109,183)

12,329,742 21,738,701

Restated
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27. MARKETING AND SELLING EXPENSES 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Salaries and employees welfare expenses 428,455 445,350

Gratuity 23,981 18,416

Provident fund contribution 15,502 19,475

Fuel, power and water 74,905 58,463

Repairs and maintenance 34,999 32,217

Advertising and sales promotion 21,357 34,636

Rent, rates and taxes 26,902 37,617

Insurance 13,813 11,971

Provision for doubtful advances 2,579 - .

Provision for doubtful trade receivables 263,441 372,565

Provision for doubtful construction work in progress 81,098 412

Provision for doubtful deposits 19,076 2,310

Provision for doubtful other receivables 43,811 10,783

Factoring of trade receivables - . 122,860

Bad debts written off 4,623 14,551

Depreciation and amortisation 14 52,501 53,421

Travelling and conveyance 62,757 72,280

Transportation 78,494 85,164

Stationery, telex and telephone 24,360 26,497

IT, networking and data communication 40,958 42,334

Others 15,215 18,689

1,328,827 1,480,011

28. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and employees welfare expenses 181,384 315,067

Gratuity 11,635 18,150

Provident fund contribution 6,607 7,868

Fuel, power and water 13,318 15,481

Repairs and maintenance 6,530 16,477

Rent, rates and taxes 4,192 2,824

Insurance 1,668 1,930

Auditors' remuneration 36 4,293 3,158

Depreciation and amortisation 14 9,918 13,698

Travelling and conveyance 22,943 17,533

Stationery, telex and telephone 8,300 7,782

IT, networking and data communication 10,686 12,725

Legal and professional charges 235,710 13,605

Donations 28.1 - . 31,250

Workers' Profits Participation Fund 8,930 85,940

Workers' Welfare Fund 5,792 43,133

Others 48,993 18,565

580,899 625,186

Restated
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28.1 Donations included the following in which a director or spouse of a director were interested:

Name and Interested Interest in 2011 2010

address of director or donee Note (Rupees in ‘000)

donee his spouse

Red Crescent Society Mr. Sohail Wajahat H. Siddiqui Chairman 28.1.1 - . 30,000 .

PRCS Sindh Provincial Branch Ex CEO

Hilal-e-Ahmar House, Main

Clifton Road, Karachi.

Aga Khan Hospital & Medical Spouse of Mr. Sohail Wajahat Member of

College Foundation H. Siddiqui annual giving

Stadium Road, Karachi. Committee - . 1,000

- . 31,000

28.1.1 This represented generating sets, costing Rs 30 million, donated by the Company to the flood relief.

29. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 52,915 27,310

Liabilities no longer payable written back 4,730 115,131

Rental income 2,357 3,984

60,002 146,425

30. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

Mark-up from trade and other receivables 6,675 2,799

Income on amounts placed with banks under deposit accounts 41,653 16,867

Exchange gain 6,380 10,909

Financial income 54,708 30,575

Interest on Workers' Profits Participation Fund 4,855 11,464

Mark-up on short-term running finances 54,595 67,598

Mark-up on trade and other payables 13,758 10,805

Commission on guarantees 90,590 124,941

Bank charges for services 66,812 256,441

Provision / (reversal of provision) for discounting on

long-term receivables 8,761 (40,787)

Financial expenses 239,371 430,462

Net finance costs 184,663 399,887

31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current 191,999 819,640

Deferred (101,229) (240,852)

31.1 90,770 578,788
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31.1 Reconciliation of income tax expense for the year 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Accounting profit 158,178 1,590,067

Enacted tax rate 35% 35%

Tax on accounting profit at enacted rate 55,362 556,523

Tax effect of income assessed under Final Tax Regime (27,115) (31,267)

Tax effect of expenses that are not allowable in determining taxable income 450 1,327

Foreign tax 62,073 52,205

90,770 578,788

31.2 The Company makes provision for taxation based on its understanding of the tax laws and regulations and on the basis of advices

from its tax consultant. These provisions may require change in case these laws and regulations are interpreted differently by tax

authorities and the Company’s appeals are not accepted at various forums.

32. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share

of the Company, which is based on:

Net profit for the year 67,408 1,011,279

(No. of shares)

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares 8,247,037 8,247,037

(Rupees)

Basic and diluted earnings per share 8.17 122.62

33. CASH GENERATED FROM / (UTILISED IN) OPERATIONS 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Profit before tax 158,178 1,590,067

Adjustment for non-cash expenses and other items:

Depreciation and amortisation 228,937 230,034

(Reversal of provision) / provision for slow moving

and obsolete inventories (74,710) 121,965

Provision for doubtful trade receivables 263,441 372,565

Provision for doubtful construction work in progress 81,098 412

Provision for doubtful deposits 19,076 2,310

Provision for doubtful other receivables 43,811 10,783

Provision for Workers' Profits Participation Fund 8,930 85,940

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (52,915) (27,310)

Gratuity 74,268 70,887

Long-term loans and trade receivables (89,141) 334,313

Long-term deposits 1,107 973

Retention money payable (98,198) (24,137)

Other non-current liabilities 8,866 (2,045)

Financial expenses 230,610 471,249

Financial income (48,328) (19,666)

Working capital changes 33.1 297,821 (3,509,486)

1,052,851 (291,146)

Restated
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33.1 Working capital changes 2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Inventories 483,932 511,169

Trade receivables 1,220,700 (1,029,336)

Due against construction work in progress 281,189 (423,475)

Loans and advances 266,725 81,461

Deposits and short-term prepayments 1,129 6,741

Other receivables 139,265 (23,652)

2,392,940 (877,092)

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (2,019,267) (2,745,648)

Provisions (75,852) 113,254

(2,095,119) (2,632,394)

297,821 (3,509,486)

34. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (DIRECT METHOD)

Cash receipts from customers 17,784,662 26,033,578

Cash paid to suppliers, service providers and employees (16,731,811) (26,324,724)

Payment to Gratuity Fund (89,234) (70,619)

Financial expenses paid (236,022) (462,684)

Income tax paid (401,835) (748,351)

Payment to Workers' Profits Participation Fund (85,940) (116,377)

239,820 (1,689,177)

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 24 719,368 1,396,266

Short-term running finances 9 (3,948,627) (4,297,231)

(3,229,259) (2,900,965)

36. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit fee 3,011 1,615

Special reports and certifications, review

of half yearly accounts, audits of Workers'

Profits Participation Fund and Gratuity Fund 680 875

Out of pocket expenses 602 668

4,293 3,158

37. LONG-TERM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue for the year 6,287,924 14,571,626

Contract revenue to date 87,358,203 81,070,279

Contract costs incurred to date 77,592,810 72,396,304

Gross profit realised to date 9,765,393 8,673,975

Balance of advances received 826,762 634,797

Retention money receivable 4,119,250 7,244,118

Gross amount due from customers 6,960,703 7,718,914

Estimated future costs to complete projects in progress 37.1 8,448,569 9,947,131
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37.1 As part of application of percentage of completion method on contract accounting, the plan costs are estimated. These estimates are

based on the prices of materials and services applicable at that time, forecasted increases and expected completion date at the time

of such estimation. Such estimates are reviewed at regular intervals. Any subsequent changes in the prices of materials and services

compared to forecasted prices and changes in the time of completion affect the results of the subsequent periods.

38. REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements in respect of remuneration and fringe benefits of the chief executive,

directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

2011 2010

Chief Chief

Executive Directors Executives Executive Directors Executives

----------------------------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)--------------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration 78,555 4,400 661,037 70,926 52,611 685,533

Retirement benefits and

Company's contribution to

provident fund 10,559 - . 81,967 9,586 - . 72,545

Perquisites and benefits:

- Group insurance and medical 3,169 - . 9,357 370 87 10,578

- (Reversal of accrual) / accrual

for share based benefits (7,597) - . (5,361) 11,220 4,679 4,812

- Long service bonus - . - . 8,906 - . - . 8,229

- Rent and others 3,817 - . 2,470 7,612 5,866 3,363

88,503 4,400 758,376 99,714 63,243 785,060

Number of persons 1 2 285 1 4 265

38.1 In addition to the above, remuneration and fringe benefits of one expatriate executive (2010: two executives) hired for projects

amounted to Rs 14.900 million (2010: Rs 23.000 million).

38.2 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid to seven directors (2010: seven) was Rs

0.270 million (2010: Rs 0.160 million).

38.3 The Chief Executive and one hundred executives (2010: one hundred and ninety three) have been provided with free use of

Company's cars. The Chief Executive was provided with free maintenance and furnishing of accommodation.

38.4 The Chief Executive was also provided with telephone facility at his residence.
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38.5 The above balances include an amount of Rs 146.097 million (2010: Rs 217.681 million) on account of compensation to key

management personnel, the details of which are as follows:

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Short-term employee benefits 135,783 180,310

Post-employment benefits 17,747 15,825

Other long-term benefits 1,062 835

(Reversal of accrual) / accrual for share based benefits (8,495) 20,711

146,097 217,681

39. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Certain key management employees are entitled to participate in the share based payment plans of Siemens AG. Under the

arrangements, Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs), Phantom Stock Awards (PSA) and / or Siemens Stock Awards (SSA) are granted to

these employees. These plans are cash settled plans. On exercising, the related share based payments are made by the Company.

Stock appreciation rights

The grant of SARs to employees are subject to a two year vesting period, after which they may be exercised for a period of up to three

years and are settled in cash only. Compensation in cash shall be equal to the difference between the exercise price and the opening

market price of the Siemens AG's stocks on the day of exercising the stock option.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of SARs are as follows:

2011 2010

Weighted Number of Weighted Number of

average SARs average SARs

exercise price exercise price

Euro Euro

Outstanding at beginning of the year 74.59 9,645 74.59 9,645

Exercised during the year 84.50 (5,145) - . - .

Forfeited during the year - . (4,500) - . - .

Outstanding at end of the year - . - . 74.59 9,645

Exercisable at end of year - . - . 74.59 9,645

The determination of the fair value of grants is based on a Black-Scholes option pricing model, which was developed for use in

estimating the fair values of options that have no vesting restrictions. Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective

assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Assumptions made at the grant date in estimating the fair value of grants

made are as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 2.99%
Expected dividend yield 2.41%
Expected volatility 18.30%
Expected option life 3.5 years
Estimated weighted average fair value per option Euro 4.06
Fair value of total options granted during the year Euro 11

No SARs were granted during the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2011.
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The expected volatility is based on historical volatility of Siemens AG shares, implied volatility of traded options with similar terms

and features and certain other factors. The expected term is derived by applying the simplified method and is determined as the

average of the vesting term and the contractual term. The risk-free interest is based on the applicable government bonds. Changes

in subjective assumptions can materially affect the fair value of the option.

Phantom Stock Awards and Siemens Stock Awards

PSA and SSA are subject to a three year vesting period and the grantees receive the share price equivalent value in cash at the end

of three year vesting period. Details of PSA and SSA are as follows:

2011 2010

Number of Awards

Balance as at beginning of the year 8,315 7,994

Granted during the year 515 1,567

Paid during the year (3,021) (1,246)

Expired during the year (113) - .

Balance as at end of the year 5,696 8,315

PSA and SSA are remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date.

Total expense for share based payments during the year ended September 30, 2011 was Rs 12.306 million (2010: Rs 20.711 million).

The liabilities for cash settled arrangements as of September 30, 2011 aggregated to Rs 36.262 million (2010: Rs 57.500 million).

40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Siemens AG, its subsidiaries and associates and other companies with common directorship with

significant influence on other companies, employees retirement benefit funds and key management employees. Transactions with

related parties can be summarised as follows:

2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Parent company

Sales of goods and rendering of services 149,815 56,291

Purchases of goods and receipt of services 1,990,498 4,228,640

Commission and allowances earned 40,438 47,966

Dividends 326,632 490,601

Associated companies

Sales of goods and rendering of services 150,656 102,055

Purchases of goods and receipt of services 1,256,525 1,209,441

Commission and allowances earned 34,339 15,321

Liabilities no longer payable written back - . 72,685

Financial expenses 30,514 21,208

Financial income 402 68

Others

Dividends 30 45

Contribution to employees' retirement benefits 122,679 117,532

Compensation to key management personnel 38.5 146,097 212,854
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40.1 Amounts due from and due to related parties, amounts due from executives and remuneration of the Chief Executive, directors and

executives are disclosed in the relevant notes.

40.2 Transactions with related parties were carried out on commercial terms and conditions and at prices agreed based on inter company

prices.

41. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION Capacity Actual Actual

Production Production

2011 2010

Electric motors and alternators 150,000 HP 118,463 HP 116,044 HP

Motors control gears and control boards 1,000 Nos. 24 Nos. 33 Nos.

Electric transformers 3,000 MVA 1,777 MVA 2,608 MVA

Generating sets 95,000 KVA 38,734 KVA 10,000 KVA

Switchgears and distribution boards 4,500 Nos. 1,087 Nos. 3,613 Nos.

41.1 The under utilisation is mainly attributed to reduced demand owing to imports by private and public sectors.
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42. BALANCE SHEET AS AT BEGINNING OF THE COMPARATIVE YEAR

The balance sheet as at the beginning of the comparative year (i.e., as of October 1, 2009) as referred to in note 3.20(1) has been
presented as follows;

2009
(Rupees in ‘000)

Equity and liabilities Original
Share capital and reserves
Share capital
- Authorised
20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 200,000 200,000

- Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 82,470 82,470

Reserves
Capital 624,192 624,192
Revenue 6,071,231 6,204,531

6,695,423 6,828,723

Total equity 6,777,893 6,911,193

Non-current liabilities
Retention money 175,719 175,719
Other non-current liabilities 22,138 22,138

197,857 197,857
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11,692,115 11,493,646
Provisions 2,092,935 2,092,935
Short-term running finances 1,674,696 1,674,696
Taxation - net 1,888,118 1,888,118

17,347,864 17,149,395

Total liabilities 17,545,721 17,347,252

Total equity and liabilities 24,323,614 24,258,445

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment 1,662,500 1,662,500
Intangible assets 6,032 6,032

1,668,532 1,668,532

Long-term loans and trade receivables 1,190,898 1,190,898

Long-term deposits and prepayments 6,086 6,086

Deferred tax asset 1,077,835 1,012,666
3,943,351 3,878,182

Current assets
Inventories 4,367,431 4,367,431
Trade receivables 9,659,481 9,659,481
Due against construction work in progress 3,923,911 3,923,911
Loans and advances 465,861 465,861
Deposits and short-term prepayments 119,245 119,245
Other receivables 441,240 441,240
Cash and bank balances 1,403,094 1,403,094

20,380,263 20,380,263

Total assets 24,323,614 24,258,445

OriginalRestated
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's financial liabilities mainly comprise trade and other payables and short-term running finances. The main purpose of
financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company's financial assets comprise loans to employees, deposits,
trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

43.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity price risks. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within an acceptable range.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating
activities in Pakistan and the UAE.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging its exposure to fluctuations on the translations into Rupees by obtaining
forward cover, swap transactions and options against its foreign currency denominated payables and receivables. In respect of anticipated
future transactions, the following have been taken at the balance sheet date to hedge the foreign currency liabilities and receivables.

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Forward exchange contracts

- Purchased value 1,130,512 964,608

- Fair value 1,128,272 983,404

Swaps

- Purchased value 1,329 3,404

- Fair value 1,330 3,622

Options

- Purchased value 185,007 - .

- Fair value 172,140 - .

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk in major currencies at their gross values is as follows:

2011 2010

(AED in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables 263,486 305,692

Cash and bank balances 45 27,358

Trade and other payables (96,081) (156,810)

Short-term running finances (161,301) (182,099)

6,149 (5,859)
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2011 2010
(EUR in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables 7,086 12,713
Cash and bank balances - . 1,655
Trade and other payables (2,784) (7,855)

4,302 6,513

2011 2010
(USD in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables 6,560 4,370
Cash and bank balances 3,301 - .
Trade and other payables (3,515) (5,607)

6,346 (1,237)

2011 2010
(JPY in ‘000)

Trade and other receivables 31,701 - .

The following is the demonstration of the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rate of all currencies applied to
assets and liabilities as at September 30, 2011 represented in foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, of the
Company's profit before tax.

2011 2010

Change in exchange rate ± 1% 1%
Effect on Profit before tax (Rs '000) ± 10,701 3,053

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company's short-
term deposits and running finances.

The Company's policy is to keep its short-term running finances at the lowest level by effectively utilising the positive cash and bank
balances. Further, the Company also minimises the interest rate risk by investing in fixed rate investments like Term Deposit Receipts.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2011 2010 2011 2010
Effective rates (%) (Rupees in '000)

Financial Assets

Cash and bank balances 9.96 9.50 290,470 205,693

Financial Liabilities

Short-term running finances (AED) 2.87 0.84 3,839,254 4,281,123
Short-term running finances (Rs.) 14.71 14.17 109,373 16,108

3,948,627 4,297,231
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A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rates at the reporting date would have changed Company's profit before tax for the
year by the amount shown below, with all other variables held constant.

2011 2010

Change in interest rate ± 1% 1%
Effect on Profit before tax (Rs '000) ± 15,967 17,981

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity investments. The Company is not exposed to any equity
price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in equity shares.

43.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely to perform
as contracted. It mainly comprise of trade receivables, advances to suppliers, trade deposits and bank balances. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2011 2010
(Rupees in ‘000)

Loans to employees 2,178 3,326
Advances to employees 5,511 7,923
Advances to suppliers 110,708 374,712
Trade deposits 114,375 107,287
Trade receivables 9,777,116 11,171,277
Due against construction work in progress 3,984,686 4,346,973
Other receivables 48,996 95,730
Bank balances 715,388 1,388,363

14,758,958 17,495,591

Concentration of credit risk

The sector wise analysis of receivables including trade receivables, due against construction work in progress, advances to suppliers
and trade deposits based on their gross values is given below:

2011 2010
(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in '000) %

Government sector
Energy 7,860,275 53 9,701,022 59
Communication 185,283 1 339,564 2
Health 105,237 1 106,587 1
Aviation 266,498 2 47,671 -
Others 1,034,713 7 1,363,518 8
Sub-total 9,452,006 64 11,558,362 70

Private sector
Energy 3,324,803 22 3,993,180 24
Communication 18,237 - 39,173 -
Health 26,285 - 42,861 -
Cement Industry 11,813 - 13,696 -
Dealers and agents 82,671 1 82,716 1
Aviation 13,829 - 3,981 -
Others 1,946,362 13 743,595 5
Sub-total 5,424,000 36 4,919,202 30
Total 14,876,006 100 16,477,564 100
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Trade receivables

To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivables, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on

an extensive credit rating scorecards. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company endeavors to cover

the credit risks on government sector trade receivables, where possible, by restricting credit facility to the projects which are financed

by multilateral financial institutions and / or financed by special allocation of funds by the provincial / federal governments. Business

with government sector customers is also secured by way of inland letters of credit where possible. Credit risk on private sector is

covered to the maximum extent possible through letters of credit or legally binding contracts.

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

2011 2010

Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Not yet due 6,738,626 6,310,998

Past due 1-180 days 964,464 2,271,740

Past due 181-360 days 565,156 819,807

Past due 361-720 days 776,643 1,355,603

Past due 721-1080 days 1,189,464 522,321

Over 1080 days 783,827 859,353

11,018,180 12,139,822

Less: Provision for impairment 15 & 19 (1,162,007) (898,566)

Less: Discounting on long-term receivables 15 (79,057) (69,979)

9,777,116 11,171,277

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year 898,566 526,001

Additional provision 420,700 495,856

Provision utilised against write offs (4,623) (14,551)

Reversals of provision (152,636) (108,740)

Balance at end of the year 1,162,007 898,566

Trade deposits and other receivables

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade deposits and other receivables during the year was as follows:

2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance at beginning of the year 59,786 46,693

Additional provision 69,012 21,683

Reversals of provision (6,125) (8,590)

Balance at end of the year 122,673 59,786

Cash and bank balances

The Company keeps its surplus funds with the banks having good credit rating. Currently the surplus funds are kept with banks

having rating A1+.
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43.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk

management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount

of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the Company's business, the

treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under control committed credit lines. The facilities available to the

Company have been detailed in notes 9.1 to 9.4.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the reporting date.

Carrying Less than 12 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years

amount months

--------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------

Financial liabilities

2011

Long-term retention money 53,384 - . 47,483 5,901

Trade and other payables 4,816,719 4,816,719 - . - .

Short-term running finances 3,948,627 3,948,627 - . - .

8,818,730 8,765,346 47,483 5,901

2010

Long-term retention money 151,582 - . 124,235 27,347

Trade and other payables 6,560,791 6,560,791 - . - .

Short-term running finances 4,297,231 4,297,231 - . - .

11,009,604 10,858,022 124,235 27,347

44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities are estimated to approximate their fair values.

45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in

economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.



101 Financial Data

101 Auditors’ Review Report
102 Statement of Compliance
104 Auditors’ Report
106 Balance Sheet
108 Profit and Loss Account

109 Statement of Comprehensive Income
110 Cash Flow Statement
111 Statement of Changes in Equity
112 Notes to the Financial Statements

68 Our Technology

147

46. INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Energy Industry Healthcare Eliminations Total

2011

REVENUE --------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------

Sales to external customers 9,758,129 5,010,710 290,717 - . 15,059,556
Inter-segment sales 778,790 335,422 6,227 (1,120,439) - .
Total revenue 10,536,919 5,346,132 296,944 (1,120,439) 15,059,556

RESULT

Segment result 112,952 199,499 (124,111) - . 188,340
Unallocated expenses (14,722)

173,618
Interest expense (59,450)
Other operating income 2,357
Interest income 41,653
Income tax expense (90,770)
Net profit for the year 67,408

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital expenditure 139,982 43,209 395 - .

Depreciation and amortisation 111,761 56,207 12,099 - .

Non-cash expenses other
than depreciation and amortisation 195 825 (53) - .

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Segment assets 14,089,689 3,065,855 300,623 - . 17,456,167

Segment liabilities 10,337,150 1,680,990 134,215 - . 12,152,355

2010 Restated

REVENUE

Sales to external customers 19,227,202 6,444,430 577,210 - . 26,248,842
Inter-segment sales 1,201,364 307,205 - . (1,508,569) - .
Total revenue 20,428,566 6,751,635 577,210 (1,508,569) 26,248,842

RESULT

Segment result 1,390,821 373,865 12,665 - . 1,777,351
Unallocated expenses (129,073)

1,648,278
Interest expense (79,062)
Other operating income 3,984
Interest income 16,867
Income tax expense (578,788)
Net profit for the year 1,011,279

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital expenditure 101,248 81,182 5,862 - .

Depreciation and amortisation 103,236 56,935 8,151 - .

Non-cash expenses other
than depreciation and amortisation (323) (380) 38 - .

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Segment assets 15,579,948 3,815,814 501,253 - . 19,897,015

Segment liabilities 12,530,215 1,983,480 232,474 - . 14,746,169

Restated
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46.1 The Company is operating through three business segments, namely Energy, Industry and Healthcare. The energy segment mainly

relates to supply and installation of transformers, switchboards, and other related power generation, transmission, and distribution

equipment and related services. Industry segment includes designing, engineering and construction services in electrical field,

mechanical field, information technology services, diesel generating sets, motors, alternators and drives etc. Healthcare segment

include supply and services of health care and related equipment.

46.2 Geographical information 2011 2010

Revenues from external customers (Rupees in ‘000)

Pakistan 10,442,682 14,406,078

United Arab Emirates 2,572,187 9,895,137

Afghanistan 1,247,950 895,752

Germany 272,223 568,214

Others 524,514 483,661

15,059,556 26,248,842

The revenue information above is based on the location of customers.

Sales in the year 2010 included an amount of Rs 8,364.238 million and Rs 5,670.583 million derived from two external customers

exceeding 10% of total sales of the Company. These revenues were attributable to the Energy segment of the Company.

Non-current assets 2011 2010
(Rupees in ‘000)

Pakistan 1,692,727 1,753,598

United Arab Emirates 835,229 771,649

Afghanistan 2,011 15,607

2,529,967 2,540,854

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other long-term receivables

except for deferred tax asset.

46.3 Transfer prices between operating segments are on commercial terms and conditions.

46.4 Segment assets and liabilities

Reportable segments' assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:
2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Segment assets for reportable segments 17,456,167 19,897,015

Corporate assets 972,177 1,002,822

Unallocated

Deferred tax asset 1,420,257 1,322,323

Cash and bank balances 719,368 1,396,266

Others 770,983 991,514

Total assets as per balance sheet 21,338,952 24,609,940

Restated
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Reportable segments' liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows:
2011 2010

(Rupees in ‘000)

Restated

Segment liabilities for reportable segments 12,152,355 14,746,169

Corporate liabilities 167,451 190,626

Unallocated

Trade and other payables 551,495 663,999

Short-term running finances 109,373 16,108

Taxation - net 1,749,572 1,959,407

Total liabilities as per balance sheet 14,730,246 17,576,309

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of receivables, inventories and property, plant

and equipment, net of impairment and provisions but do not include deferred taxes. Segment liabilities include all operating

liabilities and consist principally of accounts payable, advances and accrued and other liabilities.

46.5 Segment performance is generally evaluated based on certain key performance indicators including business volume, gross profit,

profit from operations, reduction in operating cost and free cash flows.

46.6 Interest income and expense are not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central treasury function, which

manages the cash position of the Company.

47. GENERAL

47.1 The following major corresponding figures have been reclassified for the purposes of better presentation:

From To (Rupees in '000)

Trade receivables Due against construction work in progress 4,346,973

Deposits, short-term prepayments Other receivables 427,267

and other receivables

The related amounts in the cash flow statement and in other notes in these financial statements have also been reclassified.

47.2 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on November

24, 2011.

Ali Hamdani Christian Knie
Chief Executive Officer Director

Restated
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Notice is hereby given that the fifty ninth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering
Company Limited will be held on Thursday, January 12, 2012 at 10:30 a.m. at B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi to
transact the following business:

Ordinary business

1. To confirm the minutes of the annual general meeting held on December 29, 2010.

2. To receive and adopt the audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2011 and reports of the
directors and auditors thereon.

3. To consider and approve cash dividend of Rs 10 per share (100 %) for the year ended September 30, 2011.

4. To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending September 30, 2012.The present auditors Ernst
& Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for
reappointment.

5. To transact such other ordinary business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

Special business

6. To consider and pass with or without modification the following resolution as a special resolution for amending the
articles of association of the company:

“Resolved that in the Article 115 of the articles of association of the company in the last line Rupees twenty
thousand be inserted in place of Rupees ten thousand.”

By order of the Board

Mohammad Rafi
Company Secretary Karachi: December 19, 2011

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the company will remain closed from January 4, 2012 to January 12, 2012 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received at company’s Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Ground Floor, State Life
Building-3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi-75530 by the close of business on January 3,2012 will be considered
in time.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and
vote on his/her behalf.

Proxy forms in order to be valid must be received at the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 hours
before the time of meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy. A proxy must be a
member.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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3. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

For Attending the Shareholders’ Meeting:

i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her
identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time
of attending the meeting.

The shareholders registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. numbers and account
numbers in CDS.

ii) In case of a corporate entity the Board of Directors’ resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

For Appointment of Proxies:

i) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per
requirement notified by the company.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted along with proxy form to the company.

4. The statement under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is given below.

Statement under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance,1984

The Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held on September 22, 2011 have decided to increase the
remuneration of the Directors for attending the board meeting from Rupees ten thousand to Rupees twenty thousand.
Therefore, the present article 115 of the articles of association of the company need to be amended accordingly and a
special resolution is to be passed by the shareholders of the company to effect this amendment.
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited

Incorporation Number: CUIN 0000617

Pattern of holding of the Shares held by the Shareholders 
As at September 30, 2011

Shareholding

Number of Shareholders From To Total Shares held

463 1 100 shares 15,003

377 101 500 shares 84,595

42 501 1,000 shares 30,799

31 1,001 5,000 shares 59,472

3 5,001 10,000 shares 19,470

3 10,001 15,000 shares 35,160

1 20,001 25,000 shares 21,630

1 35,001 40,000 shares 39,480

1 50,001 55,000 shares 51,100

1 65,001 70,000 shares 69,631

1 170,001 175,000 shares 171,930

1 180,001 185,000 shares 180,489

1 200,001 205,000 shares 202,871

1 770,001 775,000 shares 771,604

1 1,040,001 1,045,000 shares 1,042,683

1 5,450,001 5,455,000 shares 5,451,120

929 8,247,037

152
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Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited
Categories of Shareholders
As at September 30, 2011

Categories of shareholders Number Shares held Percentage

Directors,Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minor children
   Director                                         Syed Babar Ali        1 500 0.01%
   Chief Executive Officer Nil

Executives Nil

Associated Companies,Undertakings and Related parties 1
   Siemens AG,Germany 5,451,120 66.10%

National Investment Trust 1
   National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Deptt (NIT)                         1,042,683 12.64%

Banks,Development Financial Institutions and Non Banking Financial 
Institutions, Modarabas and Mutual Funds

8 1,240,820 15.04%

   National Bank of Pakistan 771,604
   The Bank of Punjab 202,871
   Faysal Bank Ltd 180,489
   The Bank of New York Mellon 51,100
   The Bank of Khyber 21,630
   Golden Arrow Selected Stocks Fund Ltd 12,500
   CDC Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 509
   First Capital Mutual Fund Ltd 117

Insurance Companies 5 243,171 2.95%
   Adamjee Insurance Co Ltd                                                      171,930
   IGI Insurance Co Ltd                                                                 69,631
   Atlas Insurance Ltd 1,300
   Asia Care Health and Life  Insurance Co Ltd                                                 300
   The Crescent Star Insurance Co Ltd                                                 10

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1
   Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 6,930 0.08%

Individuals
   Local 898 199,204 2.42%

Others 14 62,609 0.76%
   Treet Corporation Ltd 39,480
   Habib Bank Ltd, A/C Mohammed Amin Wakf Estate                    11,790
   Trustees Adamjee Foundation 7,000
   Pak Ping Carpets Pak (Pvt) Ltd 1,600
   Crescent Steel and Allied Products Ltd                                           1,221
   Trustees Al-Badar Welfare Trust 914
   Dossa Cotton and General Trading(Pvt) Ltd 200
   Lakhani Securites (Pvt) Ltd 195
   Muhammad Salim Kasmani Securites (Pvt) Ltd 124
   The Karachi Stock Exchange Ltd 57
   First National Equities Ltd 12
   UHF Consulting (Pvt) Ltd 11
   Stock Master Securities (Pvt) Ltd 4
   IGI Finex Securities Ltd 1
Total        929     8,247,037 100%

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest
   Siemens AG,Germany                                                          5,451,120 66.10%
   National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Deptt.(NIT)                         1,042,683 12.64%
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In compliance with the requirements of section 204 (A) of Companies Ordinance 1984, THK Associates (Pvt.)
Limited has been appointed as Share Registrar of the Company.

The address, contact numbers and timings of THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited is given below:

THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
Ground Floor,
State Life Building-3,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi-75530.

Telephone No. : (021) 111-000-322
Fax : (021) 35655595

Timings : 9:30 am to 12:30 pm & 2:30 pm to 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday)

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by our
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Financial Calendar

The Company follows the period of October 1 to September 30 as the Financial Year.

For the Financial Year 2011-12, Financial Results will be announced as per the following tentative schedule:

1st quarter ending December 31, 2011 January 30, 2012

2nd quarter ending March 31, 2012 May 17, 2012

3rd quarter ending June 30, 2012 July 27, 2012

Year ending September 30, 2012 November 15, 2012

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent



I/We ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of __________________________________________in the district of ______________________________________being a member

of SIEMENS (PAKISTAN) ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED hereby appoint

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

or failing him ____________________________________________of ______________________________________________________

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at Karachi on

January 12,2012 and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated this________________________________day of ______________________

Signature of the shareholder__________________________

Folio No:____________________________________________

CDS Account No: ____________________________________

Witnesses:

1. Signature ______________________________

Name __________________________________

Address: ________________________________

________________________________________

CNIC No:

2. Signature ______________________________

Name __________________________________

Address: ________________________________

________________________________________

CNIC No:
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed across a five rupees revenue stamp must be deposited at the company’s
registered office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2. Witnessed by two persons for CDC account holder only.

3. CDC account holder shall also submit attested copies of their CNIC/passport and that of the proxy.

4. The proxy of CDC account holder shall produce his/her original CNIC/passport at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the proxy shall be
submitted along with this form.

Proxy Form

Revenue

Stamp





Efficiency through 
networking



Traffic and transportation cause 20 percent of 

the energy-related greenhouse gas emissions 

worldwide – and our society‘s mobility needs 

continue to grow. Cities in particular face 

enormous challenges. They need integrated, 

efficient and affordable traffic solutions in 

order to ensure lasting mobility, 

attractiveness and competitiveness.

An optimal traffic flow can be achieved by 

integrating both private traffic and public 

transportation into one holistic traffic 

concept. Using a cross-system intermodal 

traffic control system, urban traffic planners 

can intelligently network different streams of 

traffic in an effective and environmentally 

friendly manner. Rapidly growing air traffic 

also plays a significant role in metropolitan 

areas. Siemens offers a complete and diverse 

portfolio of green products, solutions and 

services for airport-related processes, all from 

a single source.

Technologies in Siemens Pakistan  

for Mobility

> Metro systems, trams, high-speed trains, 

 Locomotives, regional trains 

> Rail automation and electrification

> Traffic management systems 

> Parking management systems

> LED traffic lights, airfield lighting 



Siemens first e-car, the “Electric Victoria“, travels 80 kilometers on  
a single battery charge. And it could already be seen driving the 
streets of Berlin in 1905. Tomorrow’s cars will not only be fueled 
by solar or wind generated electricity; as mobile energy storage 
 devices they will also contribute to an overall energy supply. Even 

when they are back home in the garage. It’s just one of the ways 
Siemens is continuing to pioneer the new energy age. Every day 
we’re working with the world to create answers that will last for 
years to come.

siemens.com/answers

Siemens answers for electromobility pave the way for the energy grid of tomorrow.

Even parked cars can  
move us forward.



Karachi
Head Office and Plant,
B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E,
P.O.Box: 7158, Karachi-75700
Phone : +92-21-32574910-19
Fax : +92-21-32563563

Town Office
Office No. 209 (b) and 210 (b),
2nd Floor, Park Towers,
Plot No. 1, C.F.1-5,
Clifton, Karachi-75600
Phone: +92-21-35875575
Fax: +92-21-35875573

Islamabad
Sector I-9/2, Industrial Area,
P.O.Box: 1129,Islamabad-44790
Phone : +92-51-4103381
Fax : +92-51-4432049

Lahore
State Life Building, 15-A,
Sir Aga Khan Road,
P.O.Box: 293, Lahore-54000
Phone : +92-42-36278758-67
Fax : +92-42-36363126

Peshawar
6th Floor, State Life Building, The Mall,
P.O.Box: 341, Peshawar-25000
Phone: +92-91-5276029
Fax: +92-91-5276187

Quetta
55-B, Chaman Housing Scheme,
Airport Road,
Quetta-87300
Phone: +92-81-2864071
Fax: +92-81-2831313

Afghanistan Branch
House No: 603,
Street No: 11, District No: 6,
Darul Aman Road, Karteh Seeh,
P.O.Box: 5640,
Kabul, Afghanistan
Phone: +93 -20-2500640-642
Fax: +93 -20-2500641

Dubai Branch
Al Waha Community Building,
Office No. 1 and 8 2nd Floor,
Near Deira International School,
Nad Al Hamar Road,
P.O.Box: 325,
Res Al Khor, Dubai, UAE
Phone: +971-04-2898071-75
Fax: +971-04-2898056

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Co. Ltd.
UAN: 111-077-088




